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CHAIRMAN'S Message:

Dear Shareholders, .

On behalt ot the Directors of the Bank, it gives me immense pleasure to present this report, together
with the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2019, The Bank’s
financial performance demonstrates our focus on building long-term customer {ranchise and
delivering high value returns for its shareholders.

i

The Board ensures thal the business of the Bank is condueted in an efficient and effective manner
{o promode the success of the Bank within an cstablished framework of effective system of internad
controls, robust risk management process and compliance with regulatory requirements. The
Board also ensures that good corporate governance policies and practices are implemented within
the Bank. While discharping its responsibilities, the Board acts in good faith, with due diligence

and care, and in the best interests of the Bank and its sharcholdtrs.

The Bank will continue to invest in both, branches and digital technologics; as well as the
organizational valueyand culture, building competencics that will enable us to lead the digital
watve. Furthermore, the Bank is continwously improving digital processes and user expericnees to
cater o a larger ecosystem of services, which go beyond the products currently being olfered by

our competitor banks in the industry.

It is notable that the Bank has groomed and cultivated talent within the organization and several
members of the senior management committee have discended from the ranks through their hard
work and dedication to a shared vision. We proudly acknowledge their accomplishments and their

aluablescontributory rale in helping us achieve new heights in the banking indusiry.
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Going forward in 2020, the Bank will continue its efforts o further improve the performance and
enhance stakeholders’ value, The Board has required the management to make efforts 1o revive,
the morlgage asscts business for further growth in the consumer banking business. Most
importandy, the Bank will increasingly emphasize on its human capital by strengthening “a pay
for performanee culture” and improved suceession planning process. Inorder'to provide a platform
to cater to the ynbanked population, the Bank has piloted the launch of digital banking to increase
its outreach, By introducing the *smart branch” concept, the Bank will also increase its distribution
footprint. This will enhance the Bank’s ability o mobilize deposits and invest increasingly in

CANNInG assels.

i

I join the Board in wishing the management every suceess in 2020, in muking the Bank a top

service provider in the industry and a profitable one for its sharcholders,

\%\! W

Khalid Aziz Mirza
Chairman
June 30, 2020
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Websile: www sithbank.com.pk




SILKBANK ”

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Khalid Aziz Mirza

Rashid Akhtar Chughtai
Shahzad Enver Murad

Talha Saced Ahmed

Tariq lqbal Khan, FCA
Zubair Nawaz Chattha
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi
Azmat Shahzad Ahmed Tarin

Company Secrefary
Faiz U1 Hasan Hashmi

Chief Financial Officer
Khurram Khan

Audit Committee

Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA
Shahzad Enver Murad
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi
Wajih Zaidi

Nomination, Remuneration & Human Resource Commitlee

Khalid Aziz Mirza
Rashid Akhtar Chughtai
Azmat Tarin
Goharulayn Afzal

as of December 31, 2019

Chairman
Member
Member
Secretary

Chairman
Member
Invitee
Secretary

Risk Management Committee

Shahzad Enver Murad
Tarig Igbal Khan, FCA
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi
Muhammad Atif Kauser

Chairman
Member
Member
Secretary

Information Technology Committee

Zubair Nawaz Chattha
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi
Tatha Saced Ahmed
Javed Yousuf Edhi

Chairman
Member
Member
Secretary

Acting Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director- President & CEO




SILKBANK >

Auditors
M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman (GTAR)
Chartered Acconntanis

Legal Advisor
M/s. Abdul Majeed & Co
Advocates & Corporate Consultants

Registered Office

Silkbank Limited,

13-L, F-7 Markaz,

Islamabad,

Direct Tel: {051) 26080-26-27-28,

PABX: (051) 26080-77-78-79 Ext: 111

Fax: (051) 26080-29

Email: companysecretary(@silkbank.com.pk
Website: www.silkbank.com.pk

Shkare Registrar

M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC House, 99 — B, Block ‘B’,
S.M.C.H.8., Main Shahra-e-Faisal
Karachi-74400.

Tel: Customer Support Services {Toll Free) 0800-CDCPL (23275)

Fax: (92-21) 34326053
Email: infof@edepak.com
Website: www.cdepakistan.com




Silkbank Limited
Director’s Report for the Year ended December 31, 2019

Dear Sharcholders,
The Directors are pleased to present the 26" Annual Report and the audited financial statements

for the year ended December 31, 2019,

Economic Review!

After achieving a 13-year high growth of 5.8% in FY 18, Pakistan's economy in FY 19 witnessed
significantly lower growth of 3.29% against the ambitious target of 6.2% due to large current
account deficit, monetary tightening, fragile government finances and limited foreign exchange
reserves. In the light of this precarious position to continue in FY20, the SBP has projected
GDP growth of mere 2.4% for FY20, which due to recent lockdowns and disruptions could be
a negative growth number.

During entire 2019 underlying inflationary pressures remained strong and the twin deficits
stayed at elevated levels, monetary policy was tightened with an increase in policy rate by 325
basis points to 13.25%. Average inflation in FY19 stood at 7.3% while 6MFY20 stood at
11.10%. SBP projects an average inflation of 11-12% for FY20. On the other hand, the fiscal
deficit in FY19 stood at 8.9% of GDP as compared to the target of 4.9%. The target fiscal
deficit for FY20 is 7.1% while SBP projects it to be 6.5-7.5%. Whereas, the actual numbers
now would be much higher than this, again due to COVID-19,

Pakistan, in Dec 2019, received the second tranche of USD 453 million from IMF under $6
biliion IMF bailout program spread over the span of three years. The current account deficit
decreased substantially by 32% from $19.897bitlion in FY'18 to $13.58billion in FY 19 largely
due to reduction of import bill and healthy growth in remittances from abroad. The
improvement in external front resulted in 5.6% appreciation of PKR against USD after hitting
the historic high of 164 against greenback in June 2019. The collective improvement in current
account deficit, stability in exchange rate and rise in yield differentials have attracted USD 1.5
billion in foreign portfolio investment in government securities during 6MFY20. Due to
muitiple inflows, the country's FX reserves strengthened by 30% YoY and stood at USD 17.9
bitlion in Dec 2019 as compared to USD 13.7 billion in Dec 2018. Due to improvement in
economic indicators, KSE 100 index after falling to lowest levels in Aug 2019 recovered
sharply and stood at 40,887 points at the year-end.

However, the phase of optimism for Pakistan’s economy receded rapidly after the outbreak of
COVID-19 in the country which recorded its first case on February 26, 2020. In order to prevent
the collapse of country’s fragile healthcare system, the government announced complete
country-wide lockdown on March 22, 2020 afier the sharp rise in cases. Due to the adverse
impact of lockdown on economy, the government announced a stimulus package of Rs 1.13
trillion (~ $7 billion). SBP also took drastic measures to keep monetary system afloat through
monetary and quantitative easing, In the light of fall in projected inflation due to suppressed
domestic demand, SBP slashed the policy rate by 525 basis points in two months’ time; policy
rate stands at 8% currently. Moreover, SBP also reduced the Special Cash Reserve
Requirement to 10% from 15% on FE-25 deposits of the banks, which provided additional
cushion fo the monetary system. On the other hand, the situation of balance of payments
deteriorated when the exports in April fall by 54% YoY due to cancellation in export orders
and global slowdown in the business activities. In order to mitigate the impact of economic
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shock, government should come up with greater stimulus package coupled with more monetary
easing,.

Banking Sector:

Banking sector’s profitability in recent years has been constrained by a series of one-offs and
regulatory changes, including past pension costs, super and banking transaction taxes, deposit
insurance, overseas penalties and provisions in addition to the dampening effects of narrowing
spreads. During the 2019, bank’s deposits grew by 12% YoY and stood at Rs 14.6 tn at the
year-end while advances grew by mere 4% YoY and stood at Rs 8.1 tnn in Dec 2019.

With the interest rate increasing from 5.75% to 13.25% in the span of one and a half year, the
banking profitability was expected to surge in the upcoming years as speil of increases in
interest rates had reversed the contraction cycle of net interest margin. However, 525 basis
points cut in policy rates, post COVID 19, enabled commercial banks to book one-off capital
gains on governinent securities but at the cost of narrowing spreads, which will put pressure
on NII of the bank in coming years. Further, with the introduction of relief package for
household and business by SBP, the risk of increase in Non-performing Loans (NPLs) for
commercial banks has significantly reduced.

SILKBANK’S PERFORMANCE DURING 2019,

Financial Performance:
The Bank has posted an after-tax Loss of Rs. 3,953 mllllon for the year ended December 31,

2019,

During this year, total deposits of the Bank grew by Rs. 16.19 billion to Rs.148.85 billion and
gross advances increased by Rs.8.67 billion, to Rs.112.24 billion.

Summarized financial performance of Silkbank lezted for the year ended December 31, 2019,
is as follows:

2009 | 2018
Rs, In miHlion

Net mark-up / return / profit / interest income 1,616 6,605
Provisions and write offs - net (2,433) (1,269)
Non mark-up / interest income 3,236 3,415
Non mark-up / interest expense (8;248) (6,874)
(Loss) / profit before Tax ' (5,829) 1,877
Taxation 1,876 (547)
(Loss) / profit after Tax (3,953) 1,330

Rupee

Basic and diluted (I.oss) / Earning per share (0.214) l 0.15

1
The loss declared by the Bank is primarily attributed to delay in })ayments from Real Estate
customers of the Bank. The unexpected ban on construction of hlgh -rise buildings in Karachi
by the Supreme Court of Pakistan for a certain period of time adversely affected the Real Estate
projects financed by the Bank. ;

Page 2 0f 18




As a result, the Bank had to classify lucrative Real Estate foans on prudent basis, with a
concrete recovery plan in place.

Furthermore, the SBP during its last inspection identified a security shoitfall in the real estate
portfolio of the Bank., However, with the support of SBP, the shortfall so identified has been
more than adequately covered through additional collateral valued by SBP nominated
valuators. Those accounts stand classified as per SBP instructions.

SECTORAL PERFORMANCE.,
Retail Banking:

Branch Banking

Branch Banking had an ouistanding performance in the year 2019 with a spectacular
deposit growth of approximately Rs 10 billion. This growth was reflected in core
deposits which increased from PKR 42 billion in 2018 to PKR 52 billion in 2019,
reflecting segments focus on building the stable deposits which also helped in reducing
reliance from institutional deposits. Total deposit crossed PKR 87 billion with PKR
50.8 billion generated from CASA deposits, PKR 30.3 biflion from Term deposits and
PKR 6.47 billion from FCY deposits. .

Silkbank Visa Debit Cards continued to show strong growth during 2019 increasing the
total number of Cards to 172,490, with a growth of 27% compared to 2018. The usage
of Debit Cards over Point of Sales during 2019 recorded a spend of PKR 1.8 billion
against appx. 500,000 transactions reflecting a positive growth of 21% & 25%
compared to 2018. The highest spend recorded in a month was PKR 173 million during
December 2019, Silkbank ATM’s dispensed more than PKR 23 billion exhibiting a
positive growth of 10% compared to the previous year, through 2.1 mm fransactions in
2019.

The year of 2019 was the year of digitization for Branch Banking. It started with the
initiation of Tab Based Banking Services with branches providing customers the
convenience of Instant Biometric Verification Services at their doorstep. In addition to
this, trials are underway to initiate Instant Account Opening through Tabs which will
enable our front end teams o initiate new relationships at customer premises. This
initiative is aligned with our long-term strategy of being customer centric while
providing environment fiiendly banking services.

Branch Banking also successfully completed the re-carding activity of Debit Cards by
replacing all existing active plastics with Chip & Pin EMV compliant Debit Cards while
introducing new variants of Platinum & Gold for High Net Worth Individoals and
separate cards for our Ready Line and Eman Islamic

customers.

ADC Business:

Silkbank Visa Debit Cards continued to show strong growth during 2019 increasing the
total number of Cards to 172,490, with a growth of 27% compared to 2018, The usage
of debit cards over point of sales during 2019 recorded a spend of Rs. 1.8 billion against
appx. 500,000 transactions reflecting a positive growth of 21% & 25% compared to
2018. The highest spend recorded in a month vsas Rs. 173 million during December
2019. Silkbank ATM’s dispensed more than Rs. 23 billion exhibiting a positive growth
of 10% compared to the previous year, through Z.1 million transactions in 2019
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Branch Banking also successfully completed the re-carding activity of Debit Cards by
replacing all existing active plastics with Chip & Pin EMV compliant Debit Cards while
introducing new variants of Platinum & Gold for High Net Worth Individuals and
separate cards for our Ready Line and Eman Islamic customers.

Bancassurance:

Bancassurance business has shown a consistent growth in the year 2019 and stands at
double digit growth of 11% from last year’s performance. Total business issued in 2019
was Rs. 140 million as compared to issued business of Rs. 126 million in 2018.
Moreover, Branch productivity has significantly increased through various attractive
promos and a drive of “Participation from AIl” with total proposals generated in 2019
were 1,452 as compared to 1,299 of 2018,

Wholesale Banking:

Treasury & Financial Institutions.

Due to correct ‘and timely anticipation of future policy rate cuts, Silkbank treasury
accumulated GoP securities in 2019 and posted capital gains of Rs. 557 million from
sale of PIBs, T-bills & Sukuks as compared to only Rs.24 million in CY18. Foreign
Exchange desk also took utmost advantage from volatility in foreign exchange ready &
forward market which enabled the bank to earn foreign exchange income of Rs.399
million compared to Rs. 350 million in CY18.

Through international and local correspondent banking network and arrangements,
Financial Institutions (FI) Department made available treasury, trade and payment
solutions for Conventional and Emaan Islamic banking and generated Rs, 70 million as
non-funded earnings in 2019 as compared to Rs, 57 million in CY18.

FI also made available ample credit lines with counterparty institutions, resulting in
smooth absorption of credit transactions under country and FI risks on account of
Treasury, Trade Finance and Guarantee Businesses.

Corporate Banking Group

On the back of average advances of Rs. 40,00 billion, the net advances increased from
Rs. 35.3 billion, an increase of 13.3%. Consequently YoY-18 net revenue increased to
Rs. 3.92 billion, higher by 26.4%. Trade volumes showed expansion of Rs, 4.5 billion
with 14% increment and stood at Rs, 37.7 billion in FY-18 from Rs. 33.1 billion in FY-

2017.

Consumer Banking:
The Consumer Banking Division continues to perform exceptionally well, maintaining its

growth momentum.,

Unsecured Portfolic:

We kept our focus towards market development and exploring new opportunities
through digitization and expanding reach into untapped markets. New acquisition
channels of Branch acquisition channel, Employee Banking and Digital acquisition
channel were introduced and made fully operational,

2019 saw a steep rise in inferest rates and inflation index, which hampered business
growth & resulted in an overall economic slow-down. Consumer banking all over
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experienced high losses and focus shifted towards retention of good portfolio and
keeping delinquencies under control,

The wining strategy revolved around capitalizing on market trends to timely execute
new Segment Based features/product launches, Marketing Initiatives including Media
Campaigns & Sales Promotions and a steadfast focus on providing our customers an
unparallel Customer Experience across all touch points including enhanced focus on
Digital Channels.

The game plan included various other initiatives which were taken such as prompt
payment bonuses introduced, income and risk criteria was revised, low profile segments
were identified based on performance and solicitation was stopped, top-up eligibility
criteria was revised and rewards and incentive programs were introduced for collections
staff.

All these initiatives aided Silkbank Consumer Banking to continue its tradition of over-
achievement. In 2019 we booked 3 times more the number of loans and twice the more
volume than our nearest competitor for PIL & RL and for the 4th consecutive year, we
were the leading fresh credit card issuer in the market.

We booked a combined total of additional 72,462 accounts in 2019 with 16,045 Ready
Line accounts, 11,267 Personal Installment loan accounts and 45,150 fresh credit cards.
The total ENR increased to PKR 20 Billion for consumer banking, which resulted in us
dominating the market with 38% market share among peer banks for PIL & RL.

Credit Cards:

2019 was another stellar year for Silkbank Credit Cards with all key indicators
recording healthy gains. ENR (Ending Net Receivable) grew by PKR 1.2 Billion in
2019 compared to PKR 1.0 Billion in 2018, the largest yearly growth in ENR since
launch of credit cards business. With 45,150 cards new cards, the CIF (Cards in Force)
increased to 166,792. Retail spending on Silkbank Credit Cards in 2019 amounted to
PKR 23.8 Billion, representing a year on year growth of 28% and this was further
supplemented by FIP (Flexible Installment Plan) booking of PKR 3.3 Billion, an
increase of 36% over last year. Portfolio health indicators also improved from last year
with Credit Card activation rate increasing to 87% from 83%, which is the highest
activation rate in the industry. Credit Card utilization rate also increased to 31% from
27% which is indicative that Silkbank Credit Cards are increasingly the preferred
payment option for our customers compared to other alternatives. One of the biggest
success stories of 2019 for Silkbank Credit Cards was the 237% improvement in value
added service enroilments with 121,000 enroliments in 2019, Value Added Services are
not only a vital source of generating non-funded income but improve customer value
proposition, Total Alliances partners have grown to 450+, which has propelled
Silkbank Credit Card Alliances Proposition to be the best in the market. One of the
major programs launched was the free Gymnasium visits program for Silkbank
Piatinum Credit Card holders across multiple premium health clubs in Karachi, Lahore
and Islamabad.

Ready Line:

During the year 2019, we successfully completed various critical tasks some of which
were mandated by the regulator. Successful re-carding of entire portfolio with EMV
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compliant debit cards, enrolment of all portfolio on digital transactions SMS alerts, and
moving Ready Line to separate Bin were few of complefed critical tasks.

Apart from various spend enhancement initiatives which inchuded tactical promotions,
cashback campaigns, targeted spend campaigns to channelize spend through SilkDirect
Internet banking and Silk Mobile, many other value adding projects were initiated such
as Verified by Visa (VBV) features on Visa Debit Card, Dual Interface VDC, EPP in
Ready Line, Separate BTF rates, RL Platinum bin, Insurance produets in Ready Line
and Loyalty program which are under different stages of development.

We were able to close 2019 with Ready line ENR of Rs, 7.78 billion and a total
customer base of 49,928 customets.

- Personal Loans:
During the year 2019, the Consumer Banking Division decided to re-launch the

successful ‘5 year loan, 4 year mark-up’ campaign in Personal Loan as a market
expansion initiative. The campaign was launched on radio and social medivms and
proved to be a great success and aided in increasing acquisition, product awareness, as
well as gaining market share. A new product variant “Smatt Plan- End use defined”
was also launched with 19 partners on-board.

Simultaneously, to retain the existing customers, different campaigns & initiatives were
launched such as top-up promotions and credit [imit erhancement programs.

As a result of these concerted efforts, the Bank has an active customer base of 25,620
taking the total ENR to Rs. 6.69 billion.

- Secured Portfolio:
Fresh acquisition remained halted and focus was on retention of good portfolio.
Silkbank M’Power, a running finance facility secured against residential and
commetcial properties stands at an ENR of Rs. 1.89 billion with 290 active customers

at year end.

Emaan Islamic Banking (Emaan):

Emaan Islamic Banking is committed to play an active role in the growth of Islamic Banking
industry by offering high standard Shariah compliant products and services through its fast
growing banking network across country. Emaan Islamic deposit base has shown decent
growth of Rs. 2,315 million reflecting 7% positive change versus last year, taking the total
deposit base to Rs. 33,275 million with CASA TDMix of 81:19. Advances registered a growth
of Rs. 1,090 million with total footing at Rs. 27,991 million, Over 7,105 new to bank accounts
were opened during the period, taking the total customer base to 29,:88. Focus on Service &
Quality was maintained throughout the year with “Good” rating, Emaan Islamic is fully
committed to sustained growth by consistently focusing on best in &lass customer services and
product suite along with prudent approach to building the balance sheet. The bank will continue
to explore opportunities and invest in its digital capabilities and infrastructure fo enrich our
customer’s banking experience through innovative banking solutions. We will continue to
further strengthening our control and compliance environment by focusing on our people,

1

culture and system.
!
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Technology:

During the year 2019, Technology and Digital Innovation Division has taken various initiative
in terms of technological advancements, introduction of services through seamless channels,
improvements in existing systems as per mandates and regulation and business specified
requirements. A number of technology-based initiatives were taken to support businesses,
regulatory compliance and enhance customer services quality in 2019, IT complied with
numerous SBP mandates in the year of 2019, such as Deposit Protection (DPC) Circular No.
01, 2019, Allow FCY Transactions on GL Accounts Filer / Non Filer, major enhancement in
Anti Money Laundering System, Installation of Anti skimming Devices implementation on
ATMs, Enhancement in Pool Management System for Islamic Banking, Interface with FBR
System for submission of CRS Returns, Incorporation of Finance Act 2019. In addition, we
have also fulfilled numbers of FBR, 1-Link & VISA mandates. We have also delivered
numerous value-added products to business team. Major projects include Collection works
(CWX), Introduction of multiple new VISA BINs, Biometric verification related services
enhancement, ATM cards activation and PIN generation through Tab, EMV Chip & PIN
Implementation on Cards and in- house chip personalization setup.

Technology and Digital Innovation Division revamped CRM for call center to provide one
window solution and give 360 view of the incoming caller, recuce agent’s average handle time
significantly, prevent to switch multiple windows for information gathering, lead capture and
customer interaction capture as a call disposition,

One of the major initiative of 2019 was Unified e-banking (with Internet Banking and Mobile
Banking) project, in order to provide customers with wide array of secure and seamless services
through Internet Banking and Mobile Banking.

ITD is working as a team and continuously providing its assistance, support, and services to all
the departments so that they could achieve their business goal and provide excellent service to
the customers. ¢

Human Resource: .

In 2019, Human Resoutces Division (HRD) has been actively involved in employee
recruitment, engagement, and development. To promote the Silkbank brand and achieve the
status of Employer of Choice, the recruitment team participated in Career Fairs organized by
leading business schools eartier this year. HRD also launched its Summer Internship program
in June where 100 students were hired from top institutes across Pakistan, developing a pipeline
for future hiring. The Learning and Development (L&D) unit has been actively involved in
employee professional and skill development by organizing a number of new training
workshops and programs, including Service Excellence, Anti-Harassment, Time & Stress
Management, Personal Grooming, Personal Productivity Toolkit, and Advanced Excel. Till
December end, 3,037 employees have been trained pan-Pakistan and 20,290 training hours
have been completed. L&D has also launched the Training Needs Ass¢ssment (TNA) using a
three-tier approach, in order to develop an even mote productive 2020.

Customer Service & Quality (CS&Q):

Silkbank‘s focus has always been on providing exceptional services not only to its customers
but also to non-customers who visits our branches. During the year in review, CSQ has
reengineered processes, such as Self-Complaint Registration and the Staff Service
Management System (SSMS). The SSMS was revamped to stréamling internal complaints
through a portal. CSQ has also empowered call center staff to resolve rredit card financial
charges issues to improve first call resofution. The CSQ has also updated the CRM at the Call
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Center to improve PBO productivity and strengthened controls. The Cali Center also handled
additional calls of re-carding of VCC and VDC along with BAU calis,

During the year 2019, significant improvements were made by CSQ towards complaint
resolution and resultantly, 96% complaint were resolved within 8 day.

While keeping ion view the expense management and cost savings, the Customer Management
Unit of CSQ spent less on courier & stationery by switching to electronic correspondence with
cusfomers.

Criteria for mystery shopping program was revised and focused trainings were conducted,
resultantly there was an upward trend in attributes like Cash Counter Services, which increased
from 93% to 96%, Telephone Services from 84% to 92%, Welcome & Greeting from 78% to
89% and Product Knowledge improved from 65% to 76%

Competition Mystery Shopping was conducted in 2019, whereby, Silkbank’s performance was
much better when compared with peer banks. Cash Counter Services turned out to be our
strength with a score of 95% for Conventional branches and 84% for Emaan Branches.
Silkbank’s Product Knowledge is comparatively better than its competitors, City-wise results
showed that Silkbank performed better than other banks in Islamabad and Multan.

Corporate Social Responsibility & impact of business on environment:

Green banking is an emerging concept in the field of Banking. It is aimed at making Banking
processes, use of IT and physical infrastructure more ecological and efficient with minimal
impact on environment. State Bank of Pakistan has introduced Green Banking guidelines in
2017 and is constantly pursuing banks to adopt environment friendly practices and build a
green portfolio. Silkbank in the same vein has also started environment friendly banking
practices which include eco-friendly light system, 1mplementat|0n of Solar Powered ATMs,
Solar power as an alternate source of Energy in few branches and digitalization of the branches
to reduce paperwork in order to achieve long lasting sustamable growth.

The Bank installed solar systems which are currently beinggused by 36 branches to feed
essential power requirements, which include ATM, IT systems, essential lighting and, alarm
systems. These branches use solar power during daytime and switch automatically to the
national grid at night. During power outages, these branches rély on solar energy to provide
back-up support. The Bank plans to convert all its ATM booth‘; to green ATMs eventually.
These hybrid systems also help the Bank to save electricity during weekends and public
holidays as the branches switch to solar power to save fuel cost.

An Array of Digital Banking services has also been infroduced by the Bank which helps to
reduce the dependence on paper. These services include ecofiiendly digital initiatives like
Internet Banking, Mobile Banking, SMS and E-Statements etc. -

Board of Directors:

Mr. Munnawar Hamid, Chairman of the Board upon completing his 3 terms as an independent
director of the Bank, tendered his resignation requesting the Board to appoint an independent
director as the new Chairman of the Board of the Bank, The Boazd accepted his resignation
with effect from January 02, 2019.
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During the year Mr, Nasim Beg tendered his resignation with effect from September 05, 2019.

The Board has appointed Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi as Non- Executive Director on the Board of
the Bank with effect from November 12, 2019,

The Board extends its deepest appreciation to Mr, Munnawar Hamid and Mr. Nasim Beg for
their valuable and consistently high-quality contribution to the Board and Board Committees.
This went a long way in the effective direction of the successful development and management
of the Bank through its various difficulties over the years, towards what is expected now to be
a prosperous future, At present, the composition of the Board is as follows:

Types of Director No of Directors
Independent Director 3
Non-Executive Director 3
Executive Director 2

Names of the persons who, at any time during the financial year, were directors
of the Banlk:

1. Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza

2. Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai
3. Mr, Shahzad Enver Murad
4. Mr, Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA
5. Mr, Talha Ahmed Saeed
6. Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha
7. Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi**
8. Mr. Azmat Tarin

9, Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE*
10, Mr. Nasim Beg*

* 45 stated above, Mr. Munnawar Hamid, OBE & Mr. Nasim Beg have resigned from the Board of the
Bank.

** fs stated above, Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi was appointed as Non- Executive Director on the
Board of the Bank.

Composition of Board Committees:
In accordance with the SBP guidelines, the Board has formed following Commiftees,
composition of which are as follows:

Audit Conmmittee

Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA Chairman
Shahzad Enver Murad Member
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member
Wajih Zaidi Secretary
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Nominationt, Remuneration & Human Resource Committee

Khalid Aziz Mirza Chairman
Rashid Akhtar Chughtai Member
Azmat Tarin Invitee
Goharulayn Afzal Secretary
Risk Management Committee

Shahzad Enver Murad Chairman
Tariq Iqbal Khan, FCA Member
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member
Muhammad Atif Kauser Secretary

Information Technolegy Committee

Zubair Nawaz Chattha

Chairman

Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member
Talha Ahmed Saeed Member
Javed Yousuf Edhi Secretary

*The above-mentioned Board Committees has been reconstituted on June 18, 2020 due to
the following changes during the year in Board of Directors:

o Mr, Naism Beg, resigned from the Board of the Bank with effect from September
05, 2019,

o Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi was appointed as Non- Executive Director on the
Board of the Bank with effect from November 12, 2019,

Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors:

In compliance with the guidelines on performance evaluation of Board of Ditectors, issued by
the State Bank of Pakistan, a questionnaire formulated by the Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance was placed before the Board. The questionnaire was divided into two paris: Board -
as a whole (which also includes the Board Committees) and individual director evaluation
(undettaken by the Chairman). Apart from these, the Board members were also provided an
opportunity to give their opinion on any emerging issue.

]

The questionnaire covered all aspects of Board structure, size, composition, responsibilities as
well as the performance of individual directors and its committees. The results/feedbacks
received from Directors on the basis of this questionnaire wete compiled by means of
quantitative techniques and have been considered by the Board to review its overall standards

& performance.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework: :
The Board is committed to its responsibilities under the Code of C01 porate Governance of the
SECP. In doing so, it wishes to make the following statements:

a) The financial statements prepared by the management of the Bank, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operation, cash flow and changes in equity.

kS
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b)

c)

d)

Proper books of account of the Bank have been maintained.

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan have been
followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed.

The system of internal control is sound in designh and has been effectively implemented
and monitored. Management’s statement on internal control is enclosed herewith which
is endorsed by the Board as required by the State Bank of Pakistan. The Board is
ultimately responsible for the Bank’s system of internal control and reviewing its
effectiveness. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the
tisk of failure to achieve objectives and by its nature can provide only reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The process used by the Board to review the effectiveness of the system of internal
confrol includes, inter alia, the following:

i) An audit committee has been formed with approved terms of reference and reports
to the Board. It reviews the approach adopted by the Bank’s internal audit
department, as well as the scope of and its relationship with the external auditors. It
also receives reports from the internal audit, and any material control weakness that
is identified is discussed and agreed actions are taken in areas of concern.

i} An organization structure has been established which supports clear lines of
© communication and tiered levels of authority with the delegation of appropriate
responsibility and accountability.

iii) Business strategies agreed at divisional level are approved by the Board. In addition
there is an annual budgeting and strategic planning process. These strategies are
reviewed during the year to reflect any significant changes in the business
environment. '

iv) The principal features of control framework include:

+ Evaluation and approvals procedures for major capital expenditure and other
transactions.

o Regular reporting and monitoring of financial performance using operating
statistics and monthly managements accounts which highlight key performance
indicators and variance from budget and quarterly forecasts.

e Review of the health, safety, environment and contingency management
processes and other significant policies. '

¢ Further, reviews of the system of internal control are also carried out by the
internal audit department and management conclusions on internal control are
confirmed by divisional management to the Board.

o There are no significant doubts upon the Bank’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
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e There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate
governance, as detailed in the listing regulations.

f) The value of investments of Provident fund and Gratuity Fund is Rs. 763.00 million
and Rs, 554,00 million, respectively, as per the un-audited financial statements of these
funds for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Risk Management Frameworl:

Consistent efforts have been carried out over the years for improvement in the overall Risk
Management function, resulting in better control & risk environment plus creating an overall
“Risk Culture” within the Bank., With the growing shift towards Basel Implementation on a
successive basis and enhanced focus for management of risk on an integrated pattern, following
are some important aspects of the Risk Management Function at Silk Bank Limited:

A, Credit Risk

Managing of credit risk is considered one of the key functions at RMG. Independent Risk
Management Units catering to the Corporate / Commercial / SME a1d Consumer segments are
fully operational and clearly follow the laid-out procedures formulated in the form of policies
/ Manuals and Product Programs. Credit Risk is thus continuously mionitored by the respective
sanctioning units, Broad based Credit Approval Authorities have als» been delegated to various
approvers for credit sign off. Additionally, Credit Administratior: units are in place for all
segments of the Bank, effectively taking care of all documentation and safe keeping. The Bank
has developed in- house Obligor Risk Rating {(ORR) models '/ systems for Corporate,
Commercial and SMEs, which are regularly reviewed/ updated. Besides RMG also has a robust
Early Warning System (EWS) reporting in place. RMG had also put in place a facility risk
rating (FRR) model which now stands fully implemented on a bank wide basis and etfectively
measures the risk in relation to each facility granted to all customers. These processes are
capable of identifying problem loans at an early stage for timely remedial actions. Results for
establishing these systems are now beginning to reflect in the management letter issued by the
exteérnal auditors and the annual reports complied by the SBP mspect:on teams through reduced
instances of system and procedure failures.

With major emphasis on the implementation of IFRS -9, RMG is geared up for meeting the
additional requirements under this accounting standard as prescribéd by the SBP. In addition,
all business units have been issued clear instructions to comply w1th‘the remaining outstanding
issues relating to SBP and the External auditots.

Under Consumer Banking, a separate collection unit operates for follow up and recovery of
loans responsible for a strong recovery stream of written oft consumer loans, thus ensuring a
pivotal role in bolstering business growth for the bank during the year. A centralized Special
Assets Management Unit is also in place and is primarily responsible for handling the NPL
accounts and recovery process. The unit is performing its task in a professional and efficient
manner. RMG has also kept a close watch on the accounts identified as having developed
“Potential Weaknesses”. Business units are required to provide quartetly updates on such
accounts which are then comprehensively reviewed by RMG and strategics going forward are
debated upon with all stake holders. As per practice, this list is also shared with the Risk
committee of the board during quarterly meeting and their mput is invariably sought for
implementation,

Besides various management committees of the bank, Credit Risk is also overviewed by the
Risk Committee of the Board on an ongoing basis. Regular guidance is sought from the Board
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on credit related matters and the findings are implemented in letter and spirit. During the year
major emphasis was placed on Macro issues to ensure that the overall health of the credit

portfolio remains intact,

In addition, RMG also kept a close watch on various industrial sectors to ensure that higher
risk areas are avoided and prescribed limits are adhered to. Exceptions (If any) were duly
reported to the Board.

B. Market Risk

A Middle Office function (independent of the Treasury) has been established within the Bank
with the primary responsibility of monitoring the market risk function and onward reporting to
the Head of Risk Management Group. Investment Committee (IC), Market Risk Policy
Committee (MRPC) and Asset and Liabilities Committee (ALCQ) are also functioning to
supervise and approve Market Risk exposures. At Silk Bank, we have a well-defined Liquidity
Policy, duly approved by the Board. Presently, various excel based tools are in use to generate
MIS on Market Risk and reporting to the senior management and regulators. We have also
successfully set up the “Web Tech system and T-Risk Module” which is capable of generating
sophisticated modeling reports and independent monitoring of various treasury functions in a
live environment.

C. Operational Risk
Under Operational Risk, appropriate Operational Policies and Procedures have been
documented and disseminated for managing operational risk on a bank wide basis. Operational
Risk Manual has since been prepared and approved by the Board. Risk Control self-assessment
questionnaires have also been sent across to various segments of the bank and based on their
feedback we plan to implement the process on a bank wide basis during the current year.

Operational Risk reporting under OLED has been initiated in the bank and a detailed procedural
guideline has been duly approved by the Senior Management, All segments and departments
of the bank have been advised for regular reporting. Workshops for the benefit and
understanding of reporting uiits are being held for all related staff, enabling them to report all
incidents to RMG for reporting and capturing of loss data within the bank.

After successful implementation of the framework, we have now started collection of the
required loss event data on monthly basis and are now dealing with the issues; hands on. This
data is the first step towards forming the historical pool which will help in improving our
procedures further, Board’s risk committee is regularly updated on the plog: €ss bemg made in
this regard.

An Internal Control Unit is also operational with the primary task of over-viewing and ensuring
implementation of various operational guidelines and monitoring tools and reconciliation
across the Bank. Additionally, an independent Internal Audit function is also'in place within
the Bank, reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board, A Proper Compliance Department is
also functional, inter alia to ensure that all legal and regulatory requirements ate properly
addressed in addition to the implementation of Anti Money Laundering and Know your
Customer (AML/KYC) Policies.

In this respect, appropriate training to relevant staff has been imparted including training on
strict monitoring of transactions and AML/KYC. Business Continuity Plan (BCP) is also in
place to deal with any eventuality. Self-Assessment of Key Risk Indicafors (KRI'S) and
compliance of standards, codes and guidelines is regularly carried out and documentﬁd

¢ |
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Directors’ Training:

All Directors on the Board are fully conversant with their dutics and responsibilities as
Directors of the Bank. Three Directors of the Bank have obtained the required certification
whereas, four Directors of the Bank stand exempted from the requirement of the said
certification and the remaining Directors will obtain it within the prescribed time.

Board of Director’s & Committees’ Meetings during 2019:
During the year 2019, following Board and its Committees meetings were held. Aftendances
by the Directors & President &CEO were as follows:

N Audit 12:::.?; Risk Committee [IT Committee
S.No. Board Meetings Cnmn!ittec Committee Mectings Meetings
Mectings Mectings
Directors
Held | Attended { Held | Attended | Held | Attended | Held | Attended [[eld{Attended

1 | Mr, Khalid Aziz Mirza 4 4 - - 4 4 - . - .
2 | Mr. Nasim Beg* 4 3 4 3 - - - - i 1
3 | Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai 4 4 - - 4 4 - - - B
4 | Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad 4 4 4 4 - - 4 4 - -
5 | Mz Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA 4 4 4 4 - - 4 4 - -
6 | Mr. Taltha Saced Ahmed 4 4 - - - - - - - -
7 | Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha 4 4 - - - - . - 1 1
8 | My, Masroor Ahmed

Qureshi** - - - - . - - - . -
9 | Mr. Azmat Shahzad Ahmed

Tarin 4 4 - - . - - - . -

Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the meeting.

* As stated above, Mr. Nasim Beg resigned from the Board of the Bank,

** As stated above, Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi was appointed as Non- Executive Director on the
Board of the Bank.

Pattern of Shareholding:

The pattern of shareholding as required under the Companies Act, 2019 and the Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 is as follows:
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Combined pattern of CDC and Physical Share Holding as at Decembet

* 31,2019

8. No. | Categories of Shareholders Number of Shares Held Percentage
Shareholders %

01 Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their 10 439,557,612 4,84
spouse(s) and minor children : ‘

02 Associated Companies, undertakings and related 9 5,6606,262,093 62.39
Parties

03 | Executives* 13 39,211,471 0,43

04 Public Sector Companies and Corporations 5 99,421,996 1.09

05 [ Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non- 7 4,384,338
Banking  Finance  Companies, Insurar}ce 0.05
Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension '
Funds

06 Mutual Funds | 20,880,417 0.23

07 | General Public — Foreign 25 259,296,515 2.86

08 General Public — Local 7415 2,133,188,488 23.49

09 | Others 83 419,598,307 4.62
Total: 7568 9,081,861,237 100.00

*In accordance with the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) definition of the terin “Executive”
used in clause No, 5.6.1 (d) (Disclosure of Price-Sensitive Informatioa To The Exchange:) of
Chapter 5 of PSX Rule Book, the Board of Directors of the Bank has passed a resolution in its
154" meetings held on October 28, 2016 & set the threshold for the term “Executive” as the
CEQ, COO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary by whatever name called,
and covering employees of the Bank of Grade - 8 and above.

The aggregate shares held by the Directors, Chief Executive and their spouse and minor
children along with Associated Companies, Undertakings Related Parties and Mutual Funds
as at December 31, 2019

i
1

Category wise

8. No. | Categories of Shareholders Number  of | Category Percentage
Shares held wise No, of | Shares held
Folios/
CDC Acs.
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and 10 439,557,612 4.84
their Spouse and Minor Children
01 Mr, Khalid Aziz Mirza 500
02 Mr. Rashid Akhter Chughtai 500
03 | Mr, Masroor Ahmed Qureshi 500 ‘
04 | Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad 500,000 :
05 Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan 16,997 i
06 Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha 415,626,000
07 Mr. Azmat Tarin 20,013,115
08 Mrs. Farah Naz Tarin W/o Azmat Tarin 200,000
09 Mrs. Saima Shahzad Murad W/o Shahzad
Enver Murad 3,200,000
Associated Companies, Undertakings 9 5,666,262,093 62.39
and Related Parties. (5% & above
shareholding), i
01 Arif Habib Corporation Limited 2,563,901,924 L 28.23
02 | Mr. Shaukat Tarin* 1,049,091,791 ‘ 11.55
03 International Finance Corporation 702,689,067 7,74
04 M. Zulgarnain Nawaz Chattha 678,126,000 7.47
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05 Nomura Evropean Investment Limited 356,676,342 3.93
06 | Bank Muscat S.A.0.G 315,776,969 3.48
Mutual Funds 20,880,417 0.23
01 CDC - Trustee National Investment 20,380,417
(Unit) Trust

* The total shareholding of Mr. Shaukat Tarin actually stands at 1,106,091,791 shares.
i.e.12.18% in the Bank, out of which as of December 31, 2019, an amount of fifty-seven million
(57,600,000) shares of Mr. Shaukat Tarin have been kept with Pearl Securities Limited.

During the Year, Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi, Director Silkbank Limited has purchased 500
shares from open market required as qualification for shares being on the Board of the Bank.

Mr. Khurram Ali Malik, Area Manager — Branch Banking of Silkbank Limited, has sold 3,000
shares to the open market. The bank has reported the same to the Pakistan Stock Exchange in
compliance of clause No. 5.6.1. (d) of PSX Regulations. Apart from this, there was no other
trading in Silkbank shares carried out by any of the Directors and Executives or their spouses
and minor children during the year.

Auditors,

The retiring auditors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment {ill the conclusion of
the next Annual General Meeting. The Audit Committee of the Board has recommended M/s.
M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman (GTAR), Chartered Accountants, the retiring auditors, as
the statutory auditors of the Bank for the financial year 2020.

Compliance with Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) and Capital Adequacy Raftio
(CAR).

As at Dec 31, 2019, the equity of the Bank stood at Rs. 10.52 billion excluding surplus on
revaluation of assets. This includes share capital (net of losses and discount on shares) of Rs.
9.69 biltion. By virtue of this, the Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of the Bank is 5.81%.

The Bank is pleased to report that in the declining interest rate scenario, the Bank has built up
its PIB portfolio to ride the yield curve and record capital gains.

The said strategy of the Bank has reaped great results and helped the Bank to record major
gains to the tune of Rs. 540 million in 4™ quarter ended December 31,2019,

Furthermore, the Board has given certain targets to the management that will ensure
improvement in all key ratios of the Bank in 2020,

Key steps are enumerated below:
a. Reduction in Corporate / Real Estate portfolio of the Bank.
b. Reduction in non-earning assets (OREQ, others).
¢. Improvement in profitability of the Bank in 2020,

o

d. Reduction in advances in the Corporate / Islamic portfolio will be compensated by increase
in Consumer and SME loans, the magnitude of which may not be large but will have a
positive effect on profitability, due to bigger margins.
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e. Closure / shifting of loss-making branches.
f. Fully integrated digital experience with physical distribution.
The Bank is confident of achieving CAR compliance in 2020.

Credit Rating;:
The long-term entity rating of the Bank is A- (Single A Minus) and the short-term rating is A-
2 (A-Two) as determined by “JCR VIS” Credit Rating Company Limited. The outlook on the

assigned rating is “Stable”,

Future Outlook:
The Bank’s progress in 2019 was curtailed due to decline in real estate prices on account of the

economic situation of the country.

The unexpected ban on construction of high rise buildings in Karachi by the Supreme Court
of Pakistan for a certain period of time adversely affected the Real Estate projects financed
by the Bank. As a result, the Bank had to classify lucrative Real Estate loans on prudent
basis, with a concrete recovery plan in place.

Furthermore, the SBP during its last inspection identified a security shortfall in the real estate
portfolio of the Bank. However, with the support of SBP, the shortfall so identified has been
more than adequately covered through additional collateral valued by SBP nominated
valuators,

The Bank expects substantial payment against these loans in 2020, which would make these
accounts regular and improve the bottom line of the Bank, Letters of Intent evidencing the
future sale of major real estate portfolio of the Bank already stand executed, with established

timelines.

As aresult of the declining interest rate in 2019 /2020, the Bank after booking of approximately
Rs. 1.5 billion from September 30, 2019 to March 31, 2020, has further booked an unreported
gain of over Rs. 4.4 billion approximately in second quarter ended June 30", 2020, on its PIB

portfolio,

1

This portfolio may yield further gains for the Bank with further deérease in the discount rate.

The Board has additionally required the management to make efforts to revive, the mortgage
assets business for further growth in the consumer banking business. Most importantly, the
Bank will increasingly emphamze on its huinan capital by strengthenmg “a pay for performance
culture’” and improved succession planning process.

In order to provide a platform to cater to the unbanked populatlon, the Bank has piloted the
launch of digital banking to increase its outreach.

By introducing the “smart branch” concept, the Bank will also increase its distribution
footprint. This will enhance the Bank’s ability to mobilize deposits and invest increasingly in
earning assets.
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With the successful implementation of the strategies outlined above, your Directors are hopeful
that the Bank will report profits in the years to come.

Acknowledgement:

We, once again, take this opportunity to express our deepest gratifude {o our customers and
business partners for their continued support and trust, and our sincere appreciation to the State
Bank of Pakistan for their guidance and cooperation.

We are also equally thankful to our associates, staff and colleagues for their committed
services, and look forward to their continued support.

For and on Belalf of the Board of Silkbank Limited

e \Q\\g;;g‘

Azmat Tarin Khalid Aziz Mirza
President & CEQO Acting Chairman
Karachi, June 30,2020
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Silk Bank Limited
For the Year ended December 31, 2019

The Bank has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are 8 as per the following:

a. Male: 8
b. Female: 4]

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

i Independent Directors Mr. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad
Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai

ii. Non-Executive Directors My, Tariq Iqbal Khan, FCA
Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha
Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi

iii. Executive Directors Mr. Talka Ahmed Saeed
Mr. Azmat Shahzad Ahmed Tarin

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Bank.

The Bank has prepared a code of conduet and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant
policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Bank.

All the powers of the Board have been duly excrcised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regutations,

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect io frequency, recording and civculating minutes of meeting of the
Board.

The Board have a formal pelicy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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10.

12

All the Directors on the Board are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as Directors
of the Bank. The following four Directors have obtained certification from Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance (PICG)/Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP)/ Lahore
University of Management Sciences:

s Mr, Shahzad Enver Murad
s Mr, Tarig [gbal Khan, FCA
¢ Mr, Talha Ahmed Saeed

s Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chattha.

Whereas, the following two Directors of the Bank stand exempted from the requirement of the said
cerfification:

o My, Khalid Aziz Mirza
s Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai

The remaining Directors will obtain required certification within the prescribed time.
The Board has approved appointiment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of

Internal Aundit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment, and complied
with relevant requirementis of the Regulations,

. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before

approval of the Board.
The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Commitice

Tariq Igbal Khan, FCA Chairman
Shahzad Enver Murad Member
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member
Wajih Zaidi Secretary

by Nomination, Remuneration & Human Resource Commitiee

Khalid Aziz Mirza Chairman
Rashid Akhtar Chughtai Member
Azmat Tarin Invitee
Goharulayn Afzal Secretary

¢} Risk Management Committee

Shahzad Enver Murad Chairman
Tariqg Igbal Khan, FCA Member
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member

Muhammad Atif Kauser Secretary
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3.

14.

15.

17.

18.

d) Information Technology Committee

Zubair Nawaz Chattha Chairman
Masroor Ahmed Qureshi Member
Talha Saeed Member
Javed Yousuf Edhi Secretary

*The above-mentioned Board Committees has heen reconstituted on June 18, 2020 due to
the following changes during the year in Board of Directors:

e Mr. Naism Beg, resigned from the Bouard of the Bank with effect from September 05, 2019.

o Mr. Masroor Ahined Qureshi was appointed as Non- Executive Director on the Board of
the Bank with effect from November 12, 2019,

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Quarlerly
b)Y Nomination, Remuneration & Human Resource Committee Quarlerly
¢) Risk Management Committee Quarterly
dy Information Technology Committee Quarterly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Bank.

. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory

rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Ofticer, Head of Internal Audit, Company
Secretary or Director of the Bank.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.

For and on Behalf of the Board of
Silkbanlk Limited

g

EN

Azmat Shahzad Ahmed Tarin Khalid Aziz Mirza
President & CEO Acting Chairman

Karachi, June 360, 2020
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SILKBANK LIMITED
Management’s Statement on Internal Controls as of December 31, 2019

This statement is issued in compliance with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) BSD Circular
No: 07 of 2004 on Internal Controls,

An internal control system is a set of process and procedures designed to identify and mitigate
the risk of failure fo meet the business objectives of the Bank Jt is the responsibility of the
Bank's management to establish an infernal conirol system to maintain an adequate and
effective internal control environment. Maintaining effective controls is an integral part of the
management and accountability function in Sitkbank, The focus of internal control both as a
concept and a management tool has evolved over the years to a broad-based risk assessment
and mitigation system covering all areas of operations in the Bank.

As part of the strategy to ensure effective monitforing and improvement of internal controls,
the Bank has implemented the COSO framework of internal controls, in line with regulatory
guidelines (ICFR) and COSO implementation (BSD-7). With regular meonitoring and
improvement of the defined controls, the overall control environment in the Bank is now
geared to provide reasonable assurance to the Bank’s management and other stakeholders.

The Bank’s Internal Controls System has been designed fo provide reasonable assurance to
the shareholders and the Board of Directors. The Bank endeavors to proactively follow the
State Bank of Pakistan’s guidelines on Internat Controls. During the year, the Management
has further strengthened the day to day monitoring of control breaches for prompt corrective
actions. Compliance and Internal Control Division conducted reviews of processes in
branches to identify gaps in execution with special emphasis on the implementation of
regulatory instructions.

The management has established a‘Compliance Committee of Management and a Controls
Committee to monitor review and provide oversight of compliance and control related matters
across all units and locations of the Bank Where known gaps exist, corrective action plans are
in place to address them and are reviewed/ monitored by the respective Committee. In addition,
the committee acts as an oversight authority and supports the Board in embedding a compliance
and control culture in the Bank. Compliance function tracks progress of all significant issues
raised in regulatory examinations and the status is reported at the Compliance Committee of

Management,

The compliance function ensures Bank’s compliance with all applicable faws, regulations and
code of ethics. The Compliance role is to strengthen the compliance environment and
minimize compliance risk across the institution through effective adherence to applicable
laws, regufations, guidelines and the Bank's internal policies and procedures.
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An organizational structure has been established which supports clear lines of communication
and tiered levels of authority and segregation of duties commensurate with accountability.

The Bank has established an effective Internal Audit structure, reporting directly to the Audit
Committee of the Board. Internal Audit conducts risk-based audits of activities and processes
to evaluate the adequacy and effectiveness of the control environment of the Bank. All
significant/material findings of Internal Audit and External Audit are reported to the Board
Audit Commitiee (BAC) with agreed management actions and timelines. Internal Audit tracks
closure of all findings through validation of agreed management actions and the status is
regularly reported at the Management s Control Committee and at the BAC. BAC oversees
implementation of internal controls to ensure that any identified risks are mitigated to
safeguard the interest of the Bank.

The Bank follows the SBP s instructions on Internal Controls over Financial Reporting (ICFR)
and has complied with the SBP s stage-wise implementation roadmap. As part of this exercise,
the Bank has an Internal Control Department established to proactively monitor and validate
Controls in line with Regulatory guidelines (ICFR) and COSO implementation (BSD-7).

The significant and material findings of the internal & external auditors and regulators were
addressed on a priority basis by the management and their status was periodically reported to
the Board Audit Committee

The Bank has implemented various key policies and procedure guidelines/manuals covering
all the areas of management and operations inchiding those related fo Branch Banking
Operations, Centralized Operations, Trade Business, Treasury, Credit Risk, HR, Finance,
Compliance and Administration.

+ Management gives due consideration fo the recommendations made by the internal and
external auditors for improvements in the internal control system and takes action to
implement such recommendations.

The management has established evaluation and approval procedures for all major capital
expenditure and other transactions.

There is an annnal budgeting and strategic planning process in the Bank. Financial forecasts
are reviewed on a periodical basis to reflect significant change in the business environment.
Regular reporting and monitoring of financial performance of the departments and the Bank
as a whole has been implemenied, using statistics and monthly management accounts fo
highlight key performance indicators and variance from budgets and forecass.

The Bank has implemented various significant policies covering all the areas of operations
including those relating to employee’s welfare and contingency management processes,
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Management also emphasizes on imparting of training to enhance knowledge and
understanding of the Bank’s internal policies and procedures and prudential regulations. This
has greatly contributed towards strengthening of the control environment.

The Bank is continuously making efforts to ensure that an effective and efficient Internal
Controls System remains active and implemented through consistent and periodic monitoring
that would help further strengthening of the overall control environment.

M=

Azmat Tarin
President& CEO

Karachi, June 30, 2020




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OFF SILKBANK
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Sitkbank Limited (the Bank), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statement of profit and loss
account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash
flow statement for the year then ended, along with unaudited certified returns received from the
branches except for 10 branches which have been audited by us and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting - policies and other explanatory
information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes. in equity and cash flow statement together with the
notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, and, give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the
Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Bank’s affairs as at December 31, 2019 and of the loss and other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for .'_O.pinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our. responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilides for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Bank in accordance with the International Fthics Standards Board for Accountants® Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obrained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinton.
Emphasis of Matters

1. As disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements, the Bank has not been able to meet the
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) and Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of the Bank
prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan (the SBP) as at year December 31, 2019.

2. We draw attention to note 15.3 to the financial statements that refers to the Bank’s breach of
Debt Property Swap Regulation.




3. As disclosed in note 14.1 to the financial statements which states that the deferred tax asset has
been recognized in these financial statements on the basis of financial projections for the future
yeats approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank. The preparation of financial projection
involves management assumptions regarding future business and economic conditions and
significant change in assumptions may have impact on recoverability of the deferred tax assets.

4. As disclosed in note 11.3.3 to the financial statements, the Bank has significant exposure in
borrowers dealing in general trading and real estate business against which the Bank has made

provision during the year.

Our opinton is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of maost significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the cutrent period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 0pm1on thereon, and
we do not provide a sepatate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

How . our audit addressed the key audit
mattets

Provision against advances

As described in note: 11 to the financial
statements, the Bank ‘makes provision against
advances on a time based criteria that involves
ensuring all non-performing loans and advances
are classified in accordance with the ageing
criteria speclﬁed in’the, Pmdenmi Regulations
(PRs) issued by the State Bank of Pakistan
(SBP). - :

In addition to the above time based critetia the
PRs require 2 subjective evaluation of the credit
worthiness of borrowers to determine the
classification of advances. o

The PRs also require the creation of general
provision for certain categories of advances.

The Bank has recognized a net provision
against advances amounting to Rs. 2,635.216
million in the profit and loss account in the
current year. As at December 31, 2019, the
Bank holds a provision of Rs. 6,861.935 million
against advances.

Our audit procedures to verify provision against
advances ipciuded, amongst others, the following:

We obtained an understanding of the design and
tested the operating effectiveness of key controls
established by the Bank to identify loss events
and for determining the extent of provisioning

‘required against non - performing advances.

We selected a sample of loan accounts and
petrformed the following substantive procedures:

o checked repayments of loan /  mark-up
installments and tested classification of non-
performing loans based on the number of days
overdue.

e cvaluated the management’s assessment for
classification of customers’ loan facilities as
performing or non-performing based on review
of repayment pattern, inspection of credit
documentation and through discussions with
the management.




The determination of provision against
advances based on the above criteria remains a
significant area of judgement and estimation.
Because of the significance of the impact of
these judgements / cstimations and the
materiality of advances relative to the overall
statement of financial position of the Bank, we
considered the area of provision against
advances as a key audit matter.

We checked the accuracy of specific provision
made against non-performing advances and of
general provision by recomputing the provision
amount in accordance with the criteria prescribed
under the PRs.

Gratuity obligation valuation

As described in note 5.1.5 and note 22 to the
financial statements, the Bank operates an
approved defined benefit plan. The Bank
recorded a net retirement obligation amounting
million to Rs. 57.812 million (2018: Rs. 49.491
million). The gratuity valuation is dependent on
market conditions and assumptions made. The
risk specifically relates to the following key
assumptions; discount rate, inflation
expectations and other assumptions. The
setting of these assumptions is complex and
requires the exercise of. significant actuarial
assumptions. R

We obtained detailed understanding and
evaluated the. design and implementation of
controls that the Bank has established in reladon
to the book keeping process.

We reviewed the data provided to actuary and
results - derived to obtain  sufficient and
appropiate audit evidence over the assumptions
and valuation.

We cvaluaféd_quaiiﬁcation of actuary.

In testing the gratuity valuation, we reviewed the
key actuarial assumptions used, both financial and
demographic, and considered the methodology
utilized to derive these assumptions.

IFRS 16 — Leases

As described in note 6.1 to the financial
statements, the Bank has adopted IFRS. 16
“Leases” with “effect from Januvary 1, 2019
IFRS 16 introduces :a single on balance sheet
lease accounting model for leases entered into
by the lessees. A lessee recognises a right-of-use
asset representing  its  right of using the
undetlying asset and a corresponding lease
liability representing its obligations to make
lease payments. On adoption of TFRS 16, the
Bank has changed its accounting policy for
operating leases which are now recognised on
the statement of financial position. The Bank
has accordingly recorded right-of-use assets and
lease liability amounting to Rs. 4,187.05 million
and Rs. 4,297.28 million respectively as at

Our audit procedures included the following:

Obtained an understanding of the management’s
process for identification of agreements which
contain leasing arrangements.

Evaluated the selection of accounting policies and
methodology followed by the management for
determination and measurement of right-of-use
asscts, corresponding lease liabilities and other

related impacts.

On a sample basis, tested the underlying data
used by the management from the lease contracts
for determination of the right-of-use assets and




Januvary 01, 2019. The comparative figures for
2018 reporting period have not been restated,
as permitted under the specific transitional
provisions of the standard.

The adoption of IFRS 16 involves estimation
and judgement. Because of the significance of
the impact of these judgements / estimates, we
considered this area as a key audit mattet.

cortesponding lease liabilities. Further, performed
re-computations on a test basis to assess accuracy
of computations performed by the management.

Assessed  whether the presentation  and
disclosures relating to the adoption of IFRS 16 in
the financial statements are in compliance with
the applicable financial reporting framework.

Information Technology

The Bank’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes ate highly dependent on the
automated controls due to the significant
number of transactions that are processed daily
over the Bank information systems, such that
there exists a risk that gaps in the IT control
environment could result in the financial
accounting and reporting records  being
materially misstated.

We have focused on user access management,
segregation of duties and controls over system
change over key financial accounting and
reporting systems. :

We evaluated the design and tested the operating
cffectveness of the controls over the information
systems that are critical and relevant to the
financial reporting.

We examined the framework of governance over
the Bank’s IT otganization and the controls over
access to programs and data, program changes,
IT opetations and program development,

Where necessary, we carried out direct tests of
certain aspects of the security of the Bank’s IT

systems including logical access management and

segregation of duties,

We tested the Bank’s periodic review of access
sights.

We tested I'T general controls operating over the
Information Technology in relation to financial
accounting and reporting systems, including
system access and systemn change management,
program development and computer operations.

We obtained management’s evaluation of the
access tights granted to applications relevant to
financial accounting and reporting systems and
tested resolution of a sample of exceptions. We
also assessed the operating effectiveness of
controls  over  granting,  removal  and
apptroptiateness of access rights.




Presentation of legal risks in the financial

statements

On all significant legal cases, we reviewed the
The Bank has 123 branches in different correspondence with Bank’s external counsel
locations in Pakistan and in the normal course | | accompanied by  discussion  and  formal
of bUSiHESS’ potentjal exposures may arise from confirmation from that counsel. In addition, we
general legal ptoceedings, guarantees, recovery read the summary of Jitigation matter pl’OVidcd by
suits, product liability, government and Bank’s legal counsel team and discussed each of

the tnaterial cases noted to determine the Bank’s

regulatory investigation etc.
assessment. of the likelihood and magnitude of

The level of judgment required to establish the any liability that may arise.

level of provisioning, increases the risk that

provisions and contingent labilities may not In order to determine the facts and circumstances

appropriately provided against or adequately of the individual cases, we performed inspection

disclosed. of relevant documents and we inquired with the
i ) ' Bank’s internal and external lepal counsel. We

Accordingly, the matter is considered to be a assessed the material assumptions made and key

key audit matter. judgments applied including the evaluation of

disconfirming evidence. Specifically, for matters
where potential obligations  existed but the
exposure was considered less than probable, we
considered audit evidence regarding the lack of
recognition and the disclosure thereof.

Management’s  disclosures  with  regard - 1o
contingent liabilities are presented in note 25 of
the financial statements. '

We evaluated the recognition and valuation of
material provisions and contingent liabilities of
the Bank based on facts and circumstances
available  regarding compliance  with  the
accounting standards.

We read where applicable, external legal or
regulatory advice sought by the Bank and
reviewed related correspondence and minutes of
Board of Directors and Audit Committee.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our

auditot’s repott thercon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.




In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

I, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in the
other information we are tequired to report that fact. We have nothing to repott in this regard.

Responsibilitics of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial seatements in
accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, the requirements of
Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etrot.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concetn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to

cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of directors is responsible for ovmseemg the Bank’s ﬁﬂanclal repotting process.
Auditor’s Re‘;ponslbllltles for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about Whethel the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our Opnuon Reasonqble assurance is a4 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit- conducted in accoxdance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ettor and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic deéisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control;




o} Evaluate the appropriateness of accouating policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

o] Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concetn basis of
accounting and, based on the andit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Eyaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among othet matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deﬂc1enc1es in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our mdcpendence and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes pubhc disclosute about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
5o would Leasombly be expccted to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on O'the_r_ Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of 'acc_o_u"ﬁt. have been kept by the Bank/branches as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XTX of 2017) and the returns referred above from the branches have
been found adequate for the purpose of our audit;

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement (together
with the notes therecon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 and the C ompqmes Act, 2017(X1X of 2017) and arc in agreement with the
bhooks of account and returns;




c) investments made, expenditure incutred and guarantees extended during the year were in
accordance with the objects and powers of the Bank / branches and the transactions of the
Bank/ branches which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank /
branches; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7
of that Ordinance.

We confirm that for the purpose of our audit we have covered more than sixty per cent of the total
loans and advances of the Bank.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb. '

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Karachi

Date:




SILKBANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Lendings to financial institutions
Investmanis

Advances

Fixed assets

Intangible assels

Defarred lax assels

Other assels

Asset held for sale .

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Liabilittes against assets subject to finance lease
Subordinated debt

Deferred tax liabilities

Other llabiities

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY
Shareholders' equity

Share capital - net

Reserves

Surplus / {deficit) on revaluation of assets - net of tax
Accumulated loss

CDNTINGENCIES‘AND COMMITMENTS

The annexad notes 1 to5% and annexure | and [ form an integral part of (hese financial statements.

Ghief Financial Officer

P
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’9.\ g\;_{g—a t)

Direcior

Note

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20

21

22

a3

24

25

2019

2018

Rupees In '000

11,828,662 8,871,567
1,168,163 309,994
18,101,837 12,612,156
36,245,350 28,024,003
105,374,947 98,364,002
5,910,389 3,881,271
247,077 226,840
4,864,227 3,068,647
19,737,679 20,231,628
2,229,728 -

206,688,080 176,570,009

2,483,658 2,866,568 |
34,973,231 18,051,854
148,853,513 || 132,664,084
- 2663
2,126,418 1,009,600
9,480,373 8,590,483
194,916,193 162,184,252
10,771,887 14,388,747
23,431,374 23,431,374
$20,890 820,690

256,510 (68,207)
(13,736,887} {9,797,310)
10,771,887 14,386,747

Gaat,
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President & Chief Executive Officer
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Director

Director




SILKBANK LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
Note Rupees In 060
Mark-up / roturn / profit/ interest earmed Y 16,697,201 18,506,213
Matk-up / relusn / profit/ interest expansed 28 J{15,081,744 {8,900,735)
Neot mark-up f return / profit f interest Income 1,816,157 6,605,478
NON MARK.UP ! INTEREST INCOME
Fee and commission income . 29 2,284,214 1,739,877
Dividend income 30 4,824 2,190
Foretgn exchange Income 473,842 138,850
{Loss) f Income from derivatives ) {72,753) 214,517
(ain / {loss) on securilies 31 » 537,974 {63671)
Olher Income , 32 8,133 1,386,009
3,236,234 3,414,872

Tolal non-markup / interest Income

Total Income 4,862,391 10,020,350

NON MARK-UP / INTEREST EXPENSES

33 {8,051,487} 6,781,153}

Operaling expenses
Workers Welfare Fund - (38,303}
Other charges : 34 (197.,007) {56,383}
Total non-markup / interest expanses _ {8,248,504) {6,874,849)
{Loss) | profit before provisions, extra ordinary f unusual item and taxation (3,396,913} 3,146,501
Provisions and write offs - net 35 {2,432,830} {1,268,673)
Extra ordinary f upusual ltems - . -
{L.OSS}/ PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (5,828,943} 1,876,528
Taxation 36 4,875,940 (648,895)
{LOSS) ! BROFIT AFTER TAXATION ' {3,063,003) 1,329,933

« L -~

Rupea

Baslc and Diluted {Loss) / Earnings Por Share 37 {0.44) 0.15

The annexed notes 1 1o 54 and annexure | and Ii form an integral part of these financial staterents. UStilng

Cistef Financlal Ofiicer President & Chlef Executive Offlcer
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President & Chilef Executive Officer
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Director Director Director




SILKBANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

! 2019 2018
: Rupeas in ’000
{Loss) / profit afler taxation for the year (3,963,003) 1,329,833
’ {
Other comprehensive income / {foss)
ftems that may be reclasslfied to profit and loss account in subsequent perlods:
Movament in sarplus / {deficit) on revaluation of investments - nat of tax 327,436 {109,225}
{tems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account In subsequont perlods:
Remeasurement galn f (Joss) on defined penelit obligations - net of tax 8,936 {20,608}
Movemant in surplus on revaluation of opsrating fixed assetls - net of tax =" {2,326} {2,326}
Movament In surplus on revaluation of non-hanking assels - net of tax {593) {9.379)
6,017 (32.314)

Tolal comprehensive {logs) / Income (3,614,350} 1,188,304

The annexed notes 1 lo 51 and annoxure | and H form an intagrat part of ihese financial statements, &7
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Chief Financial Officer President & Chlef Executive Officer
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SILKBANK LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Opening balancs as at January 04, 2048

Pralit efier taxation far (ho year anded December 34, 2018
Othar compreliensive (loss) / incame - pel of tax
Transfer o staluloty reserves

Transier frem surplus os revaluation of fined assels

on ageount of meramental deprectation- net of fax
Transler from surplus oa revaluatlon of fixed assels

on account of disposal of agsels - net of lax
Traasler from svrphes o revatuation of non-banking

assols on account of ranstarred to fixed essels- net of 1ax

Glosing batence as at Decomber 3%, 2018

Loss aller taxallon for the yaae ended December 31, 2049
Other comprehensive incomo f (Tossy» nel of 8
Teansfor 1o slatuloly reservas
Transier rom surplus on revatuation of fixed assels

on acconunt of Incrementsi depraciation- not of tax
Transfer feom suepius ont cevaluation of non-bankiag

2s80ls on account of disposal of assels- net of fax
Transfes from surplus on revalualion of non-banking

assals on ascount of ransferred (o fived assets- ael of ta

Gloslng bilante s 21 Decomber 34, 2019

tote

24.1

24.2

242

Surpius # [doficlt) on reyaluatlen Caplial Ravenuo
of Resorve Ryserve
Sharg Total Equity
Caphtal Investments Fixed f Mon Statutory Accumulated
vastman Banking Assols Reserve® Loss
Rupees In'000
23431374 135,885) 88,408 554,903 {10,857.654) 13,181,246
. . - - 1,320,933 1,320,433
. {160,225} (14,705} . {20,609} 1941,539}
. - v 265,887 {265,907} -
" . . . 3,679 1519
. . . - 13,065 13,055
. . - 363 03
23431374 1144,910) 76,703 B20.BED (9.787.310) 14,346,747
. . - - 2,953,003} (3,953,000}
- 327,635 (2,918} - 8,936 333,653
. . - . 3,579 3579
. . N - 8 a11
. oy . . R .
23,431,374 182,126 - 13,784 B20,898 {13,716,807) 10,774,887
Y

* Slatulory rasorves represent amount sel aside as per equirements of section 21 of tha Banxing Compantes Drdinance, 1962,

The anaoxed retes 1o 69 and snnexurg § and | {oim an integral part ofthese finarslal slalements. Q’\bf“)/
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SILKBANIK LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

2018 2018
Nofo Rupees in "G00

CARH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES
{Loasg} / profil befora laxation
Leas: Dividend income

(5,828,943} 1,676,028
' (4,824 (2,190}
(8,833,767} 1,874,638

Adjustments:

Depreciation on fixed assels - 122 &33 433402 397,74t
Deprecialion on rghl-of-use assels a3 673,378 .
Dapracistion on non-banking assets acquired in satisfaclion of claims 33 87,163 80,351
Amorlization of intangible assels 13,1 &33 65,275 71,384
Amortization of premium on mvastments - nel {133,602) 181,069
Finance charges on fight-of-use assels 28 477,101 “
Provisions agains! loans & advances 35 2,635,216 1,465,208
Gain on sate of fixed assels 32 {1,720 (9,734
Unrealized {galn} / foss on revaluation of investaents - hald-for-trating 10,4 &3 {1,268) 2,423
Shate of profit from associate 32 {5,227} (8,842)
1,085 { (gain) on sale of non-panking assets acquired in salistaciion of claims a2 190,084 {#72,008}
Provision aganst other assels - nel 35 (21,000) .
Wilte offs zainst ixed assels ‘ 35 2,080 2812
4,382,372 1,300,412

{1,461,385) 3,175,050

{incresse} | decrease In operating assols
Lendings to financial (nslitutions

Het Invesiments in hetd-for-irading secorities
Advances

Olher assels {excluding advance taxalion)

{5.468,681) £3,891,507)
10,043,287 (7,426,216}
{9,656,161)}| {13.958,486)

439,320 [ (424712
{4,657,235)  (25.797.831)

{Dacreass} / ncrease (n operating labitities

{382,910) {326,413

Hills payable

Borowings ot financial institution P 13,821,377 {17.530,145)

Deposils 18,185,420 22,386,277
(1,402,638} 1,070,253

Other liabildies (oxcluging current taxation} N
. 26,325,258 5,599,971

22,216,628 {17.022.810)
{669,885) {279,150}

Income lax paid

Not cash flow from / fused [n) operating actlitles 21,646,943 {17.3072,060}
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Nel investment In avaifable-for-sale securilias . . {16,467,930) 16.419,182
Net investment In held-to-malurities securilies ' {257,658) -
Dividand received 4,824 3,216
Net inveslmant in fixed assets and intangible assels 526,808) {696,669}
Proceeds on disposal of non-banking assels acquired Ja satisfaction of clalms 217,884 §,912,637
Proceeds on disposat of fiked assels | . 64,836 118,277
Not cash flow {used in) / from lnvesting activilles {16,903,951) 17,856,642
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING AGTIVITIES

Receipls / {repayments) of subordinated debls 125,818 {400}
trayemenl of financa lease obligation {2,663) {4,217}
Payment of lease liabilify against right-of-use assels (1,040,863) -
Hat cash How used {n financing aclivilles 817,698} (4,617}
Inctease in ¢ash and cash equivalenis . 3,826,284 645,965
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ol the year 9,181,561 8,631,598
Gash and cash equivatenis ot the ond of the year 38 13,006 845 9,181,561

The znnpxed notes 110 51 and annexure | and It form an mtegeal part of lhese financizl slatements. ‘l\';m’
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SILKBANK Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Sl bank Limited {ihe Bank"} was incorporated in Pakistan on April 04, 1994 as a pubfic fimited company under the Companies Act, 2017, Tha
Bank commenced commercial opesations on May 7, 1995. The Bank's shares are quoted on Pakistan Steck Exchange Limited. The Bank is
engaged in banking services as described in the Banking Companles QOrdinance, 1962. The Bank operales through 123 branches (2018: 123
branches) including 36 (2648: 30} Istamic banking branches in Pakistan. The Bank's reqistered offics is located at Silk bank Building, 13-t, F-7
Markaz, lslamabad. The short-term and fong-tesm credit ratings of the Bank rated by JCR-VIS Credit Raling Gompany Limited ia June 2019 are
'A-2' and 'A-' raspectively.

Major shareholders of the Bank as on December 31, 2018 are Santhosh Capital (comprising of Mr. Shaukat Tarin, Mr. Sadiq Sayeed and Mr.
Azmal Tarin), Aric Habib Corporation Limited, International Finance Corporation (IFC), Nomura Eurcpean Investment Limited, Bank Muscat
S.A.0.G and Mr. Zoolagnia Nawaz Chatler / Mr. Zubair Nawaz Chalter of Gourmet Group.

As at December 31, 2019, the equity of the Bank is Rs. 10.52 biilion excluding surplus on revaluation of assets. This includes share capital (nst
of losses and discount on shares) of Rs. 9,69 billion against the Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) of Rs. 10 billion as prescribed by State
Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Further, the Caplital Adequacy Ratlo (CAR} of the Bank is 5.81% (2018 10.92%) against the minimum CAR
requirement of SBP of 12.50% (2018: 11.90%). However, this requirement has subsequently been reduced to 11.8% during the year 2020,
Consequently, the Bank is non-compliant with MCR and CAR at year end which can expose the Bank to regutatory actions under the Banking
laws.

The management of the Bank has taken following steps to improve the financial position of the Bank and {6 mast the requirement for MCR and
CAR till the approval of the financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2020 as per the plan submitted by the Bank.

1. Subsequent to the year end, the Bank has realized capital gains amounting to approximately Rs. 5.5 billion from the sale of government
securities and additionat Rs. 1.4 billlon approximately (based on the PKRV rate issued on June 28, 2020, appticable for June 28, 2020)
also avallable as revaluation surpius.

2 Leiters of Intent (LOI} have been signed between the Bank's horrowers dealing In real estate and Federal Government Employee Housing
Authority (FGEHA) for the sale of certain underlying properties where substantial payment is expected shortly. Additionally, the government
has announced a stimulus package to uplift and provide the necessary suppert to the real estate/construction sector, Based on these
positive developments, the Bank Is confident that the NPL's would be cured shortly.

3. The Bank continues to meet Liguidity Coverage Ratio {LCR} and Net Stable Funding Ralio (NSFR).
4. The sponsor has prepared and submitted the capitaf plan to SBP in order o mest the capitat shortfall, if any.

SponsorsiDirectors are of the opinion that, faking into account the above mentioned plans and measures, the Bank would meet with the
requirement of MCR and CAR tilt the approval of the financial statements for the period ending June 30, 2020.

Eurther SBP has allowed staggering of provision against non-perorming loans (refer note 11.3.3) amounting to Rs 2.71 biilion and aliowed to
freat the genseral provision held against consumer financing as part of Common Equity Tier | instead of Tier H for the purpose of CAR
caleulation. Had this banefit not been taken by the Bank, profit before tax and CAR would have been lower by Rs, 2.17 billion and 3.12%

raspectively.
2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
24 In accordance with the directives of the Fadera) Government regarding the shifting of the banking system to Islamic modes, the SBF has issued

various circulars from time to time. Permissible forms of trade-refaled modes of financing include purchase of goods by the banks from their
customars and immediate resale fo them at appropriate mark-up In price on deferred payment basis. The purchases and salas arising under
these arrangements are not raflected in these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilized and the

appropiiate portion of mark-up thereon.

2.2 The Islamic banking branches of the Bank have complied with the requirements set out under the Isfamic Financial Accounting Standards
{iFAS) issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and nolified under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 except
for the adoption of IFAS-3 'Profit & Loss Sharing on Deposils’ as disclosed in note 3.4,

2.3 The financial results of the Islamic banking branches have been included In these financial statements for reporing pusposes, after eliminating
material inter-branch transactions / balances. Key financlal figures of the Islamic banking branches are disclosed in Annexure |l to these

financial stalements.,
3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

3.1 These financial statements have been prepared In accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, The
accounting and reporling standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- The accounting standards comprise. of such International Financial Reporiing Standards (IFRS) issued by the Internatienal Accounting
Board (IASB} as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Islamic Financiat Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounts of Paklstan (ICAP), as are notified uader
the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the Companies Act, 2017,
- Directives issued by the SBP and the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") from time to time.

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companles Ordinance, 1962, the Companles Act, 2017 or the directives issued by the SBP and the
SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and

the said directives shall prevail.
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4.2

4.3

The SBP has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 39, 'Financlal instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and
IAS 40, ‘investment Proparty' for Banking Companies through BSD Circufar Ne. 10 dated August 26, 2002, Furtner, the SECP has deferred the
applicabifity of IFRS 7 ‘'Financial lnstruments: Disclosures’ on banks through S.R.0. 411(t) / 2008 daled April 28, 2008. Accordingly, the
requirements of thase standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financlal statements. However, investments have been
classified and valued In accordance with the requirements prescribed by the SBP through various cleculars.

IFRS 8, 'Operating Segments’ is effective for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2069. All banking companies in
Pakistan are required to prepare their annual financial statements in line with the format prescribed under BSD circular letter MNo. 02 of 2018
dated January 25, 2018, 'Revised Forms of Annual Flaancla! Statements' {as updated from time to time), effective from the accounting year
ended December 31, 2018, The management of the Bank belleves that as the SBP has defined ihe segment categorization In the above
mentioned circular, the SBP requirements prevall over the requirements specified in IFRS 8. Accordingly, segment Information disclosed in
these financial statements Is based on the requirements lald down by the SBP.

The State Bank of Pakistan through BPRD Circular No. 04 of 2015 dated February 25, 2015 has deferred applicability of IFAS-3 for Profit & Loss

Sharing on Deposits issued by the ICAP and notified by the SECP, vide their SRO No. 571 of 2043 dated June 12, 2013 for Institutions offaring
lslamle Financlal Services (IFS). The standasd will result in ceraln new disclosures In the financial statements of the Bank.

STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO ACGOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS
Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Bank and adopted in the current year

The Bank has adopted the following new standards, amendments fo published standards and Interpretations of IFRSs which bscame effective
during the current year.

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annual perlods beginning
on or after}
- IFRS 16 - Leases Januvary 01, 2018
- IFRIC 23 - Uncertalnly over Income Tax Treatments January 01, 2019
- 1AS 28 - Long-lerm Interests In Associates and Joint Ventures January 01, 2019
{Amendments lo 1AS 28)

- Annual Improvements to [FRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 01, 2019
- 1AS 19 - Plan Amendment, Curail or Settlemant (Amendments to 1AS 19) January 01, 2019
- IFRS 11 - Joint Venlure - (Amendments to IFRS 1) January 01, 2019

Adoption of the above revisions, amendmants and interpretations of the standards iave no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended
December 31, 2019,

- IFRS 16 - Revenue from Confracts with Customers

IFRS 15 introduces a single five step revenue recognition medel for all contracls with customers, unless those contracts are In the scope of
other standards and, accordingly, has superseded IAS 11 'Construction Contracts', IAS 18 ‘Revenus’ and related Interpretations. Under IFRS 15,
revenue Is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects 1o be entitled in exchange for transfercing goods or
sarvices to customers. The adoption of IFRS 15 does not hava any material impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

- IFRS 16 - Leases

During the year, IFRS 16, Leases, became effactive from annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2019. The impact of the adoption of
IFRS 16 on the Bank's financlat statements is disclosed in note 6.1

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

The other new standards, amendments to published siandards and Interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on
January 01, 2019 are conslderad not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Bank's financial reporting and operations and are
therefore not presented here.

Standards, amendments and Interpretations to the pubiished standards that are refevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by
the Bank

T following new standards, amendments to published standards and interprelations would be effective from the dates mentioned below
against the respective slandard o interpretation.

Effective Date

Standard or Interpretation
{Annual pericds beglnning

on or after)
- IAS 8 - Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and January 01, 2020
Errors {(Amendments)
. IAS 1 - Presentation of Financlal Statements (Amendments} January 01, 2020
- Amendments fo Refarences {o the Conceplual Framework in IFRS January 01, 2020

Standards

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement January 01, 2021




- IFRS 3 - Business Combinations (Amendments} January 01, 2020

The Bank Is in the process of assessing the impact of these standards, amendments and Interpratations to the published standards on the
financlal statements of the Bank.

4.4 Standards, amendments and Interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notifled by SECP

The following new standards have been issued by the IASB which are yat to be notified by SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
{Annuai perlods baginning
on or after}
- IFRS t4 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts Janvary 0, 2016
- IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 01, 2021
5 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have baen prepared under the historical cost convention, except that certain fixed assels and non-banking assets
acquired under satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreclation and accumutated impairment losses (where
applicable) and certain investments and derivalive financlal instruments have been measured at fair value and net obligations in respsct of
defined benefit scheme are carried at theit present value,

These financial stalements have been prepared in Paklstani Rupae which is the fuactional and presentation currency of the Bank. The amounis
ara rounded off to the nearest thousand rupee, unless otherwise slated.

5.1 Use of critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in corformity with accounting and reporting standards requires managsment 1o make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels, liabllities, income and expenses. 1t also requires management fo
exercise |udgment in the application of its accounting policies. The estimates and underlying assumplions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongolng basls. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognized in the pericd in which the estimate is revised If the revision
affects only that pariod, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas wherse various assumplions and eslimates are significant to the Bank’s financla) statements or where Juclgment was exercised in
application of accounting policles are as follows:

511 Provislon against non-performing loans and advances and debt securitles {note 10.3.2 and note 11.3)

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio and debt securities (classified as Invastments) to assass the amount of non-performing loans and advances
and debt securiies and determine provision required there-zgainst on regular basis. While assessing this requirement, vasious faclors including
the past dues, delinquency in the account, financial position of the borrower, the forced sale value of callateral hefd and requirements of the
Prudential Regulations issued by the SBP are considered, except for loans and advances where relaxation has been allowed by SBP. For
portfolio impalrment provision on consumer advances and small enterprise finance, the Bank follows the general provision requirements set out

in Prudential Regufation.

6§4.2 Falr value of derivatives (note 26}

The fair value of derivatives which are not quoted in active maskets are determined by using valuation techniques. The valuation techniques
take into account the retevant interest rates in effect at the reporting date and the rates contracted.

6.1.3 Classiflcation of investments (note 10.1}
I classifying Investments, the Bank follows the guidance provided in SBP clrculars:

. Investments classified as 'held-for-trading' are securities which are acquired with an Intention to trade by taking advantage of short term
marke! / interest rate movements and are to be sold within 90 days of acquisition.

. Investmenls classified as 'held-to-malurity are non-derivative financiat assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity. In
making this udgmen, the Bank evaluates its intention and abiiity to hold such Investments to maturity.

- The Investments which are not classified as *held-for-trading’ of *held-to-malturity’ are classified as ‘available-for-sale’.
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Impalrment of "available-for-sale’ equity Invastments

The Bank determines that 'available-Tor-sale' aquity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decling In the fair
value balow thair cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Bank evaluates,
among olher factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, the impalement may be appropriale when there is an evidence of
deterioration in the financial health of the investes, industry and sector performance, changes In technology and opacational / financial cash

flows,

Deflned beneflt plan (note 40)

The liabllity of the defined banefit plan {gratuity} is determined using actuaral advice using the Projected Unit Credit Method, The actuariaj
valualion involves making cerlain actuarial assumptions as disclosed In note 40. Actuarial assumptions are Bank's best estimates of the
variables that will determine ine ullimate cost of providing post-employment benefits. Changes fn these assumptions in fulure years may affect
the liabllity / asset under the plan in those years.

Incoma taxes (note 36)

fn making the estimates for Income taxes currently payable by the Bank, tha management iooks at the current income fax laws and the
decislons of Appsllata Authorities on cerlain issues in the past For recovery of deferred tax asset recognized on unused tax losses,
managemant projects and determines future taxable profils that are probabla and will be avaitable against which these unused tax losses can be

utilized.

Depreclation, amorfization and revaluation of fixed assets {note 12 and note 13)

In making estimates of the depreclation / amortization mathod, management uses the method which reflects the pattern in wivich economic
benefils are expected to be consumed by the Bank. The mathod applied Is reviewed at each financial year-end and if there is a change in the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benslits embedied in the assets, the method Is changed to reflact the change in pattern.
Such change s accounted for as change In accounting estimate In accordance with 1AS - 8, "Accounting Policles, Ghanges in Accounting
Estimates and Errors”. Furher, the Bank estimates the revalued amount of fand and buildings on a regular basls. The estimates are based on
valuations carded out by independent professional valuers listed on the pansl of Pakistan Banks' Asscciation (PBA), under the market

conditions.

Falr value hierarchy of assets and llabllities {note 43)

The fair value of the assets and liabilities is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction
between market participants af the measurement date. The Bank cafegorizes fair value measurements within the following fair value hierarchy,

a) Level1:
These are inpuls at quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assels or llabiities that the Bank can access at the measurement

b) LevelZ2:
These are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 inputs that are observable for tha asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

¢} Level3:
These are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Depreciation, amortization and revaluation of non-banking assets acqulred under satisfactlon of claims (note 15.1)

In making eslimates of the depreciation method for non-banking assets acquired under satisfaction of ctaims, management uses the method
which Is consistent with depreciation method of fixed assets. Further, the Bank estimates the revalued amount of land end buildings on a regular
basis. The estimates are based on valuations carried out by Independent professional valuers listed on the panel of PBA, under e market

conditions.

Right-of-use assets and thelr related lease Hability (note 12}

The Bank applies Judgement to delermine the laase tarm for some lease contracts in which it ts a lessee that include renewal options. The
assessment of whether e Bank [s reasonably certaln to exercise such options impacts the lease term which significantly affects the amount of

lease liabiliies and right-of-use assets recognized.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policles applied in the preparation of these financlal statements are consistent with those of the previous financlal year,
except for changes in note 6.1

Change In accounting policies

During the year, IFRS 16 - Leases bacame applicable for the Bank. IFRS 16 replaces existing guidance on accounting for {eases, including IAS
17, Leases, IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Leass, SIC-15, Oparating Leases - tncentive, and SIC-27, Evaluating the
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 introduces an on-balance sheet lease accourting model for feases
antered by the [essee. A lassee recognizes a right-of use assel representing (s right of using the underiying asset and a corresponding lease
liability representing Ite cbligations to make lease payments. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard |.e. lessors continue fo
clagsify Ipases as either finance or operating leases.
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6.3.1

6.3.2

6.3.3

The Bank has adopled IFRS 16 fram January 01, 2019 using the modified retrospective restatement approach and has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitled under the specific fransitional provisions In the standard.

On adoplion of IFRS 16, the Bank has recognised liabilities In respect of leases which had previously been classified as operating leases under
IAS 17, These liabilities were initially measured at the present value of the remalning lease payments, discounted using the Bank's incremental
weighted average borrowing rate of $0.75% per annum at January 01, 2018, The lease hability Is subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method.

Decemnber 31,  January 01
2019 219
Rupees in '000

Total {ease liability recognised 4,297,275 4,538,401

On adoption of IFRS 16, tha associated right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal fa the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of
prepald lease payments recognised in the statement of financiel position immediately before the dale of initial application.

The right-of-use asssts recognised subsequent to the adoption are measured based on the Initial amount of the lsase lability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any inilial direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets are deprecialed on a
sfraight fine basis over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expacted pattern of consumption of future economis benefits. The
right-of-use assels are reduced by Impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of lease Fabllity.

The recognised right-of-use assefs relale to the following type of asset: Dacember 31,  January 01
2019 2018
Note Rupees in "G00
Building 4,187,049 4,860,427

The effect of this change in accounting policy is as follows:

Impact on Statement of Financlat Position

[ncrease in fixed assels - right-of-use assets 12 4,187,049 4,860,427
Decrease in other assets - advances, deposils, advance rent and other prepayments (287,362} (321,028)
fncrease in other assets - advance taxation 139,156 -
Increase in Total assels 4,038,843 4,539,401
Increase In other llabilities - lease lability against right-of-use assels 8.1 {4,297,275) {4,539,401)
Decrease It net assots {258,432) -
fmpact on Profit and Loss account 2019
Rupees In "000
Increase in mark-up expense - lease llability against right-of-use assels (477,701)
{increase) / decreasa In adminlstrative expanses:
---Depreclation on right-of-use assels 33 (873,378)
~-Rent expense . 163491
Decrease in profit before tax (397,588)
Decrease in tax o 139,156
Decrease In profit after tax (258,432)

While implementing IFRS 16, the Bank has used a singla discount rate methodotogy for a porifolio of leases with similar characteristics. The
Bank has opted not to recognise right-of-use assets for short term and for teases of low value. The payments associated with such leases are
recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with treasury banks, balances with other banks In cuerent and depasit accounts.

Lendings to / borrowings from financial Institutions

The Bank enters into transactions of borrowings (fe-pucchase) from and lendings (reverse re-purchase} to financial Institutions at contracted
rates for a specified pariod of fime. These are recorded as under:

Sale under repurchase agreements (repo)

Securitles sold subject to a re-purchase agreement {repo) are retained in the financlal statements as investments and the counter party liabllity
is included in borrowings. The differential in sale and re-purchase valus is accrued over the period of the agreament and recorded as expense,

Purchase under resale agreements {reverse repo)

Securities purchased under agreement 1o resale (reverse repo) are included In lendings to financlat Institutions. The differential between the
contracled price and resale price is amorlised over the period of the agreement and recorded as Income,

Securities held as collateral are not recognised in the financial statements, uniess these are sold to thlrd parties, in which case the obligation to
relurn them is recorded at fair value as a trading Habitity under borrowings from financial Institutions.

Other lendings
Other lendings include term lendings and unsecured lendings to financial institutions.

All lendings are slated net of provision, if any. Mark-up / nterest income on such lendings Is recorded on time proportion basis using effeclive
interest rate method except mark-up on impaired / delinquent lendings, which are recognised on receipt basis.
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6.5.4

Qther borrowlings

Other horrowings including borrowings from SBP are recorded at proceeds recelved. Mark-up sxpense on such borrowings is recognised on
accrual basis and Is' 'charged to the profit and loss account on time proportion basis using effective Interest method.

Trade and settlement date accounting

All "reguiar way" purchases and safes of Fnancial assefs are recognised on the trade dafe, i.e., the date that the Bank commits to puschase or
sell the assets. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financlal assets that require delivery of assels within the time frame
generally established by regulations or conventions in the market place.

fnvestments

The Bank classifies ils invesiments as follows:

a) Held-for-trading
These are securilies which are either acquired for generating profit from short-term fluctuations In market prices, interest rate movements,
dealars' margin or are securities included in a portfolio In which a pallern of short-term profit taking exists.

b} Held-to-maturity

These are sacurities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Bank has the positive intent and ability
{o hold fo maturity.

c} Available-for-sale

These are Invesiments, other than investment in assoclate, which do not fal under the "held-for-trading” or “held-to-maturity” categories.

Initial easurement
investments are Initially recognised at acquisition cost, which in case of investments other than "held-for-rading” includes transaction costs
assoclated with the investments.

Subsequent measurement

Held-for-trading

These are measured al subsequent reporting dates at falr value, Gains and [osses on re-measurement are included In the profit and loss
account.

Held-to-maturity

These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable
amounts,

Avallable-for-sale

Quoted securities classified as avallable-for-sale investments are measured at subsequent reporting dates at fair vatue. Any surplus / deficit
arising thereon is kepl In & other comprehensive Income and taken to the profit and loss account when actually realised upon disposal or when

the invesiment is considered to be impaired.

Unquoted equity securitios are vaiued at the lower of cost and break-up value. The break-up value of these equify securities is caleulated with
reference to {ie net assets of the Investee company as per the latest available audited financial statements. A decline In the carrying value is
charged to the profit and loss account. A subsaquent Increase in the carrying value, upto the cost of invesiment, is credited to the profil and foss
account. Investments in other unguoted securities are valued at cost less impalement losses, if any.

Investment in associates

Invastment in associates in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financlal and operating policies are accounted for
using the equity method.

Companles where there are common directors but the Bank does not have significant influence are accounted for as ordinary Investments.

Galns or losses on disposal of investments are Included [n the profit and loss account.
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a)

b}

Impatrment

Provision for diminution in the vaiua of securities {except Debentures, Participation Term Cerlificates and Term Finance Certificates) is made
after considering impalrment, if any, In thelr value. Impairment is recognised when there Is an objective evidenca of significant and prolongad
decline in the value of such securities. Provisions for diminution in the value of debentures, Parlicipalion Term Certificales and Term Finance
Cartificates are mada as per the requirements of the Prudential Regutations issued by the SBP.

Advances

Advances Including Islamic financing are stated ne! of specific and general provisions. Specific and general provisions against advances are
determined on the basis of Prudential Regulations and other disectives Issued by the SBP and ¢harged to the profit and loss account. Provisions
are held against identified as we!l as unidentified losses. Advances are written off when thare are no reafistic prospects of recovary.

Murabaha

Murabaha financings are reflected as receivables at the invoiced amount. The profit on that sale revenue not due for payment is deferred by
recording a credit to the "Deterred Murabaha Income” account. Profit Is taken 1o the profit and loss account aver the pericd of the Murabaha,
Goods purchased but remaining unsold at the reporting date are recorded as inventories.

Diminlshing Musharaka

In Diminishing Musharaka financing, the Bank enters into Musharaka based on Shirkat-ul-milk for financing an agreed share of fixed asset (for
example; house, land, plant or machinery} with Its customers and enters into perodic profit / rental payment agreement for the utilisation of the
Bank's Musharaka share by the customer,

Musawammah

Musawammah financings are reflected as receivables at the invoiced amount. The profit on that sale revenue not due for payment Is deferred by
recording a credit to the "Deferred Musawammah Income® accounl. Profit is taken to the profit and loss account over the period of the

Musawammah.

Fixed assets
Property and equipment

Owned assets

An item of property and equipment is Initialiy recognised at cost which is equal to the fair value of consideration paid at the time of acquisiticn or
construction of the asset,

Measurement subseguent to inftial reconnition

Property and equipment other than land and buitdings are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and accumutated impairment losses, if
any. Cost Includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of property and equipment.

Land Is stated at its revalued amount whereas buildings are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amount or recognised as a separate assst, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured rellably. Maintenance and
normal repairs are charged to the profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalised and the
assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Surplus arising on revaluation is credited to the "Surplus on Revaluation of Fixed Assets” account. A deficit arising on revaluation of a particular
asset is now to be accounted for In accordance with IFRS, which requires that such deficit can not be adjusied against surplus for any other
assef, but Is to ba taken to the profit and foss account as an Impairment. The surplus on revaluation of fixed assets to the extent of incremental
daprectation charged on the related assels is transferred to equity.

Gains or losses on disposal of assets ara taken 1o Income currently, except that the related surplus on revaluation of fixed assets (net of
deferred tax) is transferred directly to unappropriated prefit / accumulated foss.

Depreclation

o
Depreciation is computed over the useful fives of the related assels using straight line method so as to write down the cost of assels to thelr
residuat valuas over their estimaled useful lives at the rates given In note 12.2 to these financial statements, Depreclation on additions during
the year Is charged from the month of acquisition. Dapreciation on disposals during the year is charged for the proporifonate pericd with respect
{o number of months during which the assets remained in use, Same basis and estimates for depreciation are applied {o owned assels and

assets subject to finance lease.
Usefut lives and residual values of assels aré reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if impact on depreclation is significant.

Lease lability and right to use assets
Accounting policy applicable from 1 January 201%

As deseribad In note 6.1, the bank has applied IFRS 16 using the modified relrospective approach and therefore comparative information hag
1ot been restated. This means comparative Information is stilk reported under I1AS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The bank enters inte leasing arrangements for ifs branches, ATMs and warshouses. Rental conkacts are typically for a period of 1 year to 10
years and may have extension options as described below. At Inceplion of a contract, the Bank assesses whether a conlract is, or conlains, a
jease based on whether the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of ime In exchangs for consideration.
Lease terms are nagotiated on an Individual basis and contain a wide range of different tarms and conditions.
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6.9

6.9.1

8.9.2

fn determining the lease term, management considers ali facts and circumslances that create an econemic incentive to exercise an extension
option or not exerclse a termination option, Extension options {or perfods after termination options) are only Included In the lease term if the
lease is reasonably certain {o be extended (or not be terminated}.

The lease fiability is initiaily measured at the present value of the lease payments over the period lease term and that are not pald at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Bank's incremental

borrowing rate.

Lease payments include fixed payments less any lease incentive receivable, variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate which
are inltialiy measured using the index or rate as at the commencament dale, amounts expected to be payable by the Bank under residual valua
guarantees, the exercise price of a purchase oplion if the Bank Is reascnably cerfain to exercise that option and payments of penalties for
terminaling the lease if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that eption. The extension and termination options are incorporated in
detarmination of lease term only when the Bank is reasonably certain to exercise these oplions.

The lease liability is subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest rate method. The lease llability is alse remeasured fo
reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or to reflact revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

The lease Habifity Is remeasured when the Bank reassesses the reasonable certainty of exercise of extension or termination option upon
occurence of sither a significant évent or a significant change In circumstance, or when there Is a change In assessment of an optlon to
purchase underlying asset, or when there is a change In amount expected to be payable under a residuat value guarantee, or when there is &
change in future lease payments resulling from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payment, The corresponding adjustment is
made fo the carrying amount of the right-to-use asset, or Is recorded in profit and loss If the carrying amount of right-to-use asset has been
reduced o z&ro.

When there is a change in scope of a lease, of the conslderation for a leass, that was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease is
accoiinted for as a lease modification. The lease modification Is accounted for as a separate lease if modification increase the scope of lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assels and the consideration for lease increases by an amount that Is commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increass in scope adjusted to raflect the circumstances of the pariicular contracts, if any. When the lease medification
is not accounted for as a separate lease, the lease liability Is remeasured and corresponding adjustment Is made to right-of-use asse!,

The right-of-use asset Is inilially measured based at the initial amount of Initial measurement of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
macde at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direst costs Incurred and an estimale of costs to be Incurred to dismantle and
remove the underying asset or to restore the underiying asset or the site on which it is focated.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost modet. The right of use asset is depreciated on a straight line method over the lease
term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of fulure economic banefits. The right-of-use asset Is reduced by
impairment losses, i any, and adjusted for certain remeasuremants of the ease lability.

The Bank has elected o apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lsase liabllities for short term feases that have a
lease farm of 12 months or less and [eases of low-value assets. The lease payments associated with these [eases Is recognised as an expense
on a straight line basls over the lease term.

Accounting policy applicable before January 01, 2019

Assets held under finance lease are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accurulated impairment loss, if any. The outstanding
obligations under the lease arrangements are shown as & Hability net of finance charges allocable to future periods, Depreciaticst on assets held
under finance lease is charged in a mannar consistent with that for depreciable assels which are owned by the Bank.

Finance charges are allocated to accounting periods so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return on the outstanding fiabifity.

Capitat work-In-proaress

Capital work-in-prograss is stated at cost less accumulated Impairment losses, if any, These are transfesred to relevant category of proparty and
equipment as and when the assets become available for use,

Intangible assets

These include computer software and are recorded initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost lass any accumulated amortisation and
accumulaled impairment logses, if any,

These are amoriised over their finite usefut lives and amortisation is charged to the profit and loss account using the straight line method so as
to write down the cost of the assets to their residual values over their estimated useful fives at the rates given in note 13.1 io these financial
statements. Amortisation Is charged from the month of acquisition. The useful fives and amortisation methad are reviewed and adjusted, if

appropriate, at each reporting date.
Cosls agsociated with maintenance of computer software are recognised as an expanse as and when incurred,

Income taxes

Income fax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. income fax expense is recognised In the profit and loss account excap! to the extent
that it relates {o items recognisaed directly in equlty, in which case it Is recegnised in equity.

Current

Provision for currant taxation is based on ltaxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevalling laws for taxation on income
sarned. The current tax expense Is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the taxable profits for the year at
enacted tax rates. The charge for the current tax also Includes adjustments, where considered necessary, refating to prior years arising from
assessmeants made during the year for such years.

Prior
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The charge for prior years represents adjustments to the tax charge for prior years, arising from assessments, changes in estimales, and
retrospactively applied changes to faw, made during the current year.

Deferred

Deferred 1ax Is recognised on all temporary differences between the amounts atiributed to assets and liabilities for financlal reporting purposes
and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the Bank also records deferred tax assels on available tex losses. Deferred tax is
calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to tha period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacled or
substantively enacted at the reporling date.

Deferred tax asset is recognised only fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wilf be available against which the asset can be
utilised. Deferred tax asssets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax banefit will be realised.

The Bank also recognises deferred tax asset / liability on deficit / surplus on revaluation of fixed assets and securitles which is adjusted against
the related deficit f sueplus in accordance with the requirements of IAS 12 “income Taxes".

Impalrment of non-financlal assets

At each reporting date, the Bank reviews the carrying amounts of s non-financial asseis other than defasred tax assets to determine whether
there is an indication that those assets have suffered an Impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of assels is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the Impairment loss, if any. Recoverable amount Is the greater of net selling price and valus in use.
Whenever the recoverabls amount of an asset is estimated to be less than ils carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount and an impaliment loss Is taken to the profit and loss account except for impairment [0ss on revalued assets, which Is
adjusted against the relaled revalvation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the surplus on revaluation.

Provision from elalms under guarantees

A provision for clalms under guarantees is recognised when Intimated and reasonably certain exists that the Bank will settle the obligation. The
charge to the profit and foss Is stated net of expecled recoveries and the obligation is recognised in other liabilities.

Other provisions

Other provislons are recognised when the Bank has a legal or constrctive obligation as a result of past evants and it is probable that an oulflow
of resourcas will be required to seftle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each

reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current bast estimates.

Provision against identified non-fundad Josses Is recognised when Identified and reasonable cortalnty exists for the Bank fo setlle the obligation.
The loss is charged to the profit and loss account net of expected recovery and is classified under "other Habllities".

Staff retirement beneflis

Drefined contrlbution plan

The Bank operates an approved funded provident fund scheme (the Fundj for all ifs parmanent employeas. Equal monthly contributions are
made, Doth by the Bank and its employees, to the fund at the rate of 8.33 pescent of basic salaries of employees.

Defined benefit plan

The Bank operates an approved gratuity scheme for all its regular employees. Beginning from January 01, 2005, the entillement of the
employess commences on the complation of five years of service with the Bank. Projected Unlt Credit Actuariat Cost Method has been used for

actuarial valuation.

Re-measurement component, which Is the net of acluariat galns and losses, is immediately recognised In other comprehensive income,
whereas, service costs and nat interest Income / (expense) are charged to the profit and loss account.

Benefits for contractual staff

The entitlement of contractual employees Is based on number of years of service. Upor completion of 1 year of service, grafuity expense
aguivalent to & month's salary (withdrawn) is accrued. After the first year, expense equivalent o a month's salary is further accrued in each year
If the employes remains in service for major part of the year (181 days or more}. Paymenis against tiahifity are made to outsourcing agencies
when sligible employee leaves service. Unpaid expense Is Included In “other liabilitles”.
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Revenua recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the sconomic benefits assoclated with a transaction will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The foliowing recognition eriteria must be met before revenue is recognised. Revenue is recognised:

- Mark-up / return / interest on advances, investments, lending to financial instilutions and balances with other banks is recognised on
accrual basis that takes into account effective yiald on the assets except in case of advances classified under the Prudential Regulations
issued by the SBP (as amended from time lo time) on which mark-up / retura / interast is recognised on receipt basis. Mark-up / return /
inlerest on rescheduled f restructured advances and investments Is recogaised in accordance wilh the directives of the SBP,

- Profit on Diminishing Musharaka financings Is recognised on accrual basis.
- Profit on Sukuk Is recognised on accrual basis.

- Faes, brokerage and commisston on letters of credit / guarantee and other services are amortised over the tenure of the respective facility,
whereas account maintenance and service charges are recognised when realised,

- Dividend income is recognised when the right to receiva the dividend Is established,

- Renton property and non-banking assets is recognised on the accrual basis.

. Gain and loss on sale of investments Is credited / ¢harged to the profit and loss account currently.

Non-currant assets held for sale and assoclated liabiiitles

The Bank classifies an asset as held for sale if its carrying amount witl be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
conlinuing use. For this to be the case, the asset must be available for immediate sale In its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and cusfomary for sales of such assets and ils sale must be highly probable. For the sale o be highly probable, the appropriate evel of
management must be committed o a plan to sell the asset {or disposal group), and an active programme to locate a buyer and complete the
plan must have been inifiated. Further, the asset must ba actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in refation to its current fair
valus. In addition, the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of ctassification and
actions required to complete the ptan should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan wilt be made or that the plan will be
wilhdrawn A held for sale asset is carried at the lfower of its carrying amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Impairment losses are
recognised in the profil and loss account for any initial or subsequant weite down of the asset to fair value less costs fo sell. Subsequent gains in
fair value lass costs to sell are recognised 1o the extent these do not exceed the cumulative impatrment fosses previcusly recorded. An asset is
not depreciated while classified as held for sale.

Mon-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of claims / Other Real Estate Owned (OREC)

At the time of acquisition of non-banking asset, it is recognized on the basis of value determined by independent evaluators on the panel of
PBA. Al the tima of sefilement, The Bank carries cut valuation as per following criteria;

. For oulstanding loans exceeding Rs. 2 million, only seif-assessment is carided out.
- Atleast one valuation reports for fransaction amount up o Rs. 20 million,
- Atleast two valuation reports for transaction amount up to Rs. 50 mifiion,

. Atleast three valuation reports for transaction amount of more than Rs. 50 million.

Settlement value used for acquisition of non-banking assets is based on market value as per valuation report, however, setllement value 1s
restricled to average of lowest two valuation reports oblained as per above criteria. Land acquired as non-banking assels is recorded in
statement of financial position only when it Is transferred in the name of the Bank and recorded in revenue records.

Provision against non-performing advances and suspended mark-up / retur / interest is reversed on acquisition of non-banking assels,
howsver, suspended mark-up Is taken Into profit and loss account onfy when It is realized In cash through sale of non-banking asse! or

otherwise.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are stated at fair value less accurnutated depreciation and Impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation on non-banking assas is calculated in line with the deprecation method used for same class of assets In property and equipment.

Galns and losses on disposat of non-banking assets are recognised in the profit and loss account when the risks and rewards are transferred to
the buyer.

Foreign currencies

Forelgn currency transactions

Transactions in forelgn currencles are transiated Into Pakistani rupees at the forelgn exchange rates prevailing on the transaction date.
Monotary asssts and llabitities in foreign currencles are expressed In Pakistani Rupee terms at the rates of exchange prevailing on the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabifities are ranslated using exchange rates that prevailed when the values were determined. Translation galns
and losses are Included in profit and loss account.

Forward contracts other than contracts with the SBP relating to foreign currency deposits are valued at forward rates applicable to the respeclive
maturities of the relevant forelgn exchange contract.

Forward purchase contracts with the SBP relating to forelgn currency deposils are valued at the spot rate prevailing on the reporting date, The
forward cover fee payable on such contracts Is amortised ovar the term of the contracts.

6.17.2 Contingencles and commitments
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Commitments for culstanding forward forelgn exchange contracts disclosed in these financial statements are translated at conlracted rates,
Contingent labilities / commilments for fetters of credit and felters of guarantee dencminated In foreign currencies are expressed in rupee ferms
at the rates of exchange prevailing al the reporling date.

Financial instruments
FInanclal assets and Habitities

Financial assets and financial Habilities carried on the statement of financial position include cash and balences with freasury banks, balances
with other banks, lendings to financlal Institutions, Investments {excluding investment in associate), advances, certain other assels, borrowings
from financial institutions, deposits, bilis payable, liabilitles agalnst assels subject {o finance lease and other liabilities, The particular recognition
methods adopted for significant financia! assets and financial Habllities are disclosed In the individual policy statements assoclated with them.

Derivatlve financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are Inilally recegnised at fair value on the date on which the dersivative contract Is entered into and are
subsequentiy re-measured at fair value using valuation fechniques. All derivative financial instruments are carried a3 assels whan falr value is
positive and llabililies when fair value is negative. Any changa In the fair value of derivative financial instruments is taken 1o the profit and loss
account.

Off-setting

Financla! assels and financlal Habliities are set-off and the nel amount Is reported in the financial statements when there is legally enforceable
right to set-off and the Bank Intends either to settle on a net basis or lo realise the assets and fo salile the Habilities simultansously.

Segment reporfing

A sagment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that Is engaged either In providing products or services (business segment}, or in
providing products or services within a particutar economic environment (gaographical segment), which Is subject to risks and rewards that are
differant from those of the other segments. Segment information is presented as per the Bank's funclional structure and guidance of the SBP,
Following are the main business segments of the Bank:

Business segments

Wholesale Banking

Deposils, trade and other lending activities for corporales and financial institulions.

Treasury

This segmant undertakes the Bank's treasury, money markel and capital market aclivities. Treasury manages the asset and Hability mix of the
Bank and provides customers with products that meet their demand for management of liquidity, cash flow, Inerest rate fluctuations and foreign
exchange risks.

Consumer / SME Banking

Wealth management, deposits, mortgages, auto finance, unsecured lending and SME lending (including SME trade).

All assels, liabifities, off balance shest items and items of income and expenses are distributed In primary segments in accordance with the core
functions performed by the business groups.

Geographical segment

The Bank conducts all its operations in Pakistan.

Deposits

Deposits are initially recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on deposils is recognised separalely as parl of other
liabitities and Is charged to the profit and loss account on a tme proportionate basis.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value less discount on issue of shares. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, nst of tax, from the proceeds,

Earnings per share

The Bank presenis basic and diluted earnings per share {(EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing tha profit or loss atlributable to ordinary
shargholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares ouistanding during the year. Diluted EPS Is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects
of al! dilutive potential ordinary shares, If any.

Fiduclary assets
Assels held In fiduciary capacity are not treated as assets of the Bank In the statement of financial position,
Suhordinated debts

Subordinated debts are Initially recorded at the amount of proceeds recelved, Mark-up on subordinated debts is charged to the profit and loss
account over the pericd on an accrual basis and is recognised separately as part of other liabilities.




2013 2018

Note Rupees in'000
7 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
In hand
Local currency 1,677,166 1,829,723
Forelgn currencies 1,084,328 581,068
2,771,493 2,410,781
With State Bank of Pakistan In
Local currency current account 7.1 6,784,412 4,496,567
Forelgn currency current account 685,108 630,335
Foreign currency deposit account 7.2 1,276,607 1,210,071
8,746,125 6,336,973
With Natlonal Bank of Pakistan in
Local currency current account 198,679 121,243
Nalional Prize Bonds 122,385 2,590
11,838,682 8,871,567

7.1 Deposits with SBP are maintained to comply with the statutory requirements of SBP issued from time fo time {section 22 of Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962),

7.2 This represents account maintalned with SBP to comply with Speclat Gash Reserve requirement (FE-25 scheme, as prescribed by SBP). it carries
interest rates ranging from 0.70% to 1.51% (2018: 0.56% to 1.35%).

2019 2018
Rupees in "000
8 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
It Pakistan
In cuerent account 105,487 86,816
In deposit account 68 64
105,555 88,879
Ouiside Pakistan
In cuerent account 1,062,608 221,715
1,168,163 305,994
9 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Repurchase agréement lendings (Reverse repo} 9.2 13,751,114 11,665,534
Forelgn placemant 9.3 900,748 946,622
Bal Muaial receivable from Stale Bank of Pakistan 9.4 3,449,975 -
48,101,837 12,612,156
.1 Particulars of lending
In locat currency 17,201,088 11,665,534
In forelgn currencies 800,748 946,622
48,101,837 12,642,166
9.2 Securities held as collateral against lending to financlal Institutions
2019 2018
Further
Held by  Further given Held by I
Total givenas Total
Bank as collateral Bank eolateral
Note Rupees in '000
Market Treasury Bills 92149822 1,873,965 791,272 2,665,237 1,282,801 - 1,982,801
Pakistan Investment Bonds 921&922 5,496,997 5,638,880 11,085,877 2,839,616 6,843,117 0,682,733
Total 7,370,962 6,380,162 13,754,114 4822417 6,843,117 11,665,634

9.24 These have been purchased under the reverse repurchase agresment at the mark-up rates sanging from 13.10% to 13.75% (2018: 8.45% 1o
10.45% } par annum with maturities upto February 2020

9.2.2 The marke! value of securities held as collaleral against reverse repurchase agreement lendings as of December 31, 2019 Is Rs. 13,699.22 million
(2018: Rs. 11,626.93 miliion},

9.3 These have been placed with a forelgn bank as pledge agalnst Issuance of Standby Letter of Credit (SBLC) favouring VISA at the interest rate of
0.75% (2018: 1.60%) per annum with maturity from April 2020 to November 2020.

9.4 Bai Muajjal receivables from State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) carry profit at 10.33% per annum (2018: Nil} and are due fo malure on February 07,
2020,




10 INVESTMENTS

2019 2018
Cost/ Cost/
Provislonfor  Surplus/ Carrying Provision for ~ Surplus /
Amartised Amorised Carrylng Value
104 Investments by type: cost diminutton {Deflcit) Value cost diminution {Deficity
Note Rupsss In '000
Held-for-tradlng securitles
Fedaral Government Securitles
Marke! Treasury Bills - - - . 10,053,860 - {2,423) 10,051,437
Sharas ‘
Listed 2,160 - 1,266 3,416 - - - -
2,160 - 1,286 3,416 10,053,860 - {2,423} 10,051,437
Avallablefor-sale securliles
Federal Govarnment Secutitles
Market Treasury Bilis 10.4 3,636,303 - {697) 3,536,708 4,354,202 - {2,697} 4,351,505
Fatistan lnvestment Bonds 104 29,007,986 - 76,368 { 29,084,354 10,253,483 - {207,218) 10,046,265
GOP ljareh Sukuks 10.4 2,272,266 . 4,736 2,277,000 3,862,276 - {10,629) 3,851,647
Shares
Lisled 10.4 487,626 . 202,956 690,481 137,851 - {2,482) 135,369
Unillsted 10.4 5,680 {5,580) . - 5,680 (5,680) - -
Non Government Debt Securities
Sukuks - Listed 10.4 228,699 . (2,345} 227,354 299,527 - 714 300,241
Term Financa Certificates - Listed 104 37,500 - - 37,500 62,500 - {625) 61,875
Term Finance Certificates - Unlisled 10.4 8,180 {8,780) - - 8,780 (8,780} - -
36,685,739 {14,450) 281,116 35,852,296 18,984,299 (14,460) (222,937} 18,746,802
Held-to-maturity securitles
Shares repurchase (fully provided) 1056 74,910 {74,910% - - 74,910 (74,910} - -
Olher Federal Government Securities 10,6 267,668 . - 257,658 - - - -
332,668 (74,910} - 257,868 74,910 (74,810} - -
Assoclafes
SPI Insurance Company Limied 0.6 131,881 - - 131,881 125,654 - - 126,654
Total investments 36,062,338 {89,370} 282,382 35,245,360 29239,723 (89,370} (225,360) 26,924,993
2019 2018
Cost/ Cost/
, Provisionfor  Surplus/ Carrying Provislonfor  Surplus/
10,2 Investments by Segmenis: Am:;:ltsed dimnution (Deflcit) Value Amg;t;:ed dininution (Deficit) Carrying Value
Rupases In 000
Federal Government Securitles
Market Treasury Bills 3,536,303 - (597)| 3,535,706 || 14,408,062 - (5,120)] 14,402,942
Paklstan Investment Boruds 29,007,986 . 76,368 | 29,084,364 10,253,483 - (207,218} 10,046,265
GOP ljarah Sukuks 2,272,286 . 4,735 2,277,000 3,862,276 - (10,629) 3,851,647
Bal Muajjal 257,658 - - 257,668 - - - -
35,074,212 - 80,606 35,154,718 28,523,821 - (222,967 28,300,654
Shares
Listed companles 489,676 . 204,221 693,887 137,851 - {2,482) 135,369
Unlisted companies 5,680 {6,680) . - 5,680 {5,660) - -
495,368 {5,680) 204,224 693,887 143,531 {5,680) {2,482} 135,369
Non Government Debt Securities
Sukuks - listed 229,899 - {2,345} 227,354 288,527 - 714 300,241
Term Finance Cerlificates - listed 37,500 - - 37,500 62,500 - (625) 81,875
Term Flnance Cerlificates - unlisted 8,780 (8,780} - - 8,780 {8,780} - -
275,979 (8,780} {2,345) 264,854 370,807 (8,780} 89 362,116
Shares repurchase (fully provided) 10.5 74,810 (74,9100 - . 74910 (74,910) - -
Assoclates
SPI Insurance Company Limited 10.6 131,881 - - 131,881 126,654 - - 126,654

Total Investments 36,062,338 {89,370) 282,382 36,245,350 29,238,723 (89,370)  (225,360) 28,924,993




10.2.1 Investments given as collateral

Pakdstan fnvestment Bonds

103 Provision for diminution In value of Investments
10.3.1 Ogpentng balanca

Charge / (reversals)
Charge for the year
Reversals for the ygar

Amounls written off
Closing batanca

$0,3.2 Partioulars of provision against debt sacuwritles

Calagory of classification

Domestic:
Substandard
Doubtfut
Loss

Total

10.4  Quality of Avallable for Sale Secyrities

Delails regarding quality of Avaitable for Sale {AFS) securitles are as follows

Fodaral Governmeat Sacurities - Gevernmant graranteed
Marke! Treasury Bilis
Paldslan Invesimant Bends
ljarah Sukuks

Shares

Llsted Companies
Chemical and pharmacauticals
Services
Oit
Cement
Financial

Unlisted Companles

Paldsian Export Finance Guarantee Limiled {fufly provided)

Non Government Debt Securitles

Listed

Unlisted
- Unrated (fully provided)

2019 2018
Rupees In'¢00

21,153,482 6,468,112
6,468,112

21,763,482

89,370 89,370
89,370 89370
2119 2018
Non Mon
Performing Provision Perorming Provision
investmants Invostments
Rupees In'000
83,690 83,680 83,590 83,600
83,680 83,690 83,690 83,690
Cost
2019 2018
Note Rupees in 00
3,536,303 4,354,202
104.1 29,007,936 10,253,483
2,272,285 3,862,276
34,816,554 18,469,961
5 5
25,604 25604
47,845 -
113,673 112,242
300,399 -
487,526 137,891
2018 2018
Cost Breakup value Cosi Breakup valus
Rupees in "000
5,880 - 6,680 .
5,680 - 6,680 -
Cost
2019 2018
Nole Rupees in "004
150,000 200,000
37,500 62,500
76,699 99,527
261,199 362027
10.4.2 8,780 8180

10.4.5 Thesa Include securlies having face value of Rs, 72 milion (2018; Rs, 740 mition) pledged with United Bank Limited for Global Industrial and Defence
Solutions, Pakistan and LESCO as Guaranlor. Furlhsr, securities having face value of Rs, 35 mition (2018 : Rs. 38 miion) pledged with 8P as secuiity to

d to branches of the Bank.

facititate Telegraphle Transfer di ling facilties

10.4.2 Thesa représent zero coupon privalaly placed TFCs of Azgard Nine Limiited (relaled pady) acquired agalist mark-up settlemant of Rs. 8.78 milion on the credd

facilitlas provided 1o Azgard Ning bimited.

105 Partleulars relating fo Held o Maturity securitles are as follows:

Faderal Government Securities
Bai Muafat

Others

Shares repurchase (fully provided)

10.5.1 The market value of secusitles classified as held-to-maturity is Rs. 258 (2018: Rs. Ni).

Cost
2018 2018
Rupees in ‘000
257,658 -
74,510 74,910
332,568 74,810
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10.6.1

10.6.2

10,6.3 There Is no share of contingencies and commitments from asscctate as at Septembar 30, 2019 and 2018.

Invesiment In associate

Name of company

Proportlon of ownership
Interest

Country of incorporation

SPI insurance Company Limited

Tolal assels

Total liabilities
Revenue

Profit after taxation

Total comprehensive income

Movement In investment In associate

Investment at the beginning of the year

Share of profit

investment at the end of the year

23.08% {2018. 23.08%)

Pakistan

September 30,  September 30,
2049 2018
Rupass in '000

1,361,117 1,233,082
664,823 600,926
447,184 367,209

23,428 19,707
130,407 (864)
2019 2018

Rupees In '000

126,664 118,012
5,227 8,642
131,881 126,654

Summarized financial information of the associate Is based on financlal information for nine months ended September 30, 2019 because financial statements of
associate for the year ended Dacember 31, 2019 are not avaliable at the time of authorization of issue of these financial statements. There Is no difference between
the proporilonate share of net assets of associate and its carrying value accounted on equity method therefore no reconciflation is required.
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ADVANCES - NET

Parforming 1 NonParforming 1 Total ]
[Tzois [ 2018 || 2018 | 2078} 2019 | 018 |
Note Rupees In 300
Loans, cash credits, unning finances, afc. 71,248,276 69,879,752 14,976,290 6,366,874 83,224,566 76,246,626
Islami¢ financing and related assels 11.5 5,252,194 26,600,182 22,749,660 301,516 28,001,964 26,801,698
Bils discounted and purchased 1,007,348 411,194 3,113 6,850 1,010,482 417,844
Advances - gross 77,507,818 96,881,128 34,728,063 6,675,040 112,236,882 103,566,168
Provision against advances 113
- Specific r . l - I I 6,077,627 I 4,524,443 l l 6,077,627 f 4,524,443 I
- General 784,308 887,723 - - 784,308 687,723
784,308 687,723 §,077,827 4,524,443 8,861,936 5212166
Advances - net of provision 76,723,511 96§03-4°5 28,851,436 2,160,657 106,374,947 98,354 002
2019 2018
Rupees In 000
Partlsulars of advances (gross)
In local cumency 112,236,302 103,562,141
fni forelgn curencles - 4027
112,236,882 103,566,168
Advances Include Rs, 34,729 mition {2018: Rs. 6,675 mition} which have been placed under non-performing status as detafied below.
2019 2018
Hon Non
Category of classification - specific Performing Provision Parforming Provisfon
Loans Loans
Rupees in '000
Domestic
Substendard 1,643,094 196,928 983,161 127,978
Doubtful 4,911,888 516,582 521,267 49,873
Loss 28,274,081 5,364,119 5,170,612 4,346,692
Total 34,729,063 8,077,627 6,675,040 4,524,443
Partleulars of provislon agabnst advances
2019 2018
Specliic General Total Spedific Goneral Tolal
Note Rupees In '000
Openlng balance 4,524,443 687,723 5,212,166 3,730,788 556,280 4,287,069
Charge for the year 2,726,684 96,585 2,825,169 l | 1417828 131,443 1,549,071
Raversals {189,953) - {189,963} {93,862} - {93,862)
2,638,634 96,885 2,635,218 4,323,768 131,443 1,455,209
Amounts written off 1144 (585,447) - {885,441} {530,112} - {630,113}
Closing balance I g077,627 784,308 6,881,935 || 4524443 687,723 5,212,166 |
Particulars of provision against advances
2019 2018
Specldc Ganeral Total Specific General Tolal
Rupees i '000
In locat currency 6,077,627 784,308 8,861,035 4,524,443 687,723 5212,166
In forefgn cutrencles . - - - - -
8,077,627 784,308 6,561,935 4524443 687,723 5,212,186

During the year the Bank recorded addiionat NPL's, by and large, arising out of the accounts of the borrowers engaged in the businesses of real
eslatelconstruction seclor. This s mainly due fo stow down in the businesses activites of these seclors, tax issues felaling to these businasses and tha ban on
construction of high rise buidings in Karachl. However, a Leller of Interest (LOI) has bean signed between the borrower and Federal Government Employee
Housing Scheme Authority (FGEHA) for the sale of these underying propertios where subslantial payment Is expacted shostly, Additonaly, the gevemment had
announced a stimulus package to upRt and provide the necessary support to the real estate/construction sector. Based on these positive developments, bank Is
confidant that tha NPL's wouid be cured shorlly.

1t includes Istamyis advances amounting lo Rs, 20,160.95 mijon {2018: Rs. 19,437,865 milion) to certain borrowers who are engaged In primarily general rading
and raa! estale businass, which are malnly secured agalnst morigage of undardevelopediundsveloped properties. Dudng the year, the Bank has provided for the
above said exposure In loss category as directed by the SBP rasulting In provision of R$.2,712.885 mition after taking FSV banefil. Bank has recorded 20%
provision amounted to Rs. 642.597 miBion as ! Decamber 31, 2019, The remalalng 156% and 65% of the sakd prevision ameunting 1o Rs, 406.948 mifion and Rs.
1,763.44 miflion wi ba recognized in period ending March 31, 2020 and Juna 30, 2020 respectively, as directed by SBP vida iis letler dated June 24, 2020
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11.6

12

124

$BP vide various circulars has amendsd Prudential Regulations in respect of provisioning agalnst non-parforming advances under which the benefit of Forced
Sala Vakie (FSV) has been afiowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged stock and mortgaged residential, commercial and industiat properties {land
and building only) held as collataral against non-perferming advances uplo five years from the data of classification.

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank has avaited FSV banaRts against al non performing advances. Had the benafit not been faken by the Bank, less after fax
would have been higher by Rs, 5,738 {December 2018 ; profit would have besn lower 731 milion), which shall nol be avaflable for payment of cash or sleck

dividend f bonus o employees.

As per Prudential Reguiation for consumer financing lssued by the SBP, percentage of resarve is finked lo non-performing loans fo gross loans ratio.
Censequently, the gensral provisioning on consumer financing is maintained 8t 4% (2018: 4%) of unsecured portfolio of the Bank.

2018 2018
Nota Rupess In ‘008
Particulars of write offs:
Against Provislons 113 985,447 530,112
Directly charged to profit & loss account . -
936,447 530,112
Domestic
Write Offs of Rs. 500,000 and above 1143 578,674 177,821
Write Offs of Below Rs. £00,000 405,773 352,291
985,447 530,112

Detal of loan write off of Rs, 560,600 and above

In tesms of sub-section (3) of Section 334 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1862 the Statemant in respect of written-off loans ¢ any other financial relief of
rusess five hundred thousand or above atiowed (o a person(s} during the year ended Is given in annexure |

Information related {o Islamic financing and related assets is given in annaxure 1 and 1 an inlegral part of the financial statements.

2019 2018
Rupees In '080
FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 124 38,078 63841
Fropery and equipment 122 1,686,262 3,017,830
Right-of-use assels 6.1 4,187,049 -
5,910,389 3,981,271
Gapila] work-In-prograss
Civil works 808 22,427
37,270 41,214

Advancas to suppliers and contractors

38,078 83641
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Property and equipment

AtJanuary 1, 219
Cost / revalued amount
Accumulated depreclation
Mot baok vatue

Year ended Decembeor 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Disposals

Transfer

Wrile offs

Transferred to Asset held for sale
Depraciation charge

Closing net book value

At Dacember 31,2019
Cost/ revalued amount
Accumulaled depreciation
Net book value

Rate of depraciation

Af January 1, 2018

Cost / revaiued amount
Accumulated depreclation
Net book value

Year ended December 2018
Opening net book valug
Additions

Bisposals

White offs

Pepreciation charge
Closing net book value

At December 31, 2018
Cosl / revalued amount
Aceumnulated depreclation
Nat book value

Rate of depreclation

2019
Owned . Leased
Building Electrical,
Freehold | Leaschold | on BL‘;‘;‘;';‘E?O;’;‘ Fumitore | officeand | oo | Leasshold |SofarPanel|  Total
land land Freshold land and flxteref computer Improvements | System
land equfpment
Rupees in '000
1,907,321 15,4256 840,806 404,085 1,841,700 758,626 1,243,643 20,215 7,031,620
- {5,867) (288,997} (239,078) (1,464,004} {322,178} {777,678) (16,787) (3,113,980}
1,907,321 9,668 541,808 166,006 387,698 436,348 466,466 3,428 3,917,630
1,907,321 9,558 541,808 165,006 387,698 436,248 466,465 328 3,917,630
- - - 15,674 173,480 261,768 46,028 - 495,959
. . (221) (133} (62,762} - . {63,118)
- - - - - 438 - . (438) -
- - - (69} - - (2,021) - {2,080)
. (1,866,750} - {362,979) - - . - . (2,229,729}
. - (772) {42,040)  {31,207) . {117,823} (146,801) {91,879) {2,990} {433,402}
- 40,671 8,788 136,789 149,193 443,668 488,461 417,794 - 1,688,262
- 40,571 16,425 218,665 418,425 2,031,098 838,982 1,268,746 - 4,831,803
. - (6,839) . {81,768} (269,232) (1,587,431} (360,521) {850,952} {3,146,641)
- 40,61 8,786 136,788 148,193 443,668 488,461 417,794 - 1,885,262
- 5% 5% 10%  14.28%-33.33% 20% 10%-20% 20%
2018
Owmied Leased
Buiiding on | Building on . Eleclrical, offlce
Freehold | Leasehold Fumitura Leasehold Solar Panel Tolal
Freshold { Leasehotd and compuler § Vehicles
land land tand land and fixture equipment Improvements System
Rupaes n"G30
76,682 1,907321 16,426 790,812 340344 1,639,667 667,568 1,084,839 20,215 6,552,873
- - (5,006) (258,629 (213.121) (1,369,790)  (293,192) {698,209) {(12.744)  (2,848,784)
76,682  1,907321 10,328 532,189 127,223 269,868 374 376 393,630 7471 3,704,088
76,682 1907321 10,329 532,180 127,223 280,868 374,976 398,630 7471 3,704,089
- - - 49,993 66,650 215,023 255504 170,157 - 757457
(76,682) - - (140} (116)  (66,628) - . (143,563)
. - - - ()] - - (2,610} - (2.612)
- . [tEk}) (40,374) {28,785} {97,080)  (126,96) (89,712) {4,043} {397,741)
- 1,807,321 9,558 541,808 165,006 387,688 436348 466,465 3,428 3,917,630
- 1,807,321 5,426 840,805 404,083 1,841,700 758,526 1,243,643 20,215 7,031,620
- . (5,867)  (208.997) (239,079} (1.454.004) (322,178) (777,078} (16,787}  (3,113,990)
- 1,907 321 9,558 541808 185000 367,606 436,348 466,465 3428 3917,630
- - 5% 5% 10% 14.29%-33.33%  20% 10%-20% 20%

These include land and buildings revalued in 2008 by Habib Associates, an independent valuer. The revaluah‘oh resulted in a surplus of Rs, 116,67 milion. Had there been no revaluglion, the
carrying value of the revatued fand and buildings would have been fower by Rs. 55.49 milion (2018: Rs. 59.06 mition). The Bank's land and bufidings were agaln tevalued In financiat year 2015,
however, no revaluation susplus or deficit was recorded as the revalued amounis were not materially different from cacrying valuss.

The cost of fully depraciated property and equipment that are still in use is as follows:
Fumiture, eleclrca), office, compuler equipment ar others

Leasehold improvemenls
Vehicles

2018

2018

Rupees n '000

1,389,080 1,263,836
475,184 360,089
89,167 69,528
7805431 1603453
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13.1.4

14

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capilal work-in-progress
Software

Software

At January 1
Cost
Accumulated amoriisation

Nel book value

Year ended December
Opening net book value
Additions

Amorisation charge
Closing net book value

At December 31

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value
Rate of amoriisalion

Usefui ife {in years}

The cost of fully amontised software still in use

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deductible Yemporary Differences on

- Tax losses carried forward

- Post retirement employee benelis

- Provision for diminution In value of invesiments

- Provislon against non-performing advances

- Provision against Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF)
- Provision against other assels

- Depreciation on non-banking assats

- Unabsorbed lax deprecation

Taxable Temporary Differances on

- Susplus on revaluation of Investments

- Surplus on revaiuation of non-banking assats
- Surplus on revauation of fixad assels

- Accelerated tax depreciation

Note

24
4.2
24,1

2018

2018

Note Rupees in "000
63,918 65,167
13.4 153,168 161,673
217,077 226,840
900,933 870,574
(739,260} (668,088)
161,673 202,505
161,673 202,505
56,761 30,549
{66,276} {71.381)
153,158 161,673
957,694 900,033
(804,536} (739,260)
163,158 161,673
10-20% 10-20%
510 5-10
253,772 217,949
2019
Recognised In  Recgonised in
AtJan1 P2L AIC oo AtDec 31
Rupesas s "000
- 1,498,167 - 1,498,167
7,625 - {4,812) 2,713
3,073 - - 3,073
2,327,362 331,268 - 2,658,631
47,094 . B 47,094
223,368 {7,350} . 218,018
65,855 20,258 . 86,113
439,836 127,231 - 666,867
3,113,813 1,969,575 {4,842) 5,078,676
78,027 - (178,417} (98,390)
(2,534} - 318 {2,216)
(12,627} - 1,263 {11,274)
{118,232} - §6,663 - {102,669
(55,266} 15,663 {174,846) {214,449)
3,058,647 1,985,238 {179.,658) 4,864,227
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Deaductible Tomporary Differences on

- Post refirement employee benefits

- Deficit on revaluation of investments

- Provision for diminution In valus of investments

- Provision against non-performing advances

- Provision against Workers' Weifare Fund (WWF)
- Provision against other assets

- Depreciation on non-banking assels

« Unabsorbed tax deprecation

Taxable Temporary Differences on

- Post relirement employea banefits

- Surplus on revaluation of non banking assels
- Surplus on revaluation of fixed assefs

- Accelarated tax depreciation

The Bank has an aggregate amount of deferred tax assels of Rs. 4,864 million (2018: Rs

2018

Recognised in - Recgonised i
AtJan 1 P‘;ﬁ_ e gocn N AtDec3t
Rupess in '0¢0
- - 7,525 7.525
19,215 - 58,812 78,027
3,073 - - 3,073
2,330,390 (3,028) - 2,327,362
33,688 13,408 - 47,094
205,848 (2.480) - 223,368
52,070 13,785 - 65,855
913,807 {474,271) - 439,636
3,678,191 (452,588) 66,337 3,191,940
(3,572) - 3,572 -
(6,583) - 4,049 (2,534)
{13,780} - 1,253 (12,527}
{78,127) {40,105} - (118,232}
{102,062) {40,105} 8,874 {133,293}
3,476,129 {492,693) 75,211 3,058,847

. 3,058 million) which represents management's best

estimate of the probabla benefits expected to be reafised in fulure years In the form of reduced tax Rabiity as the Bank would be able to sel off the
profits earned in those years against taxable temporary differences relating to prior years, The Bank has prepared five years financlal projections for
fulure taxable profits, which have been approved by the Board of Direclors of the Bank, to assess the recoverabilily of deferred tax assets. The
projeclions [nvolve certaln key management assumptions uadedying the estimation of future taxable profits. The determination of fulure faxable
profits Is most sensitive to certain key assumplions such as growth of low cost deposits, growth in high yield consumer advancas, investment
refurns, polential provision against assels, interest rales, cost of funds and expected recoveries of classified loans. Any significant change in such
assumplions may have an sflect on the recoverability of the deferced tax assets. Management believes that it is probable that the Bank will be able
to achieve the profits and consequently, the defercad tax asset wit be fully realised In future.

Stalus of tax and other details are disclosed in note 36 fo these financial statements.

OTHER ASSETS

tncome / mark-up aceruad In local currency - net of provision
tncome / mark-up accrued in forelgn currency - net of provision
Accrued rent

Advances, daposils, advance rent and other prepayments
Profit paid In advanca on fixed deposils

Advance taxation {payments less provisions)

MNon-banking assais

Branch adjustment account

Mark to market gain on forward conlracis

Acceplances

Receivabla from sale of operating fixed assels

Receivable from sala of non-banking assels acquired in satisfaction of claims

Cthers

Less: Provislon held against other assels

Other assels - net of provisions

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assels acquired In
salisfaction of claims

Other assels - {otal

Market value of Non-banking assets acquired In satisfaction of ¢laims

2019

2018

Note Rupees in 000

5,823,662 4,738,974

5656 442

354,618 531,264

416,767 840,333

241,151 7,501

1,427,894 887,367

15.1 & 15.2 10,004,180 9,795,307
- 110,813

82,843 180,679

1,288,440 2,994,213

- 35,000

291,050 518,250

400,184 402,074

20,308,164 20,822,103
5.5 (602,274) {623,274}
19,705,890 20,198,829

31,789 32,760

19,737,679 20,231,529

1821 9,438,705 9,233,733
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16.2

16,24

15.2.2

156.3

15.4

16.6

16.5.1

The valuation of non-banking assets acquired in salisfaction of the claims were caried out by Eastern Consullants (Prvate) Limited, Minaco and
Jays Associates from among the approved list of valuer of Pakistan Banker's Assoclalion as al November 2018.

2018 2018
Nots Rupees in ‘000
Hon-banking assets
- acquired in satisfaction of claims 6,190,224 5,585,888
- under agreement {o sale third parties 3,760,049 4,018,283
- with buy back option with customers 50,017 191,158
15.3 10,001,190 9,786,307
Mon-banking assets acqulred in satisfaction of ¢lalms
Opening balance 9,233,733 10,839,165
Additions 540,880 83,791
Dispasels 1522 (268,765) {4,558,879)
Trensferred to fixed assals . (49,003)
Depreclation (67,153) (80,351)
¢losing balance 9,438,705 §,233,733
Galn on disposal of Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims
Disposal proceeds 277,884 2.430,887
less
- Cost 277,123 1,644,162
- Impalrment / Depreclation (9,269} (98,348)
- Surplus on revaluation a k] 13,085
288,765 1,558,879
- Loss on reversal of sale {20:0,000) -
(Loss}/ gain {180,881} 872,088

The non-banking assals acquired In salisfaction of claims (NBAs) aggregating to Rs. 10,001 million are currently us-developed and have been
evaluated based on lhe valuation reports from the valuers on Pakistan Bank' Association list of appraved valuers. The Bank exposure exceeds the
prascribed limit of 2.5% of aggregate advances and investments {excluding Investment in Government securilies) as presciibed by SBP under
regulation Debl Property Swap.

On June 01, 2016, the Bank enlered Into an Agreement to Seli {the Agreement} for undeveloped lands having book value of Rs. 3,416 million
againsl sale consideration of Rs. 3,416 miflion, Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Bank received a down payment of Rs. 170.83 millien.
The ramalning balance Is required to be pald by the buyer within & ysars from the date of receip! of certaln approvals from relevant authorilies,
however, the Bank through a Supplementary Agresment to Sell (the Supplementary Agreement) dated June 24, 2018 amended the Agreement and
removed the condition of approvals from relevant authorities. The balance sale consideration is payable within § years from August 01, 20146,
Further, the buyer initially agreed to pay annual rent based on the ouistanding amount of consideration from the dale of recsipt of approvals from
relavant authorities, however, on July 29, 2018, the buysr has provided the consent to pay annual rent with effect from August 01, 2018. Due to the
slow down In the real sector / consiruction sector and considering the aging of the recolvable batance outstanding against rent, the bank has
prudently reversed the rent recetvable and as per term of the Agreement, Bank adjusted the down payment of Rs,170.83 milion.

2019 2018
Note Rupees in '000

Provision held against other assets
Advances, deposits, advanca rent and other prepayments . 21,000
Naon-banking assels acquired In salisfaction of clalms 504,274 594,274
Cthers 8,000 8,000

602,274 623,274
Movement in provision held against other assefs
Opening balance 623,274 630,381
Charge for the year - .
Revarsals (21,040) -
Net charge for the yaar (21,000) -

Reversal on disposal / wrile off . (7,087}
Clesing balance 602,274 623,274
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18
18.4

18.1.1

18,1.2

18.1.3

18.1.4

18.2

ASSET HELD FOR SALE

On Seplember 10, 2015, the Bank entered into an Agreemant to Sefl (the Agreemant) for the previous Head Office Building of the Bank agains! sale
consideration of Rs. 2,370 milion. Pursuant 1o the terms of the Agresment, the Bank received a down payment of Rs. 118.50 mifion, which is
currently reported in 'other fiabiflies’ (note 22}. The remaining balance is required to be paid by the buyer within 5 years from the date of the
Agreement, The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the nel carrying amount of the relevant assets and Fabililies and, accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised on the classificatien of lhe asset as held for sals.

The Managsment considered the property fo mest ihe criteria {o ba classified as held for sale at that date for the following reasons:

I} The Propedy is available for immediate sale and can be sold i its current condition.
#) The sale i3 expecied to be completed before the end ef financiaf year ending December 2020.
i} The management is commilted to a plan to sefl and it is unlikely that plan will be significantly changed or withdrawn.

The patticulars of the assets to be classified as held for sale and related liabifilies are as folows:
Carrylng

Accumitlated Amount as at

Cost Depraciation December 31,
2019
Rupaes in 008
Leasshold land 1,866.750 - 1,866,750
Building on Freehold land 622,250 259274 362,979
Asset held for sale 2,489,000 259,271 2,229,729
Liabifity associated with assels classified as Held for sale {118,500}
Net assets of disposal group 2,111,220
2019 2018
Rupees In 000
BILLS PAYABLE
In Pakislan 2,483,658 2,866,568
Qutside Pakistan - .
2,483,658 2,866,568
BORROWINGS RS =
Detalls of borrowings
Socured
Borrowings from State Bank of Paklstan
Under export refinance scheme 18.1.1 1,712,901 1,647,067
Repurchase agreement horrowings 18.1.28&18.14 21,697,760 6,500,646
Total secured 23,310,651 8,147,713
Unsecured
Ca¥t borrowings 18.1.3 1,289,553 3,000,000
Trading liability 18.1.2 6,380,152 6,843,117
Overdrawn noslro actounts 992,875 61,024
Overdrawn tocal bank accounts . .
Total unsacured 8,662,680 9,904,141

31,873,231 18,051,854

The Bank has enfered into agreements for financing with the SBP for extending export finance o cuslomers. As per the agreements, {he Bank has
granted SBP the right to recover the outstanding amount from the Bank at the date of malurity of the finance by directly debiling the current account
maintained by the Bank with $BP. These bosrowings are repayable within six months. These carry mark-up rates ranging from 1% to 2% (2018: 1%

fe 2%) per annum.

These represent funds borrowed from the locat interbank money market agsinst government securities carrying interest rale ranging between 13%
{o 13.37% (2018: 10,10% to 10.20%) par annum with maturity upto January 2020.

These feptesenl unsecured borrowings feom the local monay market carrying interest rate ranging upto 13.756% (2018: uple 10.75%) per annum
with maturily in January 2020.

The market value of securities given as colizterat ageinst the repurchase agresment borrowings is given in note 10.2.1.
2019 2018
Rupees in '00G
Pariculars of borrowlings with respect to Currencles
[n local currency 30,980,365 17,980,830
[n foreign cuseancles 992,875 61,024

31,973,231 18,051,854
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19.4

19.2

20

21

21.1

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers
Current deposits
Savings deposits
Term deposits
Margin deposits
Others

Financlal Institutions
Current deposits
Savings deposils
Term deposits

Composition of deposits

- Individuals

- Government (Federal and Provincial)
- Public Sector Entities

- Banking Companias

- Non-Banking Financia! Institutions

- Private Seclor

2019 2018
in Local in Forelgn In Local In Foreign
Currency | currencies Totai Currency currencies Total
Rupees in '000

24,547,734 1 4,788,979 | 26,336,713 21,844,738 3,838,921 25,683,657
45,049,599 | 2,569,948 | 47,619,547 43,582,478 2,844,764 46,427,242
48,458,516 | 2,433,754 | 50,892,270 39,069,219 2,979,435 42,048,654
1,680,068 . 1,680,068 2,477,867 - 2,477,667
1,035,119 - 1,035,119 1,475,238 - 1,475,238
117,771,036 9,792,681 127,563,717 108,449,338 9,663,120 118,112,458
97,822 39,173 136,995 134,345 5,917 140,262
17,442,933 20,229 | 17,463,162 13,019,874 18,120 13,037,994
3,600,447 89,192 3,688,639 1,373,370 - 1,373,370
21,141,202 148,504 21,289,796 14,527,689 24,037 14,551,626
138,912,238 9,941,275 148,853,613 122,976,927 0,687,157 132,664,084

2019 2018

Rupees in 000

63,524,136 51,437,400
25,631,370 23,571,375
5,953,813 10,433,978
7,488,195 2,094,251
13,801,601 12,457,375
32,454,398 32,669,705
148,863,513 132,664,084

This Includes deposits eligible to be covered under insurance arrangements amounting to Rs. 78.77 billion (2018 : Rs. 55.01 biltion).

LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE

Not later than one year
Later than one year and upto five years

SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated Term Finance Certificates
Subordinated loan from Spensors

2019 2018
. Financial - .
Minimum charges for  Principal Minimunm Financial Principal
lease future outstanding lease chargss for outstanding
payments payments  future periods
periods
Rupsees in '0600
. - . 2,755 92 2,663
- - 2,755 92 2,663
2019 2018
Note Rupees in "000
211 1,989,200 1,989,600
21.2 126,218 -
2125418 1,999,600

The Bank has issued privately placed, unsecured and subordinated Term Finance Certificates (TFCs) as instruments of redeemable

capital under section 66 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the

foltows:

Issue amount
Issue date
Maturity date
Rating
Security

Profit payment frequency

Redemption

Rs. 2,000 miltion
August 10, 2017
Up to 8 years from date of issue
{BBB+) by JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (Triple B Plus}
The Instrument is unsecured and subordinated as to payment of principal and profit to all other

indebledness of the Bank, including deposits.

Basel 11l guidelines issued by the SBP. The key fealures of the issue are as

Profit will be payzble semi-annually In arrears on the outstanding principat amount and will be
calcutated on a 345 day year basis.
0.14% of the issue amount during the first 7 years and remaining 99.86% in last two equal
semi-annual instalments of 49.93% each.
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22

221

2214

22.2

Mark-up
Call option

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorbency cfause

& months KIBOR plus 1.85% per annum

The Bank may calt TFCs in pant ¢r in full, after 5 years from date of issue on any profit
payment date, subject to SBP approval and with not less than 30 days prior notice fo the
Trustee and Investors. The call option once announced will be lrrevocable.

As per the lock-in requirement for Tier IF issues, neither profit nor principal will be payable
(even at maturity) In respact of tha TFC, if such payment wilk result in 2 shortfall in the Bank's
Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR) or Capital Adequacy Ratio {CAR) or results in an
inerease in any existing shorttall in MCR or CAR,

The instrument will be subject to loss absorbency and / or any other requirements under
SBP's Basel [ll Capital Rules. Upon the occurrence of a point of non-viability event as defined
by SBP's Basel {ll Capital Rule, the SBP may at its option, fully and permanently convert the
TFCs into common shares of the Bank and / or have them immediately written off (ither
partially or in full). Number of shares to be Issued to TFC holders at the time of conversion will
be equal 1o the ‘Oulstanding Face Value of the TFCs' divided by fair value per share of the
Bank's common equity on the date of trigger of the non-viabitity event as declared by the SBP,
subject {0 a cap of 1,238,380,093 shares.

Due to the lock-in-clause as mentioned in note 21.1 and as per SBP instructions, the Bank has received an unsecursd and interest free
subordinated loan from the sponsor in order 1o make the payment of the instalment including profit therecn in respect of the above
mantioned TFC's. Upon compliance with minimum capital requirement (CAR), this subordinated loan will be repaid to the Sponsor.

2019 2018
Note Rupees in '000

OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up f return / interest payabte in local currency 1,041,287 790,382
Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 24,035 22,884
Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 54,912 46,079
Accrued expenses 377.682 123,679
Acceptances 1,268,440 2,894,213
Mark to market loss an forward contracts 422,803 30,004
Branch adjustment account 12,582 -
Payable to defined benefit plan - permanent staff 40.4 7,752 21,499
Payable to defined benefit plan - contractual staff 50,060 27,992
Provision against off-balance sheet obligations 221 116,012 116,012
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) 134,504 134,504
Advance received against fuiure sale of non banking assels 121,239 412,644
Advance received against fulure sale of operating fixed assets 16 118,500 118,500
Deferred income against non-banking assets 163,657 111,283
Istamic poo! management reserve 5,024 4,676
Leass liability against right-of-use assets 6.1 4,297,275 -
Non checking account 382,292 399,364
PRI remitting account 58,945 654,498
Funds received against application of Housing Scheme 149,570 -
QOthers 683,802 691,180

9,480,373 6,599,483

Provision against off-balance sheet obligations

Opening balance

Charge for the year
Reversals

Amount written off
Closing balance

116,012 116,012

116,012 116,012

This includes provisions made against letters of guarantee issued by the Bank.

Advance received Rs. 170.83 million against future disposal of non-banking assets (land) measuring 122,311 square yards, as disclosed
In note 15.4 adjusted as per term of the Agreement.
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23.2

24

2449

SHARE CAPITAL- NET
Authorised capial

2018 2018
Number of shares In '000

10,500,000 10,506,000 QOrdinary sharas of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

2019 2018
Number of shares in "000

Qrdinary shares of Rs. 10 eac
9,081,861 9,081,861 Fully paid in cash
- - Less: Discount on Issue of shares

9,081,864 9,081,861

018

2018

Rupees in '000

105,000,000 105,000,000
90,815,612 90,818,612
{87,387,238) (67,387,238)
23,431,374 23,431,374

AJsif Hadib Corporation Limited 1.e. assoclated company held 2,563,901,924 (2018: 2,563,901,924) shares which represents 28.23% (2018: 26.23%) of

\he equily siake of the company

SURPLUS  (DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

Surplus { {deficit) on revaluation of

- Available for sale securities

- Fixed assels

- Nen-banking asssts acquired in salisfaction of claims

Deferred tax on {surplus) ! deficit on revaluation of
- Avaitable for sale securities

- Fixed assels

- Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaclion of claims

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets

Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at January 1
fecegnised during the year

Realised on dispoesal during the year - net of deferred {ax
Transferred to unapproprialed profit in respect of lnceemental
depreciation charged during the year - net of geferred tax
Related defemed lax liabilty on Incremental
depreciation charged during the year
Relaled deferved tax liabllity on surplus reaksed on disposal
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as at December 31

Less: related deferced tax iiabiiity on:

- revaluation as at January 1

- revaluation recognised during the year

- surpius realised on disposal during the year

- Incremental depreciation ¢charged during the year

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets acqulred in satlsfaction of clalins

Surplus on revaluation as al January
Recognised during the year

Realised on disposal during the year - el of deferred tax
Realised on transferred to fixed assels during the year - nel of deferred lax
Transferred te unappropriated profil in respact of Incremental
depreciation charged during tha year - nal of deferred tax
Related deferrad tax liabfity on Incremental
depraciation charged during tha year
Related deferred tax llability on surplus realised on disposal
Related deferred tax llabiiity on surplus reslisad on transferred fo fixed assels

Surplus on revaluation of non-hanking assels acquired In salisfaction of cialms as al December 31

Less: relaled deferred tax liability on:

- ravaiuatlon as af Januany 1

- ravaluatlon recognised during lhe year

- surplus realised on disposal during the year

- surplus reallsed on transferred to fixed assets during the year
- increrental depreciation charged during 1he year

Note

101
24,1
24.2

14
4.1
242

14

2019

2018

Rupeoes n '000

281,116 (222,937)
55,485 59,064
31,789 32,700

366,390 {131,173)
(98,350} 78,027
(11,274} (t2,527)
{2,216) (2,534)
{111,980} 2,066
256,510 {68,207}
59,064 62,643
{2,326) {2,328)
1,263) {1,253)
55,485 59,064
12,527) {13,780)
1,253 1,253
(11,274) (12.521)
44,211 46,537
32,700 46,128
{593} {8,143
. (236)
(318) (2.922)
. {12
31,789 32,700
{2,534} {6.563)
318 3922
- 127
(2,216) (2.534)
29,573 30,166
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25.4

25.2

25.2.1

26.2.2

2523

253

25.3.4

254

Note

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees 251
Cammitments 252
Conlingent liabilties 253

Guarantees:

Financial guarantees
Performance guaraniess
Olher guarantees

Commitments:

Crocumentary credits and shori-term trade-related transactions
- telters of cradit

Commitmenis In respect of;
- forward forelgn exchange conlracts 25.2.1
- forward govemmaent securilles lransaciions 25.2.2

Commitments for acquisiiion of:
- operating fixed assels
- intangible assets

Commifments In respact of forward forelgn exchange contracts

Purchase
Sate

Commitments in respect of forward government securittes transactions

Purchase
Sale

2019

2018

Rupess in '000

11,110,083 13,264,365
27,332,813 30,031,232
1,256,952 1,143,884
39,609,828 44,459,491
50,940 547,893
7,511,701 9,081,896
3,238,422 3,854,506
11,110,063 13,284,305
2,458,744 3,152,159
23,463,537 15,400,082
1,361,959 11,418,204
633 14,668
57,970 38,119
7,332,813 30,031,232
14,798,456 10,847,808
8,664,082 4,561,174
23,463,537 15,400,082

928,110 .

422,849 11,416,204
1,351,959 11,416,204

The Bank makes commitments fo extend credit in the normal course of ils business but these being revocable commitments do not atiract any

significant panalty or expanse if the facilily Is uniiaterally withdrawn,

Contingent Habilities:

Ctalms agalnst the Bank nol acknowledged as det!
Clalms agalns! the Bank by Competitlon Commissien of Pakistan & others

2019 2018
Rupaes in "000
1,224,312 1,108,224
35,640 35,640
1,266,952 1,143,864

Suits for damages of R$. 24,40 bition {2018; Rs. 24.45 biflion) have been filed against the Bank | y various borrowers / employees in respect of cerain
disputes relating to foans and advances. The management of the Bank and its legal counsel conslder that the suils are a counterblast In response to
the recevery suits fifed by the Bank. Yhe Bank and its legal counsel are confident that the cases will be dismissed as aclual damages have te be proven

In such suits.

For contingencles relating to taxatien refer note 36.2-36.4.




26 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

2019
26.1 Product Analysis Forward Confracls
Counterparties Notional Mark to Market
Pringipal gain f {loss)
Rupees In 000
Hedging
- Banks 22,983,136 (362,050}
- Other entities 1,832,364 22,080
Total 24,815,497 {339,960)
2018
Counterparties Forward Contracls
Motional Mark to Market
Principal gain / {loss)
Rupees in '000
Hedging
- Banks 26,125,605 125,602
- Other entities 561,370 24,883
Total 26,686,975 150,485
26.2 Maturity Analysis
2019
Remalning Maturity No. of Notio-nal Mark to Market
Contracts ‘Prlnc:lpal Negative | Positive l Net
Rupees in "000
Upto 1 month 99 | 13,978,643 143,347 50,765 {92,582)
1 fo 3 months 93| 8,588,893 271,637 15,821 {255,816)
3 to 6 months 18 670,027 - 11,352 11,352
6 month to 1 year 9 648,924 111 4,905 4,794
1 year to 2 year i 928,110 7,708 - {7,708}
220 24,815,497 422,803 82,843 (339,960)
2018
Remaining Maturity No. of chhonai Mark to Market
Contracts | Principal Megative l Positive | Net
Rupees In '000
Upto 1 monti 83 | 14,235255 19,158 95,205 77.047
1 {0 3 months 48 | 0,653,693 7,662 72,381 64,719
310 6 months 211 5772072 3,274 10,763 7,488
6 month to 1 vear 2 25 955 - 1,230 1,230
1 year to 2 year - - - - .
154 25,686,975 30,094 180,579 150,485

26.3 Risk management related to derivatives is discussed in note 48.5.
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29

30

#

MARK-UP / RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EARNED

On:
Loans and advances
Investmants
Lendings to financial instilulions
Balancas with banks

MARK-UP | RETURN / PROFIT / INTEREST EXPENSED

Deposils

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Cost of foreign currency swaps agalnst forelgn curreney deposils / borcowings
Leass liability against ight-of-use assels

Clhers

FEE & COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking custemer fees

Card related fees (debit and credit cards)

Credit related fees

Investment banking fees

Commisslon en trade

Compmission on guaraniees

Commission on remittances including home remiflances
Commission on bancassurance

Others

DIVIDEND INCOME

Javedan Corporation Limited - relaled parly
Oil & Gas Davelopment Company Limited
Pakisten State OF Company Limited

GAIN (LOSS) ON SECURITIES

Realised

Unreafsed - held for trading

Note

31.1
10.1

201¢

2018

Rupees in 000

12,277,283 12,184,084
2,567,780 2,679,603
1,846,662 729,751

8,226 2,775

16,697,901 15,586,213

11,956,988 6,075,206
1,987,379 2.596,688

273,025 177,203
374,387 134,863
477,701 -
12,284 6,675
15,081,744 8,980,735
188,138 177,753
1,378,704 911,325
353,918 249,167
- 396
165,119 150,588
76,54¢ 107,442
20,687 17,250
86,379 77,058
10,819 48,988

2,284,214 1,738,877

. 2,196
1,925 .
2,899 .
4,824 2,190

536,708 (61,248)
1,266 (2,423)
537,974 {63,671)
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32

33

Note
Realised (loss) ! galn on:

Federal Government Securities
Shares

OTHER INCOME

Rent on properly and nen-banking assels

Galn on sale of fixed assets - nef

(Loss)}/ gain on sale of non-banking assets - net 15.2.2
Rent on lockers

Postage, telex and other service charges recovered

Share of profit from assoclate

Early loan termination charges

OPERATING EXPENSES
Total compensation expense 33.1

Proparty axponse

Rent & taxes

Insurance oa non banking assets acquired In salisfaction of claims
Uiities cosl

Security {including guards}

Repair & malntenance (including janitorial charges)

Depreciation on buildings

Depreciation on sight-of-use assels

Depreciation on non-banking assels acquired in saflsfaction of claims
Professional charges

Information technology expenses
Software maintenance

Hardware maintenance
Ceprecialion

Amorlisafion

Website development charges

Othar operating expenses

Direclors' fees and allowances

Fees and allowances to Sharizh Board

Legal & professions! charges

Qutsourced services cosls 33.2
Traveling & conveyance

NIFT clearing charges

Depreciation

Training & development

Poslage & courier charges

Communication

Stationery & printing

Marketing, advertisement & publicity

Auditors Remuneration 333
Insurance (including deposit protection)
Repairs & maintenance

Financlal charges on leased assels

Brokerage and commission

Subsciiptions and news papers

Entedalnment

Vehicle running & maintenance

Card related expenses {debit and credit cards}
Security

QOthers

2019 2018
Rupees in '000
663,261 {63,656)
{26,663) 2,408
536,708 (61,248)
52,870 368,088
1,720 9,714
{190,881} 872,008
19,969 16,637
41,630 48,496
5,227 8,642
77,698 62,424
8,133 1,386,009
3,714,935 3,377,501
38,053 763,238
1,071 1,266
225,436 198,783
169,320 108,038
82,672 68,680
134,400 140,856
673,378 -
67,153 80,351
30,424 11,863
1,421,896 1,371,944
207,359 120,538
94,392 59,891
56,566 42,184
65,276 71,361
371 269
423,064 294,263
21,850 38,565
16,088 12,818
482,268 289,684
53,160 26,617
120,609 86,629
15,882 12,893
242,358 214,701
24,738 30,020
53,060 32,756
371,959 226,075
81,800 69,223
425,441 268,283
17,396 26,331
143,188 65,051
100,381 80,417
169 505
10,158 11,478
24,283 19,039
54,768 45378
31,297 25,134
147,696 116,996
36,029 22,878
16,138 18,898
2,490,712 1,737,445
8,051,467 6,781,153
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332

333

34

35

38

36.1

Total compensation expense

Faas and allowances sfc
Managerial remuneration

i) Fixed

1} Cash bonus / awards slc.
Charge for defined benefif plan
Contribution to defined contribution plan
Rent and house malntenance
Ulifiles '
Medical
Conveyance
fnsurance
EOBI bank contrbution
Qlhers

Totat

2019

2018

Rupees in '000

16,638 12,546
1,554,915 1,401,851
650,249 584,147
113,417 125,511
93,412 86,837
756,636 683,604
4,187 3,357
161,069 139,213
317,660 294,102
45,211 44,302

. 308

1,943 1,725
3,714,935 3,377,501

Tota! cost for the year included In other operating expenses relating lo oulsourced aclivities is Rs. 60.5 million (2018 : Rs, 26.82 milion) pertains to
the payment to companies incorporated in Pakistan. The material outsourcing arrangements along with thelr natute of services are as follows:

Name of company

M&P

S First Solutions (Privats) Limited

Piintiink

TCS {Private) Limited

QOberthur Technologies Pakistan (Private} Limited

Auditors' remuneration

Audi fea

Fee for other stalutory cerffications

Special cerfications and sundry advisory services
Qut-of-pocket axpenses

OTHER CHARGES

Penatties Imposed by State Bank of Pakistan
Cperalionat loss

PROVISIONS & WRITE OFFS - NET

Provisions againsl loans & advances

Reversal of provision against other assets
Write offs agalnst fixed assels

Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts

TAXATION

Current
Prior years
Deferred

Nature of service

Printing and Dispatch of Statement of Accounts
Book Keeping/Record Management service
Cheque Books Printing services

Printing and Dispatch of Statement of Accounts
Printing of Visa Debit and Credit Cards

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

Profit before tax
Tax rale

Tax at applicable rate
Permanent difference

Defarred tax asset / minimum tax credit written off / adjusted

Others

Note

11.3
15.5.1
122

2019 2018
Rupees In ‘000
3,554 1,506
8,981 4,200
6,263 §,166
12,941 8,942
16,670 -
48,308 18,814
7,734 8,872
6,413 8,941
. 9,600
3,252 1,918
17,3886 25,331
162,453 32,566
34,554 22,427
197,007 55,393
2,636,216 1,465,209
{21,000} -
2,080 2612
{183,466) (189,148)
2,432,830 1,268,673
. 54,202
109,298 -
{1,985,238} 492693
{1,875,940} 546,895
16,828,943} 1,876,828
35% 39%
{%,040,130} 731,963
54,892 (193,499)
109,298 -
- 8,431
{1.876,940) 546,895




36.2

363

37

38

K}

The incoms tax relurns of the Bank have been submilled up to Tax Year 2019. The Bank has filed appeals before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue
{ATIR) against certain disalowances amounting 1o Rs.1,996 milfion (2018: Re.1,996 millien) made by Tax officer for Assgssment / Tax Year(s) 2000-
2001, 2001-2002, 2002-2003 and 2004, The disallowances ameunting to Rs. 788 milion (December 31, 2018: Rs.682 million) In respect of Tax
Years 2003, 2006 and 2015 to 2018 are pending at Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) (CIR {A}). Management is confident that the oulcome
of these appeats would be in favor of the Bank.

income tax returns for Tax Years 2011 and 2014 were selected for audil. The proceedings of the audit are in process, no order has been passed by
the refevant tax avthorities,

The procesdings ufs 161 f 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 regarding monitoring of withholding taxes peraining o the Tax Years 2011 lo
2018 were compleled. Orders were Issued by the Assessing Officer creating lotal {ax demand of Rs. 139 miffion (already pald by the bank) inciuding
defautt surchargs of Rs. 25 milion. The Bank has filed appeals against orders s 161 f 205 before CIR (A). The Bank's appeals for Tax Years 2013
and 2014 before the CIR (A} were rejected after which appeals before the ATIR, Karachi have been fied, which are pending hearing. Management is
confident thal the outcome of these appeals would be In favor of the Bank.

The Bank's refurn in respect of AJK operations have been submilted up to and including Tax Year 2018, Certain appeals were filtadt before the
various Appellate and other forums which are efther pending for adjudication or the proceedings initiated against the Bank have been dropped /
withdrawn. Management is confident that the outcome of pending appeals would be In favor of the Bank.

2019 2018
Note Rupees in "000

BASIC AND DILUTED {LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE
{Loss) / profit for the year 13,863,003) 1,329,933
Welghted average number of ordinary shares 9,081,861 9,081,861
Basic and Dituted Eamnings Per Share {Rupee) {0.44) 0.15
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and balance with freasury banks 7 11,838,682 8,871,567
Batance vith other banks 8 1,168,163 309,994

13,008,848 9,181,561
STAFF STRENGTH

Number of persons

Permanent 1,482 1,428
On Bank contract 2,944 2,684
Bank's own staff strangth at the end of the year 4,423 4,112
Ouisourced - -
Tofat staff strangth 4,423 4,112
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40.1

40.2

40.3

40.3.1

40.4

40.5

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
General description

As disclosed in note 6.13.2, the Bank operates an approved funded gratuity scheme for afl its regular employees. The
entillement of the employses commences on completion of five years with the Bank beginning from January 01, 2005.
Projected Unit Credil Actuarial Cost Method has been used for actuarial valvation dated December 31, 2019. The
financial statements of the fund are separately prepared and audited and are not included as part of these financial
statements. Contributed funds are placed in separate bank accounts maintained with the Bank in fixed deposit and super
saver scheme at the rafes ranging from 8% to 15% (2018: 4% to 10%).

Number of employees under the scheme
The number of employees covered under the following defined benefit schemes are:

2019 2018
Number of employees

Gratuity fund 1,482 1,428

Principal actuarial assumptions

The actuarial valuations have been carried out as at December 31, 2019 using the following significant assumptions:

Note 2019 2018
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 40.3.1 11.26% 13.25%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 10.44% 6.18%
Expected rate of salary increase 10.25% 12.25%
Demographlc assumptions
Mortality rates (for death in service) SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC {2001-05)-1
Rates of employee turnover Ultra Heavy Rates  Ulira Heavy Rates
Normal retirement age (years) 60 years 60 years

* Salary increments were assurmed to be given on 1st January each year.

The discount rate of 11.25% (per annum compound) is representative of yields on Pakistan Investment Bonds and high
quality Term Finance Cerlificates.

2019 2018

Note Rupees in '000
Reconciliation of payable to / (recelvable from) defined
benefit plans
Present value of obligations 708,616 607,536
Fair value of plan asseis (700,863) (586,037)
Payable / (receivable) 7,162 21,499
Movement [n defined benefit obligations
Obligations at the beginning of the year 607,536 523,307
Current service cost 82,676 74,938
Interest cost 80,971 42 980
Benefits paid by the Bank {34,931) (55,439)
Re-measurement loss 4082 {27,636) 21,770

Obligations at the end of the year 708,616 607,536




40.6

40.7

40.8
40.8.1

40.8.2

40.9

40.9.1

40.10

2019 2018

Note Rupees in '000

Movement in falr value of plan assets
Fair value at the beginning of the year 586,037 533,514
Interest income on plan assets 78,294 43,770
Confribution by the Bank - net 85,353 74,128
Benefils paid by the Bank (34,931} (55,439}
Re-measurements: Net return on plan assets

over interest loss 40.8.2 (13,890) (9,936)
Falr value at the end of the year 700,863 586,037

Movement in {receivable) / payable under defined bhenefit schemes

Opening balance 21,499 {10,207)
Charge / (reversal} for the year 85,362 74,128
Contribution by the Bank - net {85,353) (74,128)
Re-measurement loss / {(gain) recognised in OCI

during the year . {13,746) 31,706
Closing balance 7,752 21,499

Charge for defined benefit plans

Cost recognlsed in profit and loss

Current service cost 82,676 74,938

Net interest on defined benefit asset / liability 2,677 (810}
85,352 74,128

Re-measurements recognised in OCI during the year

Loss on obligation .

- Financial assumptions (7,079) 15,162

- Experience adjustment (20,657) 6,608

Return on plan assets over interest loss 13,890 9,936

Total re-measurements recognised in OCI (13,746} 31,706

Components of plan assets

Cash and cash equivalents - net 37,265 28,477
Government Securities 259,345 159,693
Term Deposit Receipt 379,000 369,000
National Investment Trust Units T 10,086
Mutual Funds 25,253 18,781

700,863 586,037

f

The significant risk associated with the plan assets are disclosed in note 39.15. o
.
Sensitivity analysis o

The sensilivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. in praclice,
this Is unlikely to accur and changes in some of the assumptions rmay be correlated. When calcidating the sensitivity of
the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method {present valug of the defined benefit
obligation calculated with the Projected Unit Credil Actuarial Cost Method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied as when calculating net defined benefit asset recognised within the statement of financial gosition. The increase /
(decreass) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each assumption Is summarised as
ilustrated below:

I
|




40.11

40.12

40.13

40.14

40.16

1% increase in discount rate
1% decrease in discount rate
1 % increase in expected rale of salary increase
1 % decrease in expected rate of salary increase

Expected contributions to be paid to the fund in the next financial year

Expected charge for the next financial year

2019
Rupees in '000

(35,934)
39,889
43,276

(39,613)

89,626

89,626

Maturity proflle

The weighted average duration of the obligation (in years)

Funding policy

2018 2018

§.33 5.34

An impficit, though not formally expressed objective is that the liabilities under the scheme in respect of members in
service on the valuation date on a going concern basis and having regard to projected future salary increases, should be
covered by the fund on the valuation date, the total book reserve as of the valuation date, future contributions fo the fund,
future additions to the book reserve and future projected investment income of the fund.

As far as possible, there is an implicit objective that the contribution to the fund should remain reasonably stable as a
percantage of salaries, under the Actuarial Cost Method employed.

The significant risk associated with the staff retiremient benefit schemes may be:

Asset volatility

Changes in bond yields

Inflation risk

The Defingd Benefit Gratuity Fund is invested heavily in
cash or cash like investments which carry minute volatility
risk. Around thirly percent is invested in PIB's which will
be maturing next year which is giving rise to reinvestment
risk. Only five percent is invested In mutual funds giving
rise. The asset class is volatile with reference to the vield
on this class. This risk should be viewed together with
change in the bond yield risk.to market volatility risk for
this asset class. There is no corporate bond exposure,
Thus, no settlement risi.

There are two dimensions to the changes in bond yields:
first, as described above; second, the valuation of the
gratuity liability is discounted with reference to these
bond yields. So any increase in bond yields will lower the
gratuity liability and vice versa, but, it will also lower the
asset values. {

The salary inflation is the major risk that the gratulty fund
liability carries. In a general economic sense and in &
longer view, there is a case that if bond yields increase,
the change in salary inflation generally offsets the gains
from the decrease in- discounted graltuity fiability. But
viewed with the fact that asset values will also decrease,
the saary inflation dogs, as an overall affect, increases
the net liability of the Bank.
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Life expectancy / withdrawal rate

Retention risk

Final salary risk

Model risk

Operational Risk related to a separate entity

Compliance risk

Legal / political risk

Concentration risk of investment in self

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The gratuity is paid off at the maximum of age 60. The
Life expectancy is in almost minimal range and is quite
predictable in the ages when the employee is in the
acoredited employment of the Bank for the purpose of the
gratuity. Thus, the risk of life expectancy is almost
negligible. Howaver, had a post- retirement benefit been
given by the Bank like monthly pension, post-retirement
medical efc., this would have been a significant risk which
would have been quite difficult to value even by using
advance moriality improvement models. The withdrawal
risk is dependent upon the: benefit structure; age and
retention profile of the staff; the valuation methodology,
and long-term valuation assumptions. In this case, it is
not a significant risk.

The risk that employee will not be motivated fo continue
the service or start working with the Bank if ho market
comparable retirement benefit is provided.

The risk, for defined benefit gratuity, that any
disproportionate salary merit increases in later service
years will give rise to mulliplicative increase in the
gratuily liabilily as such increase is applicable to all the
past years of service.

The defined benefit gratuily liability is usually actuarially
valued each year. Furiher, the assets in the Gratuity Fund
are also marked to market. This two-tier valuation gives
rise to the modal risk.

Retirement benefits are funded through a separate trust

fund which is a different legal entity than the Bank.
Generally, the protocols, processes and conventions
used throughout the Bank are not applicable or are not
actively applied to the retirement benefit funds. This gives
rise to some specific operational risks.

The risk that retirement benefits offered by the Bank does
not comply with minimum statutory requirements.

The risk that the legalipolitical environment changes and
the Bank is require¢ to offer additional or different
retirement benefits thai what the Bank projected.

Though the gratuity fur4 is a separate entity, 70% of the
Fund Is Invested or placed with the Bank itself giving rise
to a concentration risk that gratuity fund may not be able
to payoff its liability if Bank defaults.

The Bank operates an approved funded contributory provident fund for all its permanent employees to which equal
monthly contributions are made both by the Bank and the employees al the rate of 8.33% of basic salary, The financial
statements of the fund are separately prepared and audited and are not included as part of these financial statements.
Conteibution funds are placed with separate bank accounts maintained with the Bank in fixed deposit and super saver
scheme at the rates ranging from 8% to 14% (2018: 4% to 15%).




42 COMPENSATION OF DIREGTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

421 Total Compensation Expense

2019
Directors
Members Key
. Executives President /
ltems Chairman | (other than Non_- Sharlah CEO Management
Executives Board Personnel
CEQ)
Rupees in '000
Fees and allowances - - 21,850 12,180 - -
Managerial remuneration
i} Fixed - 19,456 - 1,286 46,545 618,766
iy Gash bonus / awards ete. - - - 385 - 30,405
Contribution to defined contribution plan - 4,621 - 107 3,877 44,111
Rent & house maintenance - 9,728 - 642 23,273 309,383
Utilities - - - - 4,517 -
Medical “ 1,946 - 429 4,655 61,877
Conveyance - 3,891 - 257 9,309 123,753
Car - - - 102 - 9,537
Bonus and Others - - - - - 10,050
Total - 38,642 21,850 15,088 92,176 1,207,882
Number of Persons ' - 1 5 3 1 228
2018
Directors
- Members . Key
ltems Chai Ei:c?tt':es Non- Shariah Preg:;igntl Management
airman | {other than Executives Board Personnel
CEQ)
Rupees in ‘000
Fees and allowances 6,185 - 30,400 10,365 - -
Managerial remunaration
iy Fixed - 18,526 - 1,154 42,882 558,468
iy Cash bonus / awards elc. - 4,519 - - 45,000 96,543
Contribution to defined contribution plan - 1,543 - 72 3,672 -
Rent & house maintenance - 9,263 - 577 21,441 41,490
Utitities - - - - 3,171 279,234
Medical - 1,853 - 115 4,288 -
Conveyance - 3,705 - 231 8576 56,004
Car - . - 302 - 111,693
Bonus and Others - 360 - 94 - 35,417
Total 6,185 39,769 30,400 12,910 98,930 1,178,939
Number of Persons 1 1 5 3 1 214

42,11 During the year, the Ghairman Mr. Munnawar Hamid resigned from the Board.




42.2  Remuneration pald to Directors for participation in Board and Committee Meetings

2019
Meeting fees and allowances paid
Board Committees
Sr. .
Nawne of Director Board Human
No. Risk Audit . Total Amount
meetings | Resource Committes | Committee IT Committee Paid
Committes
Rupees In "000
1 My, Khalid Aziz Mirza 1,800 1,900 - - . 3,800
2 M Shehzad Enver Murad 1,800 - 1,900 1,900 - 5,700
3 Mr. Nasim Beg 1,425 . - 1,425 - 2,850
4  Mr. Tariq Igbal Khan 1,900 - 1,900 1,900 - 5,700
5 M, Rashid Akhtar Chughtai 1,900 1,900 . - - 3,800
Total 9,025 3,800 3,800 5,225 - 21,850
2018
Meeting fess and allowances paid
s Board Commiitees
13
' Name of Director Board Human . .
No. . Risk Audit ; Total Amount
meetings Resource : . IT Commiittee .
Commillee Committee | Committes Paid
Rupees in '000
1 Mr. Munnawar Hamid 3,810 2,375 - - - 8,185
2 M. Khalid Aziz Mirza 2 850 2375 - - - 5,225
3 Mr. Shehzad Enver Murad 2,850 - 1,900 1,900 - 6,650
4  Mr. Nasim Beg 2,850 - - 1,900 1,900 6,650
& M. Tarig lgbal Khan 2,850 - 1,900 1,900 - 6,650
6  Mr. Rashid Akhtar Chughtai 2,850 2,375 - - - 5,225
Total 18,060 7,125 3,800 5,700 1,900 36,585
42,3 Remuneration pald to Sharlah Board Members
2019 2018
Resldent Non- Resident | Non-Resident
ltems Chairman Members Resident | Chairman Mombers Member(s)
Membaer(s)
Rupees In '000
Fees and Allowances 9,600 2,680 - 8,000 2,365 -
b. Manageriat Remuneration
i) Fixed - 1,286 - - 1,154 -
ity Cash Bonus / Awards - 385 - - - -
Contribution to defined contribution plan - 407 - - 72 .
Rent & house malntenance - 642 - - 577 -
Medical - i29 - - 115 -
Conveyance - 257 - - 231 -
Car - 102 - - 302 -
Total Amount 9,600 5,488 - 8,000 4,816 -
Total Numher of Persons 1 2 - 1 2 -
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43.1

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The fair value of traded investmenls Is based on quoted market prices. Falr value of unquoted equity Investments other than investments
in associatas is determined on the basis of break up value of lness investments as per tha latest available audited financlal stalements.

Fair vajue of fixed term loans, other assets, other tiabililies, fixed term deposits and borrowings cannot be calculated with sufficient
raliability dus fo absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and ratiable data regarding market rates for simitar

Instruments.

The Bank’s policy Is to recognise transfers Into and out of the differsnt fair value hierarchy levels at the date the evant or change In
clrcumstances that caused the transfer occurred. There were no transfers betwaen levels 1 and 2 during the period.

In the opinlon of the management, the fair value of the remaining financlal assets and liabilities are not significantly different from their
carrying values since assets and liabilitles are sither shortterm tn nature or in the case of customer loans and deposits are freguently re-

priced,
Falr value of financial assets

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

bavel 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assels or llabiities.

Level 2: ’ Fair value measuremants using inpuls other than quoted prices includec wilhin Level 1 that are observabls for the
assets or liahility, either directly i.e. as pricos) or indirectly {i.e. derived fron prices).

Level 3: Fair valua measurements using input for the asset or Rability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting pefiod oy the level In the fair value hierarchy into
which the fair value measurement is categorised:

2019
Carrylng
Value Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in '000
On balance sheet financlal Instruments
Financlal assets - measured at falr value
Investments:
Federal Government Securities
Market Treasury Bills 3,636,706 - i 3,535,708 - 3,636,706
Pakistan Investment Bonds 29,064,354 - ¢ 29,084,354 - 29,084,354
GOP ljarah Sukuks 2,277,000 - 2,277,000 - 2,277,000
Bai Muajial 257,658 . 257,658 - 257,658
Shares
Listed companies £93,887 693,897 - - $93,887
Non-Government Debt Securities ;
Sukuks - listed 227,354 - 227,364 . 227,364
Term Financs Certificates - listed 37,600 . 37,600 . 37,500
36,113,469 693,897 36,419,672 - 36,113,469
Financtal assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value .
Cash and balances with freasury banks 11,838,682 - - - -
Balances with other banks 1,168,163 - - - .
Lendings to financiat instituions 18,101,837 - - - -
Advances 105,374,947 - - - -
Other assels 6,652,718 - - - .
143,038,387 . — : :
179,149,816 633,897 35419,672 - 36,113,469
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - measured at falr value
Forward purchase of forelgn exchange 14,799,455 - 14,799,456 - 14,799,455
Forward sate of forelgn exchange 8,664,082 - 8,664,082 - 8,664,082
Forward purchase of government securities iransactlons 929,110 - 929,110 - 929,110

Forward sale of government securities fransactions msds - L 422,849 - 422,849




On balance sheet financial Instruments
Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments:

Federal Government Securitles
Market Treasury Bilis
Pakistan tnvestment Bonds
GOP ljarah Sukuks
Bai Muajjal

Shares
Listed companies

Non-Government Debt Securlties
Sukuks - listed
Tarm Finance Certificates - listed

Financlal assets - disclosed but not measured at fair value
Cash and balances with {reasury banks

Balances with other banks

Lendings to financlal institutions

Advances

Cther assels

Off-balance sheet financiat instruments - measured at falr value

Farward purchase of foreign exchange

Forward sale of forelgn exchange

Forward purchase of government securities transactions
Forward sale of government securities transactions

2018

Carrylng
Value Level1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in "000
14,402,942 - 14,402,942 - 14,402,942
10,048,265 - 10,046,265 - 10,046,265
3,851,647 - 3,851,647 - 3,851,647
135,369 135,369 - - 135,369
300,241 - 300,241 - 300,241
61,875 - 61,875 “ 61,875
28,798,339 135,369 28,662,970 - 28,798,339
8,871,567 - - - -
309,094 - - - -
12,612,156 - - - -
98,354,002 . - - .
6,004,469 - - - -
126,152,188 - - - -
154,950,527 135,369 28,662,970 - 28,798,338
10,847,908 - 10,847,908 - 10,847 908
4,561,174 - - 4,561,174 - 4,561,174
11,416,204 - 11,416,204 - 11,416,204

Valuation technliques used In determination of falr valuation of financlal Instruments within level 2 and level 3 are:

f Ttem

| Valuation approach and input used

lMarke: Treasury Bills and Pakistan Investment Bonds

Fair values are derived using the PKRV rates.

GOP ljarah Sukuks

Falr values of GOP ljarah Sukuks are derived using the PRISRY
rates announcad by the Financial Market Association (FMA) through
Reuters. These rates denote an average of quotes received from
sight different pre-defined / approved deaters / brokers.

Shares - listed

Falr values of Invesiments in listzd shares are valued on the basis of
closing quoted market prices av: ilable at the Pakistan Stock
Exchange.

Sukuks - Listed and Term Finance Certificates - Listed

Investments In debt securites Le. term finance cerificates and
sukuk cedificates Issued by a company or a body corporate for the
purpose of ralsing funds in the'form of redeemable capital are valued
on the basis of the rates announced by the Mutual Funds Assoclation
of Pekistan (MUFAP} in accordanca with the methodology prescribed
by the Securities and Exchange Cominission of Pakistan.

Foreign exchange conlracts

The vatuation has bean detem‘ﬁned Ly interpolating the mid rates
announced by the State Bank of Pakistan.




43.2  Falr value of non-financial assets

Information about the fair value hierarchy of Bank’s non-financial assels as at the end of the reporing period are as follows!

2018
Carrying
Value Leval 1 Leval 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees in 000
Operating fixed asse!s - fand and buildings 186,146 - - 186,146 186,146
Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 9,438,705 . - 9,438,706 9,438,705
9,624,851 - - 9,624,861 9,624,851
2018
Carrying
Value Level 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
) Rupees in '000
Operaling fixed assets - land and bulldings 2,456,687 - - 2,458,687 2,458,687
Non-banking asssets acquired In salisfaction of ¢claims 8,233,733 - - 9,233,733 9,233,733
11,692,420 - - 11,892,420 11,692,420

43.21 Certain categories of fixed assets (fand and buildings) and non-banking assets acquired in satisfactions of claims are carried at ravalued
amounts {lsve! 3 measurement) determined by professionat valuers based on thelr assessment of the market values as disclosad In nate
12.2.1 and note 16.1.1




44

45

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment Detalls with respoct to Business Actlvitles

Profit and Loss Account

Net mark-up f refurn / profit

Inter segrnent revenue - net
Mon-markup / interest Income
Total Income

Segment direct expenses

Inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provislons

Proflt before tax

Statement of Financial Position
Cash & Bank balances
Iavestments

Net inter segment lending
Lendings to financial institutions
Advances - performing

Advances - non-performing
Others

Totat Assets

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits & ather accounts
Net inter segment borrowing
Others

Totat liabilities

Equity

Total Equity & liabllities

Contingencies & Commitments

Profit and Loss Account

Net mark-up f return / profit

Inter segment revenue - net
Non-markup / interest Income
Total Income

Segment direct expenses

inter segment expense allocation
Total expenses

Provisions

Profit hefore tax

Statement of Financlal Positlon
Cash & Bank balances
Investments

Net Inter segment leading
Lendings to financial institutions
Advances - performing - net
Advances - non-performing - net
Others

Total Assets

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Deposits & other accounts
Net inter segment borrowing
Qthers

Totat liabilities

Eguity

Totat Equity & liabllities

Contingencles & Commitmenis

2019
Consumer/ | Whole Sale
SME Banking Treasury Total
Rupees '000
7,043,550 (5,438,705) 11,312 1,616,157
2,222,695 207,072 806,467 3,236,234
9,266,245 6,231,833 817,778 4,852 391
(3,916,631)  (4,251,892) {79,981)  (8,248,504)
1,425,185 1,530,796 106,611 -
(6,34%,816)  (2,721,096) (185,692)  (8,248,504)
356,072 1,476,758 - 2,432,830
2,968,357 (9,429,487) 632,187 5,828,843)
- 3,435,857 9,570,988 13,006,845
- 275,602 35,269,668 16,245,350
86,565,401 19,779,983 78,082,280 184,427,664
765,636 135,112 17,201,089 18,101,837
31,074,621 45,651,990 - 76,723,511
1,649,619 27,001,817 - 28,651,436
929,772 32,151,608 4122,280) 32,959,101
120,981,049 128,432,080 140,701,735 390,115,744
574,507 4,138,394 30,260,330 31,973,231
- 2,125,418 - 2,125,418
93,990,095 54,863,418 . 148,853,513
24,192,373 47,086,267 113,149,034 184,427,684
2,224,974 8,615,168 123,389 41,984,031
120,981,949 114,828,655 143,633,263 379,343,857
- 13,603,408 2,831,519 10,771,887
120,981,943 128,432,061 140,701,734 390,115,744
1,221,312 13,663,020 24,816,486 39,699,828
2018
Consumer/ | Whole Sale
SME Banking Treasury Total
Rupees '000
5,861,901 833,564 {89,987} 6,605,478
1,602,395 1,588,570 223,807 3,414,872
7,464,286 2,422 134 133,920 10,020,360
(3,271,089)  (3,524,078) (79,662}  {6,874,849)
{1,239,852) 1,338,458 (98,607} -
(4,510941)  {2,185,619) (178,289)  (6,874,849)
{801,833} (666,840) - {1,268,673)
2,351,622 (430,325) {44,369} 1,876,828
- 2,449,889 6,731,672 9,181,561
- 83,690 28,841,303 28,924,993
76,786,304 17,291,166 93,706,490 187,783,980
922,858 23,666 11,665,534 12,612,186
30,308,109 65,884,738 2,658 96,203,405
1,351,128 799,468 - 2,150,597
929,765 26,563,700 4,822 27,498,287
110,206,262 113,106,318 140,952,379 364,354,950
510,367 1,136,700 18,404,787 18,051,854
- 1,999,600 - 1,998,600
84,478,185 48,185,899 - 132,664,084
22,764,494 40,315,551 124,703,915 187,783,950
2,543,219 4,045,023 2,880,472 9,468,714
110,296,265 05,882,773 143,980,174 349,968,212
- 14,529,331 (142,584) 14,388,747
110,296,265 110,212,104 143,846,580 364,354,959
1,108,224 16,525,981 26,825,286 44,459,491

Segment deterntination are made on the basls of management accountability, monitoring and decision making of
these reporting segments at regular ntervals. Transactions betwsen reportable segments are based on an
appropriate transfer pricing mechanism using agreed rates. Furthermore, segment assets and fabilitles Include
intersegment balancas. Costs which are not allocated to segments are included in the Head office. Income taxes
are managed at bank leve! and are not allocated to operaling segments.

TRUST ACTIVITIES

The Bank Is not engaged In any significant trust activities. However, the Bank acls as security agent of investment
portfolio services as custodian on behalf of ifs cuslomers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Bark has relaled party transactions with ifs associates, employes benefd plans and its directors and key managamant parsennsl.

Tha Bank enters Inlo fransactions with refaled parlies In the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same ferms as for comparable transactions with person of simiar
standing. Conlibutions 1o and accruals In respect of steff retirement benefits and other benafil plans are made In accordanca with tha actuarial valuzlions / ferms of the conlribution
plan. Remunaration fo the executives / officers Is dalermined in accordance with the lerms of thelr appointment.

Wajority of the transactions with refated parliss comprise foans and advances, deposils, ssuance ol atters of credit and guarantees. Advancas for the house building, cenveyance and
for parsonal use hava also been provided to the staff and executivas at reduced rates in 2ccordance with the emplayment and pay policy and such advances have not been disclosed
in Lhe folowing schadule, Fachity of group tls insurance and hespitaisatien insurancs Is also provided to slalf and exacutives, In addition {o this, axecutives of the Bank have been

provided with Bank mainleined cars.

Details of balances and Yrassactions with related parfies during the year, other than those which have basn dsclosed elsewhere In these financiat sialemants are as follows.

Investments

Opsning balanca

Investment mada f share profit during the year
Investment redeemed { dispoased off during the ysar
Closing balancs

Advances

Opening balance
Addition during the yeas
Rapald during the ysar
Clasing balance

Provislon held agalnst advances

Gther Assels

tnlerest/ markeup accrued
Insurance claim recelvable
Peapald insurance

Subordinated debt

Opening balance

Issuad f purchased during the year
Redemption during the year
Closing balance

Deposlls and other ac¢ounis
Opaning balance

Received during the year
Withdrawn during the year
Closing balance

Other Liabititles
Interast! mark-up payable

Contingencies and Commitments
Other ¢entingancles

Income

Mark-up f retum Hnterest samed
Dividend incoma

Nat gain on sale of securitiss
Share of profit from g ssociate

Expense

Mark-up / return / inlgrest paid
Services rendered

Short tarm emgloyment benelits
Contributian to Defined Benalil Plan
Mesting fes

Insurance premium paid
Insurance cialms seftled

2019 2018
Key Key
Directors | management | Assoclates Ome;r::e':ted Directors | management | Associales %e'r;?;:led
persennst L personnel pa
Rupees in 000
- - 128,654 112,248 - - ffg,612 -
- - 5227 604,099 . - 8842 230,535
- - - (300,119} . - - {118,269}
- . 131,881 418,226 . - 126,854 112,245
9,685 T 456 - 1,422,813 1,889 3172 - 1,376,989
79,858 205,357 . 4,595,664 §3,606 48,446 - 4034041
{£5,601) {202,888} - {3,405,930) {62,410) {44,162) - {5,288 151
22,342 9,925 . 2,312,557 9,085 7,456 - 1122873
N - - 430,608 - - - 130,603
872 200 - 123,213 167 . - 36,750
. - 9,773 - - - 16,334 -
. . 504 - . . 12,449 .
. . . 126,218 . . . -
. - . 176,218 . . N -
5620 64,292 18,258 2,023,685 8,301 118,147 18,308 2314868
267,828 1,159,796 262,682 10,895,222 578977 815,019 125,002 10,742,767
265,370 §,£39,082 239,230 14,430,219 581,658 968,844’ 125,054 11,903,970
7,076 §5,006 41,608 1488683 5623 84 202 18,256 2023685
N - T43 9,152 - - 15 23825
2,450 1,834 - 254,747 300 1,467 - 95,276
. - - - - . - 2,150
. . . 482 - . - at
. . 520 . . - 8442 .
349 10,648 2,289 134,321 ki 3.38% 830 61,435
. - - 288,469 - - . 147,859
122881 350,437 - - 133,584 345,975 . -
5498 11,816 - - 5115 0,054 - -
21,850 . - - 38,585 - - .
- - 13,044 - - - 41,816 .
. . 5616 . . - 16,683 .
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2019 2018
Rupees in '000
CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIITY REQUIREMENTS

Minimum Capltal Requirement (MCR}:
Pald-up capital (net of lossas} 9,684,487 13,634,064

Capital Adaquacy Ratio (CAR):

Eiigible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 6,331,077 11,626,548
Etigible Addilional Tier 1 (ADT 1} Capite! . -
Totat Eligible Tier t Caplial 6,331,077 11,626,548
Enigible Tier 2 Capilal 2,637,948 3,401,387
Total Etigible CapHal {Tler 1 + Tier 2) 8,969,026 15,027,835
Risk Welghted Assets (RWAs):

Cradit Risk 138,592,235 121,482,278
Market Risk 1,673,760 540,950
Operatlonal Risk 14,214,926 15,554,275
Total 154,480,941 137,577,503
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ralio 4.10% §.45%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ralio 4.10% 8.45%
Total Capital Adequacy Ratie 5.81% 10.92%

Tha Stale Bank of Pakistan (SBP) vide BSD Circutar No. 07 daled April 15, 2009 set the Minimum Capilal Requiremant
(MCR) for Banks of Rs. 10 billion {net of losses) for all focaly incorporaled banks lo ba achlaved upto December 31, 2013,
The capitat of the Bank {net of losses and discount on shares} as of December 31, 2019 amounting to Rs. €.69 bition
excluging genaral reserve of Rs. 21 millios.

Tha Bank Is also required to maintain the follewing minimum Capital Adequacy Ratios (CAR) as al December 31, 2019,

- Common Equily Tter 1 (CETH) ratio of 7.50% including Capital Conservation Butfer (CCB) of 2.50%
- Tier t ralio of 10% Including CGB of 2.50%
- Tolal Capital Adeguacy Ralio (CAR} of 12.5% including GCB of 2.56%

The Basel-lll Framework is applicable fo the Bank on a sland alone basls and the Bank has adopled the Stendardised
approach for Credil and Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for Operationat Risk whila using the simple aparoach for
Cradit Risk Mitigation as par SBP guldelines. SPI Insurance Company Limited is an asseclate of tha Bank which has not
been considered for consolidation both under account and regulatory scope of consolidation. The Benk owng 23.08%
Invesiment In shares of SPI Insurance Company Limited due lo which the Bank has aequired significant fnfluence, but not
control, over financial and operating poticlas of SPI lasurance Company Limited.

2019 208
Rugpees In '000
Leverage Ratie (LR}
Tier-1 Capital 8,331,077 11,626,548
Tola! Exposures 219,608,608 193,845,360
Laverage Ralio 2.88% 8.00%

Liquidity Coverage Hatlo {LCR}):

Tolet High Quatity Liquid Assats 36,848,252 28,134,249
Tolet Net Cash Outflow 41,719,865 33,065,053
Liquidity Coverage Ralio 87.84% 86 B2%
Net Stable Funding Ratlo (NSFR): .

Tolal Available Stable Funding 133,214,604 116,179,885
Tolal Required Stabla Funding $32,679,884 111,664,314
Net Steble Funding Ratio 100.40% 104.04%

The full disclosures on the CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS as per SBP
instructions issued from time to fime are placed on the websHe. The link to the full disclosure is available 8t
hitps:Hwww,silkbank com.pkipagelannual-reports-and-interim-accountst,

RISK MANAGEMENT N

Tha principal risks associaled with the banking businass &ro credit risk, markat risk, tiquidity risk and operational nsk Ths

business of banking is dependent upon acceptance and management of financtal risk_ Itinvolves identification,
measuremant, monitoring and controlling of risks with a view 1o ensure thal:

- Adequate capital is avallable as a buffer;
- Exposures remaln within the limits as prescribed by the Board of Directors; and
- Risk taking decisions are in ine with business strategy and objectives set by the Board.




481 CreditRisk
The risk of lesses because counterparties fai lo mast all or part of lhelr obfigations {owards the Bank.

The Bank has estzblished an eppropriale credit sk struclure and tullure whersby policles are reviawed and revamped 1o maintaln sound eredit granling proceduses,
malndalning appropriale credit administration, measurement, monitoring procasses and adequate tontrols.

Risk Managemant structure Includes credi approval, credit adminlsiration, cenlrafised processing, ¢redt monitoring and Base! IIf funclions reporting o the Risk
Management Group Head. Senlor and exparianced officials are heading each risk calegory.

The Bank managas credit sk through:

- establishment of acceplabla risk lavels,

- sound procedures and contrels for tha management of risk asssts and credt documentation;

- largel market planning and cverall market intaligence, and

- accurale and delatled Information about the borrawsr, R's financlal posiion and operations of the Bank.

Credit risk managemant obleclives and policies are;

- Credit sisk is the risk that a counterparty wili not settle its obfigation In accordance wilk the terms of approval or agraed terms.

- Credit exposwes Inciuds both Individual borrawss and groups of cennected counlarpartias and portfolios In the banking and irading baoks.

- Credil Risk Poficy ané Management Group (CRPEMG) Is slruclured to effectively anelyse, mondor and manage credit fisk though s poficies and procedures that
closely aligned with he Bank's business plan, SBP’s Prudential Regutations end Basel Il requirsments.

- Sanclioning aulhority and approval lavels for all faciities s conferred by the Board of Directors upon various functionsrdes of the Bank and Is clrcutated for
Issued by CRPAME, Gracit Sanclioning Powers / Authority Levels in lerms of BOD approval, as enhanced f amgnded from time o time, refate to the
total sxposura of & tustomss o & cusiemer group and nol la specific boans.

Credit risk rating 15 22 impordant leel In monitesing end contoliing credt Ask. fr order 1 I'acemsta eary Kentification of cnangea In fisk profies, credis with

delerorating ratings will be subject fo addiienal oversight and moniloring, for example, threugh more frequant visls from Relationsh and Inclusion on a
wateh sl that I8 reguiany reviewad by senlor g L The intama! sk ratings can be used by Ene managemeant In differsnt deparl.rnenls to {rack the current
¢h 15lics of the credit p

In the Bght of the requirements specified by SBP and in view of Basel lIt Accord, the Bank has 1o assess soundness and appropriatenass of inlemal cradit risk
measuiement and management systsm. The Bank needs {o build the foundatien for the iRB {internal Raling Based) Approach and tonsinict dala warehouse
confirming to the data critera of Basel 1ll,

fn the absence of standard and refiable financlal stalemanls lo reatistically avaluale e sirength of & company for assigning ORR, the Bank has [o rasort o other
pragmaticaliy emphasised quaniiative / quafalive factors, which have traditionally been considered for extanding credt. The Quantitative Evaiuation Is based on
financal Indicators, whils Qualitative Evatuation Is based on subjective factors.

The objeclives of Internal Credit Risk Rating (ORR) ara:

- Internal eapial aocation

- Intamal risk reporting

- Porlfofo management

« The setting of credif risk concentralion limils
« Developing risk-based pricing benchmarks

Tha Bank’s nilal objective of ORR Is to generale accurate and consistent ralings for ¢redit porifefio of the Bank. Credil 7 Obligor risk ratings are summary Indicators of
the degres of rsk inherent in the Bank's Individual eredit exposures. A credit rating represents an assessment of the probadliy of defauit allached to a given
cotnlerparty e meat debt servicing 2nd other repayment obEgations on a timaly basls. Atthe Bark, a syslem has basn deveiopad 2nd succassiuly Impiemented to
asslgn Credil / Obligor Risk Ralings 10 ach borrowar.

4811 Lendings to financlal Institutions

Cradit risk by public f private sector Gross lendings Non-parforming lendings Provision held
2014 2018 2018 2618 2018 2018
Rupees In 000
Pubtic f Gevemment 7,803,718 - 1,803,118 - -
Private 10,298,118 12,812,158 - . - -

18,104,837 12,612,156 1,803,718 - - -

48,12 Investmentin debt securitfes

Credit risk by industry secter Gross [nvestments Non.pedorming invesiments Provislon held
210 2048 2019 2018 wo1s 2018
Rupees in 000
Textile 8,780 8,780 8,780 §,760 8,780 8,780
Financial 74,810 74,910 14,910 74,910 74,910 74,910
Energy 150,000 200,000 . - - .
Service 37,800 82,500 - . - -
Goverament 35,074,212 28,623,821 - - - -
Othars 79,654 99,527 - - - -
35425 3545161 2B 60638 83,630 83,690 83,690 83690
Craditrisk by public / private sactor Gross Invesiments Noen-performing investments Provisian held
2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 208
Rupees In ‘GO0
Public / Govemment 35,074,212 28,523,821 - . . -
Privats 350,83¢% 445717 83630 83,690 83,890 838%Q
35,425,104 TESB0.58 FEXED 83,690 83,690 83530




48.1.3

4844

Advances

Credil sk by Industry sector

Agricutture, Forestry, Hunling and Fishing
Minlng and Quarrying

Texiila

Chermical and Pharmaceuticals

Cement

Sugar

Footwaar and Leather garmanis
Automobite and transporistion equipment
Electronics and elechical apphiances
Real Estate and Construction

Pawer (slecticity), Gas, Watles, Saniary
Wholesals and Retail Trade

Exporls { Imporis

Teansport, communication and lravaliing
Financial

Setvices

Individuals

Hole! & Resorls

Telatommunications

Printing and Publishing

Hospilal and medical

Food and bavarages

Rubber and piastics producls

Iron, stest & enpineering

Edueation

Others

Credit risk by public / private sector

Publis / Government
Private
Contingentias and G t:

Gredil tisk by Industry seclor

Agrcultura, Forasiry, Hunting 2nd Fishing
Tetie

Chemical and Pharmaceuticals

Cement

Footwsar and Leather garments
Automeobie and transporiation equipmend
Eilectronics and elsclrical apphances
Real Estate and Constsction

Powar (sleclricdy). Gas, Water, Sanilary
Wholgsala and Relail Trade
Exporis/imaors

Financia!

Insurance

Sarvices

Individuals

Hote & Resorls

Telecommunications

Printing and Publishing

Transpor, communication and lravelling
Hospilal and medical

Food and baverages

Rubbar and plastics products

Cihers

Gross advances Nea-parforming advances Previston held
2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018
Rupees in 000
585,801 652,808 82,887 9,786 2,811 8791
19,997 25,159 - - - -
4,201,261 4,164,431 1,664,005 2000018 1,455,187 1791338
1,268,223 1,398,893 17612 62,631 23,750 18,307
428,488 148,704 59,786 59,786 67,291 55,043
6,141,701 5682.782 1,977,247 5,500 550,648 5,500
238,710 307,681 12,207 17,807 8317 10,758
833450 728,733 513,471 513471 513,470 513,154
2,597,451 2,704,092 BT4,745 591,112 817,199 464,408
26,096,303 24,594,204 8,160,897 108.354 278,479 31,74t
563,683 511,278 - - - -
17,672,59¢ 16.811.842 16,214,289 252,502 825444 40,762
- 156,056% . 808,455 - 414,738
1,145,480 1,079,372 626,858 296,366 413,376 52,077
2,713,461 1,400,748 87,076 87,076 87,076 87,078
13,485,080 12,421,048 2,183,083 289,520 71,798 167,240
23,435,299 20,837,502 1,423,281 5,109.631 872,467 859,862
116,149 477,507 - . - -
1,984,314 1,003,267 - - - -
§5,304 120,192 - - - -
143,417 32,587 - - - -
2,221,276 1,692,020 303410 - 42,611 .
83,733 450,098 - . . -
2,616,649 2,662,856 - - - -
1,142,608 1,219,130 - - . .
2,154,54¢ 2,181727 768,168 354,426 257,307 201,721
112,236,882 103,665 168 34,728,063 6,676,040 6,077,627 4524443

Gross advances Non-performing advances Provislon he'd
019 2018 2015 2018 2019 2018
Rupees in 000

112,238,682 103,568,168

34,725,063 6,676,040

6,072,627 4,524,443

112,236,882 103,568,168

ST, el

34,729,063 8,676,040

6,077,627 4,624,443

= T e, T

2019 2018
Rupeas in ‘000

8334 216
596,064 393,663
305,194 224,055
116,612 179,497
2,156 132,739
152,067 51,335
935400 449,226
151,518 1,405,082
82,737 222,166
873,485 850,811
34,832

26892483 30,028.189
- 350
§,961,581 4,745,688

- 1,063,854
53,950 85,248
255,246 159,912
3500 82,661
153,685 109,835
231,634 165,154
109,607 674,620
177,509 238,806

2,287,876 3,070,045

39,699,828 44,459,491




48.1.5

48.1.6

48.2

Credit risk by public / private sector

2019 2018
Rupees In '00¢
Public / Govemment 7,260,608 8,977,014
Private 32,439,322 35,482,477

33,699,328 44,459,491

Centeatration of Advances
The bank {op 10 exposures on the basls offotat (funded and non-funded exposures) aggregated to Rs. 24,408 mifion (20418: Rs. 24.332 miliion) are as foflowing:

2019 2018
Rupess In ‘000
Funded 24,406,154 24,332,202
Non Funded - :
Total Exposure 24,406,194 24,332,202

Tha sanctioned §mils agalnst these top 10 exposures aggregated lo Rs. 24,407 (2018: Rs. 24,343 mafon)

2019 2018
Non Non
Parforming  Provislon held  Psdorming  Provislon held
Total fundad classified therein Loans boans
Rupees Iit 000
Substandard 1,543,094 198,926 983,161 127,978
Boubiful 4,944,888 516,682 521,267 49.873
Loss 28,274,081 5,364,11% 5170812 4,345,692
Total 34,729,083 5,077, 627 8,676,040 4.524.443
Advances - Province / Reglonawlse Disbursement & Utillzation
2019
CUtitizatlen
Disbursements ®PK Including AJK Including
Province ! Reglon Punjab Sindh EATA Balechlistan tslamabad Gilgh-Baltistan
Rupees 000
Punjab 66,223,962 ] 66,223,962 B . B N .
Sindh 65,107,284 . 55,107,284 - . - -
KPK Inciuding FATA 58,752 . - 58,752 - - .
Balochislan . - . - - . .
Islamabad 8,686,319 . - - . 6,686,319 -
AJK Including GHlgit-Baltistan 200,911 - - L3 - - 200911
Tolal 128,217,228 66,223,862 55,107,284 53,752 - §,686,319 200,911
2018
Utitization
Provinge / Reglan Disbursements | piah sinn | KPRINMIO | paiachistan | Istamabad mgﬁa
Rupaes 000
Punjab 89,456,057 57.595.443 31,860614 - - - -
Slndh 36,685,347 4,420,145 32,284 602 - - - -
KPK Inchuding FATA 202,035 65480 $14% 65,059 - - .
Balechisian 160 - . - 160G . -
Islamabad 18,942,292 10,480,301 4,880,574 - . 3,581,417 -
AJK inciuding Gigit-Battistzn 250 100 - . - . 190
Total 145,285,181 72562053 69,087,286 55058 160 3,681 417 190
Market Risk

Markal Risk Is the risk of [083 in eamings and capiat due to advarse changes In Interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and market condiitens, Thus
market risk can ba further described into Infetest Rate Risk, Foralgn Exchangs Risk and Equity Position Riskc

The Bank is exposed o market risk kn fts irading Investmant pordfolio because the values of its trading posiions are sensiive 1o changas n market prces and rates.

The Bank has a well established framework for markel risk management with the Teeasury iovestment Policy, Liquidity Policy and Market Risk Management Policy.
The Bank has major objective of prolecting and Increasing net interest Income in the short rua and market value of tha equity In the leng aun for enbancing the
shareholders wealth. Furlher, it dafinas ihe contours of the way Lhe Bank's markst fisk Is managed within defined parameters and with prescriptive guidstines on the

tools, techniques and processes.

The Assst Llablty Committes (ALCO), Market Risk Policy Committes (MRPC) and Investment Commitlee [$ entrusied with key declision making In establishlng markel
risk telatad sirategles and monitoring there-against. The Commitles decides on product pricing, mix of assels, habiftles, stipulates Fiquidity and Interest rafe risk imits,
monders them, articutates the Bank's interest cata view and determines the business sirategy of the Bank.




48.2.1

48.2.2

43,23

\anagement of intarest rale risk of the Banking Book Is primarily focused on Inlerest and f27r value thiough Re-pricing Gap Analysis, Analysis of the Nat Interest
Income Sensilivity, Duration, Value-at-Risk (VaR} and Falr Valua Sensitivity. The management of interest rate risk of the tracing book {s achiaved through mari-to-
marke! practice and exposuce analysis, On a periedic basls, sk monitosing reporls are prepared for senior managemsnt 10 galn an accusls undarslanding of Bank's
risk position. Mathematical model fke Stress-Testing is carriad out 2t leasi blannually.

Tha Miidle Office in Risk Management Group has an Independent reporling structure on risk aspects and helps management in d&terminfing compliance in lerms of
exposura analysis, tracking of limits, funding and varicus other risk sensitive markel parametars,

Balance shieet split by frading andd banking books

2019 2018
Bi’;’;‘:“ Trading book Total Banking beok Trading book Totat
Fupees Tn 060

©esh and batancas with ireasury banks 11,838,652 . 44,838,682 8,871,657 - 8871667
Balances with othar banks 1,168,163 - 4,168,163 309,894 . 200,904
Lendings to financlal institutions 18,101,837 - 18,101,837 12,512,156 - 12,612,156
Investmanis 36,241,924 416 36,245,350 18,873,656 10,051.437 28,924,993
Advances 105,374,947 - 105,374,947 £8,354.002 - $8,354,002
Fixed assels 5,910,389 - 5,910,389 3,981,271 - 3.081.271
friang®ola assels 1077 - 217,01¢ 226,840 . 226,840
Daferzed {ax a556ts 4,864,227 . 4,864,227 3,058,847 - 3,058,647
Other assels 19,137,679 . 19,737,679 20,231,529 - 20,231,629
Asse! held for sale 2,229,729 - 2,229,149 - - .

205,684,884 3418 205,688,080 166.519.562 10,051,437 178,670,850

Forefgn Exchange RISk

Currency risk I$ the risk of foss aising from the fiuciuation of exchange rates. Bank's cumency risk s first controfled through a substanially matthed funding policy.
The Bank uiillses appropriale hadging mstrumenls, such as forward Torelan sxchange (FX) contracls, turrency swaps 1o effectively hedge and manage cuirency risks.

The majority of foreign cumenty exposure [5 I the LIS dollar. Bank I3 carefully mondering the nel foreign currenty exposure and the slifact of exchangs rale fiucluation
by conducting mark to market sensiivity and stress testing on a regular basls as well a5 utlizing the FX tonlrzfs lo control the rsk. Besides, tha Bank has Forelgn
Exchange Stop Loss Linvt based on Daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) to manage lhe fess absorption capatity ¢f the Bank.

2018 2018
Forelgn Forelgn Mat forelgn Foreign Foretgn . Nat forelgn
Currency Currency ?;::: ::;;: currency Cumensy Corrsncy S;’e:f;a:rﬁ: cuirenty
Assets LEabliities exposure Assels Liabfities exposure
Rupees [n 000
Pakislan Rupese 200,111,063 183,348,798 {6,038,684) 10725596 172,807,218 152,931,229 (8,262,471} 14,523,518
EIned States Dellar 3317710 8,685,687 5.365.247 {2010} 3,162,382 $,204,684 (218428)
Greal Britaln Pound Staring 741,817 1,192,188 450,624 262 514,873 656
Euro 1413631 1,689,714 222,188 1538951 £15,764 2,364
Japanese Yen : . - 4,334 . 5897
Olher cursencles #9025 1915 - 87,110 - 18,150 69,710
5572017 11,589,285 6,038,649 4524 3,663,781 10,053,023 6,252,474 (128,771)
205,688,080 194,816,183 - 10,771,887 176,570,993 162,184 252 - 14,385,747
2048 2018
B;';‘;':Q Trading book  Banking book  Trading book
Rupess In ‘000
impact of 1% changs In fereign exchange rales on
Profit and loss account
+{% charge 478 . 1.367 -
-1% changs 1478} - (136N -
Equity positlon Rigk

The risk arlsing #om laking tong or short positions, in the trading book in the squities and alf instruments thal exhvbit market bahavior simifar 10 equities. The Bank s
exposed 10 equity price changes on its investments in Trading Book. These equity exposures are prmarily felated to markal prica movemerds in local equity market
indax. Changas in the overall value of equity rading book are recorded thiough profit and lass accouat. Bank's (nvesiment Commities approves the Invesimant stocks
and (halr Emits. H afso reviews the porifolio with mark to market posiion on regular basls. Stop fass Emis have baen approved and are moniored on & regular basts.

2018 2018
B::tl":g Trading book  Banking book  Trading book
Rupees In '000
Impact of 6% changa in equity pdces on
Char comprehansive lncome
5% change 34,695 . 8,768 -
{34,895} - (5.768) .

5% change
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51.2

Derivative Risk

A derivative financlal instrument is a financial contract between two parties whers payments are dependent upon movements
in price in one or more underlying financial instruments, reference rates or indices. The principal derivatives used by the
Bank are forward foreign exchange conltracts, foreign exchange swaps and equity futures. The Bank at present does not
engage In struclured derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps, Forward Rate Agreements and Foreign Exchange

Options,

A forward foreign exchange contract is an agreement fo buy or sell a specified amount of foreign currency on a specified
future date at an agreed rate, Equily futures are exchange traded contractual agreements to either buy or sell a specified
security at a specific price and date in the future. A forelgn exchange swap is used by the Bank if It has a need to exchangs
one currency for another currency on one day and then re-exchange those currencies at a later date.

The Bank enters into these contracts for the purpose of squaring currency / equity positions.

All derivatives are recognized at their fair vajue. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets.
Derivatives are carried in the balance shest as assets when their fair value is positive and as liabilities when thelr fair value is

negative,

Credit risk in respect of derivative financlal instruments arises from the potential for a counterparty to default on its
contractual obligations. The principal amount of the derivative contract does not represent real exposure fo credit risk, which
is limited to the positive fair value of instrument. ‘

The details of commitments under forward foreign exchange contracts outstanding at year-end has been given in notes
2521 and 25.2,2,

The accounting policies used fo recognise and disclose derivative instruments are given in note 6.18.2. The risk
management framework of derivative instruments is given in note 48.

ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS (IBB)

In order to meet the guidelines for Sharia compliance in Istamic Banking Institutions (iBls), statement of financial position and
profit and loss account of iBB are given in Annexure - Il. Further detaifed disclosures are also given in the said annexure to
comply with instructions Issued by SBP to improve transparency and standardisation in 1Bls’ profit and loss distribution,
policies and practices. Instructions in this regard were issued by the SBP vide IBD Circular No. 3 dated November 19, 2012

and BSD Circular No.3 dated January 22, 2013.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

The financial statements were authorized for issue on June 30, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

GENERAL

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the revised format for financiat statements of banks
issued by the SBP through BPRD circular letter No.02 of 2018 dated January 25, 2018.

Captions in respect of which no amounts exist may not be reproduced in these financial statements except in case of
statement of financial position and profit and loss account. i

5 +
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Chiet Finangial Qfficer Prestdent & Chlef Executive Officer

SRS Y

Direciar Director Rirector




SILKBANK LIMITED
ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS

The Bank Is operaling with 30 tstamic Banking branches at the end of 2019 (2018: 30).

The statement of financial position of these branches as at December 31, 2019 are as follows:

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

Due from financlaf Institutions
investments

Islamic financing and related assets - net
Fixed assels

intangible assets

Due from Head Office

Other assets

Total Assels

LIABILITIES

Bills payable

Due to financial Institutions
Deposits and other accounts
Due to Head Office

Other llabilites

NET ASSETS

REPRESENTED BY

Islamic banking fund

Reservaes

Beficit on revaluation of assets

{Accumulated loss) / un-appropriated profits

CONTINGENGIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

7

2019

Annexure - [l

2018

Rupees in '0600

The profit and loss account of the Bank's fsfamic bankiag branches for the year ended December 31, 2019 is as follows:

Profit/ retuen earned
Profit / reluen expensed
Net {loss} I profit / return

Other lncome

Fee and commission income
Forelgn exchange (foss}/ incoms
Income / (loss) from derivatives
(Loss) / gain on securitles

Other Income

Total other Income

Total (loss)/ income

Other expenses

Qperating expenses

Workers Wetfare Fund

Qther charges

Total other expenses

{Loss) | profit before provislons

Provisions and write offs - net
{Loss) / profit for the year

Note

2,142,308 1,694,122
540,286 36,507
5,478,118 .
257,668 3,851,847
27,448,800 || 26,901,698
1,414,503 294,044
2,972 1,125
986,808 2,233,329
38,270,653 35,212,472
133,603 480,421
33,274,826 || 30,960,225
154,880 76,690
1,572,884 282,486
35,436,002 31780822
3,134,561 3,412,650
6,626,000 2,325,000
. £10,629)
(3,490,439) 1,088,279
3,134,561 3,412,650
2019 2018

Rupees in '000

282,977 2,506,353
(3,646,008} | (1,047,968)
(3,263,121 1,456,365
16,654 28,373
{101,362) 18,895
123,673 (9,668)
(1,126} 43
13,708 12,072
51,647 40,515
(3,211,674) 1,507,900
(823,228) (667,790)

- {16,782)

{862) {(172)

{824,090) (684,744)
(4,035,864) 823,156
(653,064) {821)
(4,588,718) 822,335
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2019 2018
InLocal | InForelgn In Loca! fn Forelgn |
Currency | currencles Total Currency currenclies Total
Due from Finanrclal institutions Rupees in "000
Bal Muaflal receivable from State Bank of Pakistan 3,449,076 - 3449875 - - -
Bal Muajlal recelvable from other financlal instiiution 2,028,143 - 2,028,143 - - -
5,478,118 - 5,478,118 - - -
19 2018
Cost/ Provislon Surptus / Carrylng Cost/ Provision Surplus / Garrylng
Amortised for {Deficit) Valus Amortised for {Deficit) Value
cost diminution cost diminution
Rupees in 000
Investments by segments:
Federal Government Securitles:
- lfarah Sukuks - - . - 3,862,276 - (10,828) 3,851,647
- Bal Muafal 257,668 257,658 - - - -
Total Invastments 257,868 - - 257 658 3,862,276 - {10,829) __ 3.851,647
2019 2048
Note Rugees I '000
lslamlc financing and related assofs - net
Murabaha a1 2,876,403 2,165,705
Musawammah 127,343 127,343
Disminishing Musharaka 24,998,108 || 24,608,650
Gross Isfamic financing and refatad assets 28,001,854 26,901,698
Lass: provislon against Islamic financings
- Spedific (553,054)] - l
- Generat . .
(653,054) .
Istamlc financing and related assets - net of provision 27,448,800 26,901,698
Murabaha
Murabaha financing 311 2,812,382 1,907,705
Advancas for Murabaha 84,021 258,000
2876403 2,165,705
Murabaha recelvable - gross 3.1.2 3,210,586 2,333,482
Less: Deferred murabaha income 3.1.4 {25,141) (169,048)
Less: Profil recelvable shown In other assets 3.1.3 {373,063} (266,729}
Murabaha firancings 2,812,382 1,607,705
The movement in Murabaha financing durng the year Is as follows:
Opening batance 2,333,482 1,045,740
Sales during the year 1,467,918 2,068,203
Adjusled during the year (5%0,814) {780,461)
Closing balance 3,210,686 2,333,482
Murabaha sale price 3,185,446 2,174,434
Murahaha purchase price (2,882,383  (1.907,705)
373,063 266,728
Deferred murabaha income
Opening balance 159,048 21,363
Arising during the yaar 139,978 266,322
Less: Recognised during the year {273,883} {134,637)
25,141 150,048

Closing balance
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3.6

Advances inckide Rs. 22,750 milion (2018: Rs. 302 million) which have been placed under non-performing status as delafled befow.

2019 20i8
Non Noa
Category of classification - specific Performing  Provision Pearforming Proviston
Loans l.oans
Rupges in '000
Substandard 42,875 - 114,667 -
Deoubtful 462,600 - 188,820 -
Loss 22,244,285 553,054 - .
Total 32,749,660 553,054 301618 .

During the year the Bank recorded additional NPL's, by and large, arsing out of the accounts of the borrowers engaged In the businesses of real estate/construction
seclor, This is malnly dee {o slow down in the businesses aclivilies of these saclors, laxissues relating {o these businesses and the ban on construction of high rise
buildings In Kerachi. However, a Lelter of fnterest (LOI) has been signed batween the borrower and Federal Government Employee Housing Scheme Authority
(FGEHHA) for the sale of these underylng propsrties where substantial payment is expecled shortly. Additionally, the government had announced a stimulus
package to uplift and provide the nacessary support to the rea! eslate/construction sector. Based on these positive developmenls, bank 1s confident that the NPL's
would be cured shorlly.

[t inchedes advances ameunting o Rs. 20,160.85 mifion (2018: Rs. 19,437.65 miflion) to cestaln berrowers who are engaged in primarily general trading and real
estate business, which are mainly securad agalnst mortgage of underdevelopediundeveloped properties. During the year, the Bank has provided for the above said
oxposure in loss calegory as direcled by the SBP resulting in provision of Rs.2,712.885 million after {aidng FSV benefil. Bank has recorded 20% provision
amounted o Re. 542587 milion as al December 31, 2049, The remaining 15% and 65% of the said provision amounting to Rs. 406.948 milllen and Rs. 1,763.44
mmiion witt be recognized In period ending March 31, 2020 and June 30, 2020 respeclively, as directad by SBP vide ils letler dated Jung 24, 2020.

SBP vida various circulars has amended Peudential Regulations In respect of provisioning against non.performing advances under which the benefit of Forced Sale
Value (FSV) has been atiowed for plant and machinery under charge, pledged steck and morigaged residential, commareal and Industrial propertles (land and
building only} held as collateral against noa-performing advances uplo five years from the date of classification,

As of December 31, 2018, the Bank has availed FSV benefits against all non performing advances. Had the benefit not been taken by the Bank, loss would have
been higher by Rs.5,804 million (December 2018 : profit would have bsen lower by Rs.654 million, which shall not be avallable for payment of cash or stock
dividand / bonus to employees.

Beposiis 2018 2018
Local In Forelgn Local In Foreign
(:[:lrrency currencgas Total ([:[erency currenciis Tolal
Rupeas In 000

Customers

Cument deposils 2,232,796 613,408 2,846,204 2,348,847 320,404 2,669,261
Savings deposils 13,664,144 368,203 | 13,932,347 [ 14,189,530 321,442 |] 14510872
Temm deposis 5,217,006 881,603 6,098,609 3675426 1,191,260 5,166,686
Margin deposits 30,700 - 30,700 29,433 - 28,433
Others 76,667 - 76,557 52,384 - 52,384

21,121,203 1,863,214 22,984,417 20595620 1,833,106 22,428,726
Financial Institutions

Cumrent deposils 29,208 8,667 35,873 4,046 447 4,493
Savings deposils 10,053,436 - 10,063,435 8,370,908 - 8,370,808
Term deposils 201,100 - 201,100 156,100 - 166,100

10,283,741 6,667 10,290,408 5,631,052 447 8,531,499

31,404,944  1,880881  33,274825  29,126672 1,833,563  30,960.225
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4.2

2019

2018

Rupsees In '000

Composiiion of deposits

- Individuals 7,849,305 6,720,073
- (Govemment / Public Sector Entities 11,307,313 14,058,849
- Banking Companles 706,931 2,865
- Non-Banking Financlat Instfusions 9,684,477 8,528,834
- Private Seclor 3,827,709 1,649,804
S3ITARTE | 050255
This Includes deposils eligible to be covered urder insurance arrangements amounting lo Rs, 8.67 milion (2018: Rs. 7,11 miliion)
2019 2018
Rupees in'000
Charity Fund
Opening Balance 1,000 -
Recslved from customers on account of delayed payment ' - | l 1,000 I
Payments / utiisatlen during the year (900) -
{800y 1,000
Closing Balance 100 1,000
Islamlc Banking Business Unappropriated Profitf Accumulated (loss)
Opening Bafance 1,008,279 275,844
Add: Islamic Banking {loss} f profit for the year (4,688,718) 822,335
Closing Balance (3,490,439 1,098,279
CONTINGENGIES AND COMMITMENTS
Guarantees 563,360 937,732
Commitments 2,046,818 1,613,063
2,610,168 2,650,795
Profit { return earned of financing, investments and placement
Profit earped on:
Financing (272,769) 2411558
nvestaments 88,318 84,797
Placements 466,428 -
282,977 2,506,353
_— S
Profit on Deposits and other Dues Expensed
Deposils and other accounts 3,245,895 991,858
Due to Financlal nstitulions 29,189 10,275
Cost of forelgn currency swaps egainst forelpn currency deposits / bosrowings 142,643 48,035
Eease Eability against right-of-use asseis 128,471 -

3,546,008

1,047,968




10 Pool Management

The number and nature of pools maintained by the IBD along with their key features and risk and reward characteristics are as follows:

Emaan !slamic Banking, the Islamic Banking Division {IBD} of Sitkbank Limited, has a well-defined profit and loss distribution and pool management
framework for creation of one or more pools of assets to be financed by different fypes of deposits. Currently, the 1BD has the policy of maintaining a
single Mudaraba Pool. All funds oblained through lslamic Banking operations are being invested in this Common Mudaraba Poot. The key features and
risk / reward features of the same are given below:

Key Features

The Account Holfder, in his capacity as the fund provider (called Rabbul Mal in Figh terminology} authorises the IBD acting as the investment manager
(called Mudarib in Figh terminology) to invest the Account Holder's funds on the basis of an unrestrcted Mudaraba agreement in Jine with rules and
prieciples of Shar’a.

Under the unresiricted Mudaraba agreement, the IBD In its capacity as the fund manager Invests the funds accepted from Account Holders in Shari'a
compliant financing and investiments. The IBD receives a pre-agreed percentage (Mudarib Share) of the profit generated from these activilies,

In line with the principles of commingling Mudaraba, where the Mudarib is permiited to commingle lts own funds with the funds recelved on the basis of
the Mudaraba, and {o comply with the regulations of the SBP on crealion of an Istamic Banking Fund (the *IBF"), Silkbank has created an [slamic
Banking Fund of Rs, 6,625 millicn and deposited the same in its common Mudaraba pool.

Risk & Rewards Characteristics

The profit Is shared batween the Rabbut Mal and the Mudarib as per the agreed ratio, while the loss, if any, Is bore by the Rabbul Mal In proportion 1o
his invested amount unless the Mudarib Is found 1o be negligent or in breach of the terms and conditions of the Mudaraba Agreement.

In case of commingling of the Mudarib’s own funds with the funds of the Account Holders, the Mudarib shall get the full profit of its own funds and bear
the entire loss thereof.

Profit for the Aceount Holder is calculated on the basis of a welghtage system which takes into consideration the size of funds, Its pericd and profit
payment frequency (delalls of the weightages are available in all {he branches and Silkbank’s websile). The bigger the size of the fund and the longer
the tenor, the higher would be the weightage allocated to the fund for profit distribution,

Profit Rate and Weightages announcement perlod

The profil sharing ralio, profit rate and welghtages are announced when change is required. Although SBP allows to revise the profit sharing ralio &
weightages for the period concerned, EIB has revised the Profit Sharing Ratio (PSR} during the year 2019 and anncunces the same on webstite and

notice boards of branches.

Avenues | sectors of economy / business where Mudaraba based deposits have been deployad.

Mudaraba based funds have been deployed to diversified sectors and avenues of the economy / business mainly to Government, Financlat Institutions,
Construction, Manufacturing and Services sectors.

Parameters used for allocation of profit, charging expenses and provisions etc. along with a brief description of their major components

The profit of deposit poo! is calculaled on the earring assefs booked by ulilising tite funds from the poof. No general or administrative naiure of
expense is charged to the poot. The profit of the pool is shared among the members of the poot on pre-defined mechanism based on the weightages
announced before the profit calcutation perod.

Proflt and Loss distribution iIn Common Mudaraba Pool

2019
Mudarib share Amount of
Mudarib share - Mucdarib share .
arr:ceitlr?(f:lmbi?t net of Hiba and l:::g:;:::;t;atf ?::;:t :;:3 ::d transferred to| Profitrate | Profit rate
General Depositors Pool 9 including the ghtag depositors earnad distributed
the Mudarib deposifors announcement
p Mudarib Fee through Hlba (%) {%}
L] %) through Hiba period )
000 o {'600)
lcommen Mudaraba Pool | 324,851 862% | 133,798 |  Monthly | 41.48% | 127% | 10.47% |
2018
Mudarib share -} Mudarib share - |Amount of Mudarib Profit rate and Mudarib share
net of Hibaand| netof Hibaand | share transferred weichiages lransferred {o Profit rate Profit rate
Geaneral Depositors Pool including the Inciuding the to depositors ann 03 nce%nent depositors earned distributed
Mudarip fes Mudarib Fee through Hiba sriod through Hiba (%) (%)
(000) (%) (000) P {20

miu
lcommon Mudaraba Poot | 508,534|  23.96% | 193552  Monthly | 3234% | 953% | 6.86% |
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ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDERS® INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

SILKBANK LIMITED
COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC & PHYSICAL SHARE HOLDINGS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

S. No. | Categories/Sub-Categories Number of | Category | Category  wise | Percentage
of Sharcholders Shares held wise No. of | Shares held
Folios /
Cche
Accounts.
Directors, Chief Executive 10 439,557,612 4.84
Officer and their Spouse and
Minor Children
01 Mr, Khalid Aziz Mirza 500
Mr. Rashid Akhter Chughtai 500
Mr. Masroor Ahmed Qureshi 500
Mr. Shahzad Enver Murad 500,000
M. Tarig Igbal Khan 16,997
My, Zubair Nawaz Chattha 415,626,000
Mr. Azmat Tarin 20,013,115
Mrs, Farah Naz Tarin W/o 200,000
Azmat Tarin
Mrs. Saima Shahzad Murad
W/o Shahzad Enver Murad 3,200,000
02 Associated Companies, 9 5,666,262,093 62.39
Undertakings and Related
Parties, (5% & above
shareholding).
Arif  Habib  Corporation | 2,563,901,924 28.23
Limited
Mr, Shaukat Tarin® 1,049,091,791 11.55
International Finance 702,689,067 7.714
Corporation
Mr.  Zulgarnain = Nawaz 678,126,000 7.47
Chattha
Nomura European lavestment 356,676,342 3.93
Limited
Bank Muscat S.A.0.G 315,776,969 3.48
03 Executives 39,271,471 13 0.43
(4 Public Sector Companies 99,421,996 S 1.09
and Corporations
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05 Banks, Development Finance 4,384,338 7 0.05

Institutions, Non-Banking

Finance Companies,

Insurance Companies,

Takaful, Modarabas and

Pension Funds
06 Mutual Funds 20,880,417 1 0.23
07 General Public — Foreign 259,296,515 25 2.86
08 General Public — Local 2,133,188,488 7415 23.49
09 Others 419,598,307 83 4.62

Total 9,081,861,237 7568 106.00

SHAREHOLDERS

HOLDING FIVE PERCENT

OR MORE VOTING

INTEREST IN THE BANK

TOTAL PAID-UP CAPITAL 9,081,861,237 Shares

OF BANK

5% OF PAID-UP CAPITAL 454,093,062 Shares

(SHARLS) .

NAME OF NO OF SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE

SHAREHOLDERS

Arif Habib Corporation 2,563,901,924 28,23

Limited

Mr. Shaukat Tarin® 1,049,091,791 11.55

International Finance 702,689,067 7.74

Corporation

Mz, Zulgarnain Nawaz Chattha 678,126,000 7.47

Nomura European Investment 356,676,342 3.93

Limited

Bank Muscat S.A.0.G 315,776,969 3.48

* The total shareholding of Mr, Shaukat Tarin actually stands at 1,106,091,791 shares. i.¢.12.18% in

the Bank, out of which as of December 31, 2019, an amount of fifty-seven million (57,000,000)
shares of Mr, Shaukat Tarin have been kept with Pearl Securities Limited.

As reguired under the Memorandum & Article of Association of the Bank, Mr. Masroor Ahmed
Qureshi, Director, Silkbank Limited, has purchased 500 qualification shares from open market on
November 19, 2019, for being on the Board of the Bank.

M, Khwram Ali Malik, Area Manager — Branch Banking of Silkbank Limited, sold 3,000 shares
to the open market, The bank has reported the same to the Pakistan Stock Exchange in compliance
of clause No. 5.6.1. (d) of PSX Regulations, Apart from this, there was no other trading in
Siikbank shares carried out by any of the Directors and Executives or their spouses and minor

children during the year,
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS AT DECEMBER 31,2019

SILKBANK LIMITED
COMBINED PATTERN OF CDC & PHYSICAL SHARE HOLDINGS AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

- No of Shareholders. * Sharcholdings‘Slab . " Total Shares Held':
470 ! to 100 12,106
658 101 to 500 268,769
650 " 501 to 1000 611,113
1755 1001 o 5000 5,555,781
946 5001 (o 10000 7,970,209
400 10001 to 15000 5,190,421
345 15001 to 20000 6,422,493
253 20001 to 25000 5,087,269
142 25001 to 30000 4,051,421
127 30001 o 35000 4,275,242
102 35001 to 40000 3,935,166
69 40001 to 45000 2,982,175
200 45001 fo 50000 9,925,872
61 50001 to 55000 3,201,662
50 55001 to 60000 2,914,469
49 60001 to 65000 3,083,213
53 65001 to 70000 3,646,275
38 70001 to 75000 2,816,029
26 75001 to 80000 2,052,844
28 80001 to 85000 2,345,358

19 85001 to 90000 1,683,858
14 90001 to 95000 1,298,346
200 95001 to 100000 19,956,363
38 100001 to 105000 3,874,051
27 105001  to 110000 2,931,664
22 110001 to 115000 2,489,416
28 115001  to 120000 3,341,036
18 120001 fo 125000 2,225,204
12 125001 to 130000 1,541,986
13 13000 to 135000 1,735,675
17 135001 {0 140000 2,343,363
10 140001  to 145000 1,423,727
39 145001  to 150000 5,837,008
7 150001  to 155000 1,073,654
12 155001  to 160000 1,900,469
11 160001  to 165000 1,800,613
18 165001  to 170000 3,043,818

8 170001 fo 175000 1,390,648
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175001
180001

-185001

190001
195001
200001
205001
210001
215001
220001
225001
230001
235001
240001
245001
250001
255001
260001
265001
270001
275001
230001
285001
295001
300001
305001
310001
315001
320001
325001
330001
335001
340001
345001
350001
355001
360001
365001
370001
375001
380001

-385001

350001
395001
400001
405001

180000
185000
190000
195000
200000
205000
210000
215000
220000
225000
230000
235000
240000
245000
250000
255000
260000
265000
270000
275000
280000
285000
250000
306000
305000
310000
315000
320000
325000
330000
335000
340000
345000
350000
355000
360000
365000
370000
375000
380000
385000
390000
395000
400000
405000
410000

1,780,734
919,774
1,133,578
960,758
9,792,668
2,430,715
1,872,860
1,493,464
1,082,361
1,122,297
1,149,204
468,990
1,911,428
245,000
3,994,649
1,260,697
258,500
1,058,000
532,323
1,917,664
2,226,744
847,100
287,960
8,691,961
910,440
925,446
1,249,391
1,274,302
975,000
979,434
996,698
3,396,440
342,319
2,787,919
1,051,549
1,076,685
361,000
736,013
1,119,332
1,135,970
1,150,500
1,165,911
785,100
5,596,423
1,209,960
1,222,500
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410001t
415001
420001
425001
430001
445001
450001
455001
460001
465001
470001
475001
480001
485001
490061
495001
50000}
505001
510001
515061
520001
525001
530001
535001
545001
550001
555001
560001
565001
570001
575001
585001
590001

-59500!

600001
605001
640001
645001
650001
655001
660001
670001
675001
685001
690001
695001

415000
420000
425000
430000
435000
450000
455000
460000
465000
470000
475000
480000
485000
490000
495000
500000
505000
510000
515000
526000
525000
530000
535000
540000
550000
555000
560000
565000
570000
575000
580000
590000
595000
600000
605000
610000
645000
650000
655000
660000
665000
675000
680000
690000
695000
700000

412,500
837,672
2,119,882
1,288,000
435,000
3,150,000
452,000
919,910
1,848,776
938,000
943,051
959,000
482,028
1,462,499
1,482,000
10,996,480
1,507,333
3,569,230
511,001
516,000
2,099,717
1,584,500
1,065,261
540,000
546,000
550,346
1,119,500
565,000
569,500
573,992
578,136
1,177,110
591,500
5,400,000
604,102
610,000
1,285,787
3,043,500
653,823
659,000
663,500
1,343,486
2,039,760
690,000
693,233
4,195,000
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700001
705001
725001
745001
750001
760001
765001
795001
305001
825001
830001
835001
845001
855001
860001
870001
875001
880001
895001
910001
920001
930601
945001
955001
970001

990001

995001

1000001
1010001
1015001
1020001
1025001
1030001
1065001
1070001
1090001
1095001
1110001
1170001
1185001
1195001
1200001
1210001
1220001
1240001
1245001

765000
104300
730000
750000
755000
765000
770000
800000
810000
830000
835000
840000
$50000
360000
865000
875000
880000
885000
500000
915000
925000
935000
950000
960000
975000
995000
1600000
1005000
1015000
1020000
1025000
1030000
1035000
1070000
1075000
1095000
1100000
1115000
1175000
1190000
1200000
1205000
1215000
1225000
1245000
1250000

2,811,157
706,000
725,970
750,000
751,000
761,500
765,744

2,400,000
806,000
826,000

1,666,000

1,679,000

1,700,000
860,000
865,000

1,746,801
880,000
882,000

4,500,000
914,000
1,845,229
1,868,835
950,000
959,820
975,000

1,987,500

16,997,781

2,002,329

2,030,000

1,020,000

2,049,087

1,026,000

1,030,500

1,065,500

1,075,000

1,094,500

1,100,000

1,111,041

1,172,500
1,186,336

2,400,000

1,200,475

1,210,259

1,225,000

1,240,492
1,250,000
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1255001
1270001
1280001
1335001
1346001
1345001
1355001
1375001
1395001
1400001
1435001
1495001
1500001
1540001
1545001
1570001
1575001
1615001
1655001
1675001
1680001
1695001
1745001
1750001
1785001
1800001
1805001
1865001
1875001
1950001
1965001
1995001
2010001
2055001
2095001
2195001
2280001
2295001
2325001
2400001
2445001
2595001
2740001
2745001
2750001
2860001

1260000
1275000
1285000
1346000
1345000
1350000
1360000
1380000
1400000
1405000
1440000
1500000
1505000
1545000
1550000
1575000
1580000
1620000
1660000
1680000
1685000
1706000
1750000
1755000
1790000
1805000
1810000
1870000
1880000
1955000
1970000
2000000
2015000
2060000
2100000
2200000
2285000
2300000
2330000
2405000
2450000
2600000
2745000
2750000
2755000
2865000

2,515,070
1,272,000
1,283,000
1,340,000
1,345,000
4,046,905
1,359,764
1,377,215
1,397,161
1,400,440
1,439,641
4,500,000
1,500,100
1,543,529
3,098,866
1,572,920
1,576,789
3,239,500
1,660,000
3,356,500
1,683,494
1,699,701
1,747,116
1,753,663
1,788,500
1,802,000
1,808,500
1,869,671
1,877,599
3,909,657
1,965,500
14,000,000
2,015,000
2,057,402
2,100,000
4,399,500
2,282,046
2,300,000
2,330,000
2,400,018
2,450,000
2,595,500
2,744,500
2,750,000
2,751,788
2,863,153
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2920001
2960001
3060001
3090001
3085001
3195001
3230001
3295001
3395001
3560001
3580001
3595001
3670001
3940001
4275001
4425001
4740001
4985001
5015001
5045001
5620001
5640001
5995001
6000001
6175001
6835001
6960001
7260001
7495001
7615001
7695001
9595001
9995001
10145001
10435001
11780001
12540061
13170001
13495001
14095001
16465001
20880001
22195001
22415001
23795001
24720001

2925000
2995000
3065000
3095000
3100000
3200000
3235000
3300000
3400000
3565000
3585000
3600000
3675000
3945000
4280000
4430000
4745000
5000000
5020000
5050000
5625000
5645000
6000000
6005000
6180000
6840000
6965000
7265000
7500000
7620000
7700000
9660000
10000000
10150000
15440000
11785000
12545000
13175000
13500000
14100000
16470000
20885000
22200000
22420000
23800000
24725000

2,925,000
2,991,000
3,062,000
3,093,000
3,100,000
3,200,000
3,231,000
3,300,000
3,399,603
3,565,000
3,581,000
3,600,000
3,675,000
3,940,500
4,276,176
4,427,056
4,743,500
10,000,000
5,016,419
5,050,000
5,621,089
5,644,500
6,000,000
6,002,500
6,176,082
6,839,054
6,963,676
7,261,124
7,500,000
7,618,500
7,700,000
9,600,000
10,000,000
10,149,000
10,436,324
11,782,500
12,543,796
13,174,061
13,496,500
14,100,000
16,467,577
20,880,417
22,200,000
22,418,500
23,797,288
24,724,029




SILKBANK 7

l 24995001  to 25000000 25,000,000

1 2867500  to 28680000 28,676,471

I 36225001 to 36230000 36,228,668

1 37495001 to 37500000 37,500,000

1 35880001 to 55885000 55,882,353

1 57245001 te 57250000 57,247,500

{ 77335001 to 77340000 77,335,346

1 86345061 to 86350000 86,349,442

I 86645001 to 86650000 86,647,500

1 152380001  to 152385000 152,382,353

! 172995001  to 173000000 173,000,000
] 247290001 to 247295000 247,290,500
! 315775001 to 315780000 315,776,969
4 320510001  to 320515000 1,282,051,282
] 356675001  to 356680000 356,676,342
1 415555000 to 415560000 415,559,626
I 415625001 to 415630000 415,626,000
1 424300001 to 424305000 424,303,497
] 678125001 to 678130000 678,126,000
] 70268500F  to 702690000 702,689,067
I 2563900001 to 2563905000 2,563,901,924

7568 9,081,861,237




